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The Equity Shares have not been and will not be registered under the U.S Securities Act of 1933, as amended
(“U.S. Securities Act”) or any state securities laws in the United States of America and may not be offered or
sold within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, “U.S. Persons (as defined in Regulation
S), except pursuant to exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the
U.S. Securities laws. Accordingly the Equity Shares are being offered and sold only outside the United States
in offshore transaction in reliance on Regulation S under the U.S Securities Act and the applicable laws of
the jurisdiction where those offers and sale occur.

The Equity Shares have not been and will not be registered, listed or otherwise qualified in any other

jurisdiction outside India and may not be offered or sold, and application may not be made by persons in any
such jurisdiction, except in compliance with the applicable laws of such jurisdiction.
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SECTION | - GENERAL
DEFINITION AND ABBREVIATION

In this Prospectus, unless the context otherwise requires, the terms and abbreviations stated hereunder
shall have the meanings as assigned therewith.

The words and expressionsused in this Prospectus but not defined herein shall have to the extent
applicable, the meaning ascribed to such terms under the Companies Act, the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations,
the SCRA, the Depositories Act, and the rules and regulations made thereunder. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, terms used in “Industry”, “Statement of Possible Tax Benefits”, “Financial Statements”,
“Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments” and “Main Provisions of Articles of Association”
beginning on pages 132, 129, 209, 234 and 330 respectively of this Prospectus.

In case of any inconsistency between the definitions given below and the definitions contained in the

General Information Document (as defined below), the definitions given below shall prevail.

GENERAL TERMS

Term

Description

“Artedz Fabs Limited”, or
“Artedz” or “the Company”, or
“our Company” or “we”, “us”,
“our”, or “Issuer” or the “Issuer

Company”

Artedz Fabs Limited, a Public Limited Company incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

G‘We”, GGuS’7 Or “Our”

Unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, refers to our
Company.

COMPANY RELATED TERMS

Term

Description

AOA or Articles or Articles of
Association

The Articles of Association of our Company, as amended from
time to time.

Audit Committee

The committee of the Board of Directors constituted as the
Company’s Audit Committee in accordance with Section 177 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor or Statutory Auditor

The statutory auditor of our Company, being M/s. Keyur Shah &
Co., Chartered Accountants.

Banker to the Company

Such banks which are disclosed as bankers to our Company in the
chapter titled “General Information” on page 91 of this
Prospectus.

Board of Directors/ the Board / our
Board

The Board of Directors of our Company, including all duly
constituted committee(s) thereof.

Company Secretary and

Compliance Officer

The Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of our Company
being Vidhi Joshi.

Director(s)

Director(s) of our Company , unless otherwise specified

Equity Shareholders

Persons/ Entities holding Equity Shares of our Company

Equity Shares

Equity Shares of our Company of face value of Rs. 10 each fully
paid up.

Group Companies

Such Companies as are included in the chapter titled ‘Our Group
Company’ beginning on page 204 of this Prospectus

ISIN International Securities Identification Number. In this case being
INEO0OCO01016.
MOA / Memorandum /| The Memorandum of Association of our Company, as amended
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Term

Description

Memorandum of Association

from time to time.

Peer Reviewed Auditor

Independent Auditor having a valid Peer Review Certificate in
our case being M/s N. K. Aswani & Co., Chartered Accountant.

Promoter Group

Includes such persons and entities constituting our promoter
group in terms of Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations and as enlisted in the chapter titled “Our Promoter
and Promoter Group” beginning on page 200 of this Prospectus.

Promoter, Promoters

Promoters

or our

Promoters of our Company being Kashyap Gambhir and
Satbinder Singh Gill.

Registered Office

The Registered office of our Company situated at 206, Gambhir
Industrial Estate, Off Aarey Road, Opp. Paramount Print,
Goregaon (East), Mumbai — 400063, Maharashtra, India.

Roc / Registrar of Companies

The Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra at 100,
Everest, Marine Drive Mumbai- 400002, Maharashtra, India

Shareholders

Shareholders of our Company

you, your or yours

Prospective investors in this Issue

ISSUE RELATED TERMS

Term

Description

Acknowledgement Slip

The slip or document issued by the Designated Intermediary to a
Bidder as proof of registration of the Bid

Allotment Advice

Note or advice or intimation of Allotment sent to the successful
Bidders who have been or are to be Allotted the Equity Shares
after the Basis of Allotment has been approved by the Designated
Stock Exchange.

Allotment/ Allot/ Allotted

Issue and allotment of Equity Shares of our Company pursuant to
the Issue of the Equity Shares to successful Bidders

Allottee(s)

Successful Bidders(s) to whom Equity Shares have been
allotted/transferred.

ASBA / Application Supported by
Blocked Amount

An application, whether physical or electronic, used by Bidders,
to make a Bid authorising an SCSB to block the Bid Amount in
the ASBA Account maintained with such SCSB and will include
amounts blocked by RI1Is using UPI mechanism.

ASBA Account

An account maintained with an SCSB and specified in the Bid
cum Application Form submitted by Bidders for blocking the Bid
Amount mentioned in the Bid cum Application Form or account
of the RIlIs blocked upon acceptance of UPI Mandate request by
RIls using the UPI mechanism

ASBA Application Location(s) /
Specified Cities

Locations at which ASBA Applications can be uploaded by the
SCSBs, namely New Delhi, Chennai, Kolkata, and Mumbai.

ASBA form

An application form (with and without the use of UPI, as may be
applicable), whether physical or electronic, used by the ASBA
Bidders and which will be considered as an application for
Allotment in terms of the Red Herring Prospectus and the
Prospectus.

Banker(s) to the Issue/ Public Issue
Bank(s)

The banks which are clearing members and registered with SEBI
as Banker to an Issue with whom the Public Issue Account has
been opened and in this case being ICICI Bank Limited.
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Term

Description

Basis of Allotment

The basis on which Equity Shares will be Allotted to the
successful Bidders under the Issue and which is described under
chapter titled “Issue Procedure” beginning on page 267 of this
Prospectus.

Bid

An indication to make an issue during the Bid/Issue Period by a
Bidder pursuant to submission of the Bid cum Application Form,
to subscribe to or purchase the Equity Shares at a price within the
Price Band, including all revisions and modifications thereto as
permitted under the SEBI ICDR Regulations in accordance with
the Prospectus and Bid cum Application Form

Bid Amount

The highest value of optional Bids indicated in the Bid cum
Application Form and in the case of Retail Individual Bidders
Bidding at Cut Off Price, the Cap Price multiplied by the number
of Equity Shares Bid for by such Retail Individual Bidder and
mentioned in the Bid cum Application Form and payable by the
Retail Individual Bidder or blocked in the ASBA Account upon
submission of the Bid in the Issue

Bid Cum Application Collecting
Intermediaries

1. a SCSB with whom the bank account to be blocked, is
maintained

2. asyndicate member (or sub-syndicate member) If any

3. a stock broker registered with a recognized stock exchange
(and whose name is mentioned on the website of the stock
exchange as eligible for this activity)(‘broker’) if any

4. a depository participant (‘DP’) (whose name is mentioned on
the website of the stock exchange as eligible for this activity)

5. aregistrar to an issue and share transfer agent (‘RTA”) (whose
name is mentioned on the website of the stock exchange as
eligible for this activity)

Bid cum Application form

The form used by a Bidder, to make a Bid and which will be
considered as the application for Allotment in terms of the Red
Herring Prospectus

Bid Lot

3,000 Equity shares and in multiples of 3,000 Equity Shares
thereafter

Bid/ Issue Closing Date

March 20, 2019

Bid/ Issue Opening Date

March 18, 2019

Bid/ Issue Period

March 18, 2019 to March 20, 2019

Bidder

Any Resident Indian investor who has made a Bid pursuant to the
terms of the Red Herring Prospectus and the Bid cum Application
Form and unless otherwise stated or implied

Bidding/collecting Centre

Centres at which the Designated Intermediaries shall accept the
ASBA Forms, i.e., Designated SCSB Branch for SCSBs,
Specified Locations for Syndicate, Broker Centres for Registered
Brokers, Designated RTA Locations for RTAs and Designated
CDP Locations for CDPs

Book Building Process

Book Building Process, as provided in Schedule X111* of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations, in terms of which the Issue has been made

Book Running Lead Manager or
BRLM

The Book Running Lead Manager to the Issue namely Pantomath
Capital Advisors Private Limited
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Term

Description

Broker Centres

Broker centres notified by the Stock Exchanges, where the
Bidders can submit the Bid cum application forms to a Registered
Broker. The details of such broker centres, along with the names
and contact details of the Registered Brokers, are available on the
website of National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

CAN or Confirmation of

Allocation Note

The note or advice or intimation sent to each successful Bidder
indicating the Equity Shares which will be Allotted/ transferred,
after approval of Basis of Allotment by the Designated Stock
Exchange.

Cap Price

% 36 per Equity Share

Client ID

Client Identification Number maintained with one of the
Depositories in relation to demat account.

Collecting Depository Participant
or CDP

A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act,
1996, registered with SEBI and who is eligible to procure
Applications at the Designated CDP Locations in terms of circular
no. CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated November 10, 2015

Such branch of the SCSBs which coordinate Applications under
this Issue by the ASBA Applicants with the Registrar to the Issue

Controlling  Branch/Designated and the Stock Exchanges and a list of which is available at

Branch ) . . .
http://www.sebi.gov.in _or at such other website as may be
prescribed by SEBI from time to time

Cut-off Price Issue finalized by our Company in consultation with the BRLM,

being T 36 per equity share

Demographic Details

Details of the Bidders including the Bidder’s address, name of the
Bidder’s father/ husband, investor status, occupation and bank
account details and UPI ID wherever applicable.

Depositories

Depositories registered with SEBI under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants)
Regulations, 1996, as amended from time to time, being NSDL
and CDSL

Depository Participant

A Depository Participant as defined under the Depositories Act,
1996

Designated CDP Locations

Such centres of the CDPs where Bidders can submit the Bid Cum
Application Forms. The details of such Designated CDP
Locations, along with names and contact details of the Collecting
Depository Participants eligible to accept Bid cum Application
Forms are available on the website of the Stock Exchange
(www.nseindia.com) and updated from time to time

Designated Date

The date on which the Collection Banks transfer funds from the
public issue accounts, and the SCSBs issue instructions for
transfer of funds from the ASBA Accounts including the accounts
linked with UPI, to the Public Issue Account or the Refund
Account, as appropriate, in terms of the Prospectus following
which the Board of Directors may Allot Equity Shares to
successful Bidders in the Issue

Designated Intermediary(ies)

Syndicate, Sub-Syndicate Members/agents, SCSBs, Registered
Brokers, CDPs and RTAs, who are authorized to collect ASBA
Forms from the Bidders, in relation to the Issue

Designated RTA Locations

Such centres of the RTAs where Bidder can submit the Bid cum
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Term

Description

Application Forms. The details of such Designated RTA
Locations, along with the names and contact details of the RTAs
are available on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.nseindia.com) and updated from time to time

Designated Stock Exchange

EMERGE Platform of National Stock Exchange of India Limited

Draft Red Herring Prospectus or

DRHP

The Draft Red Herring Prospectus dated May 23, 2018 issued in
accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, which does not
contain complete particulars of the price at which the Equity
Shares will be Allotted and the size of the Issue

Emerge Platform of NSE/ SME

Exchange

The Emerge Platform of National Stock Exchange of India
Limited, approved by SEBI as an SME Exchange for listing of
equity shares offered under Chapter XB of the SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations

F11/ Foreign Institutional Investors

Foreign Institutional Investor (as defined under SEBI (Foreign
Institutional Investors) Regulations, 1995, as amended) registered
with SEBI under applicable laws in India.

First/sole Bidder

Bidder whose name shall be mentioned in the Bid cum
Application Form or the Revision Form and in case of joint Bids,
whose name shall also appear as the first holder of the beneficiary
account held in joint names

Floor Price %34 per equity share
The General Information Document for investing in public issues
General Information | prepared and issued in accordance with the circular

Document/GID

(CIR/CFD/DIL/12/2013) dated October 23, 2013, and included in
“Issue Procedure” on 267 of this Prospectus

Issue

The Initial Public Issue of 23,10,000 Equity Shares of face value
of Rs.10 each for cash at a price of Rs. 36 each, aggregating Rs.
831.60 comprising the Fresh Issue.

Issue Agreement

The agreement dated April 23, 2018 between our Company and
the BRLM, pursuant to which certain arrangements are agreed to
in relation to the Issue

Issue Price

% 36 per Equity Shares, final price at which Equity Shares will be
Allotted to Bidders.

The Issue Price has been decided by our Company, in consultation
with the Book Running Lead Manager.Managers, on the Pricing
Date

Issue Proceeds

The proceeds of the Issue that is available to our Company. For
further information about use of Issue Proceeds, see “Objects of
the Issue” on page 120 of this Prospectus.

Listing Agreement

The Equity Listing Agreement to be signed between our Company
and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

Mandate Request

Mandate request means a request initiated on the RII by sponsor
bank to authorize blocking of funds equivalent to application
amount and subsequent debit of funds in case of allotment.

Market Maker

Market Maker appointed by our Company from time to time, in
this case being Pantomath Stock Brokers Private Limited who has
agreed to receive or deliver the specified securities in the market
making process for a period of three years from the date of listing
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Term

Description

of our Equity Shares or for any other period as may be notified by
SEBI from time to time

Market Maker Reservation Portion

The Reserved Portion of 1,20,000 Equity Shares of face value of
Rs. 10 each fully paid for cash at a price of Rs 36 per Equity Share
aggregating Rs. 43.20 for the Market Maker in this Issue.

Market Making Agreement

Market Making Agreement dated April 23, 2018 between our
Company, Book Running Lead Manager and Market Maker.

Mutual Fund(s)

A mutual fund registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Mutual
Funds) Regulations, 1996, as amended from time to time

National Payments Corporation of
India (NPCI)

NPCI, a Reserve Bank of India (RBI) initiative, is an umbrella
organization for all retail payments in India. It has been set up with
the guidance and support of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and
Indian Banks Association (IBA).

Net Issue

The Issue (excluding the Market Maker Reservation Portion) of
21,90,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid
for cash at a price of Rs 36 per Equity Share aggregating Rs.
788.40 by our Company

Net Proceeds

Proceeds of the Fresh Issue less our Company’s share of the Issue
expenses. For further information about use of the Issue Proceeds
and the Issue expenses, see “Objects of the Issue” on page 120 of
Prospectus.

NIF

National Investment Fund set up by resolution F. No. 2/3/2005-
DD-Il dated November 23, 2005 of Government of India
published in the Gazette of India

Non Institutional Bidders

All Bidders, including Category Il FPIs that are not QIBs or
Retail Individual Investors, who have apply for Equity Shares for
an amount of more than Rs. 2,00,000 but not including NRIs other
than Eligible NRIs

Non-Resident

A person resident outside India, as defined under FEMA and
includes Flls and FPIs

NSE

National Stock Exchange of India Limited

OCB/ Overseas Corporate Body

A company, partnership, society or other corporate body owned
directly or indirectly to the extent of at least 60% by NRISs,
including overseas trusts in which not less than 60% of beneficial
interest is irrevocably held by NRIs directly or indirectly as
defined under the Foreign Exchange Management (Deposit)
Regulations, 2000, as amended from time to time. OCBs are not
allowed to invest in this Issue

Other Investors

Investors other than Retail Individual Investors. These include
individual bidders/applicants other than retail individual investors
and other investors including corporate bodies or institutions
irrespective of the number of specified securities applied for.

Person/ Persons

Any individual, sole proprietorship, unincorporated association,
unincorporated organization, body corporate, corporation,
company, partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, or
trust or any other entity or organization validly constituted and/or
incorporated in the jurisdiction in which it exists and operates, as
the context requires
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Term

Description

Price Band

Price band of a minimum price of Rs. 34 per Equity Share (Floor
Price) and the maximum price of Rs. 36 per Equity Share (Cap
Price) including revisions thereof.

The Price Band and the minimum Bid Lot size for the Issue have
been decided by our Company in consultation with the BRLM and
were advertised at least two* Working Days prior to the Bid/ Issue
Opening Date, in all edition of the English national newspaper,
Business Standard, all edition of the Hindi national newspaper
Business Standard and Mumbai edition of the Marathi newspaper
Mumbai Lakshadeep, each with wide circulation

Pricing date

The date on which our Company in consultation with the BRLM,
will finalise the Issue Price

Prospectus

The Prospectus to be filed with the RoC on or after the Pricing
Date in accordance with Sections 26 and 32 of the Companies Act,
2013, and the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations containing, inter alia, the
Issue Price, the size of the Issue and certain other information

Public Issue Account

Account opened with the Banker to the Issue i.e. ICICI Bank
Limited and under Section 40 of the Companies Act, 2013 to
receive monies from the SCSBs from the bank accounts of the
bidders on the Designated Date.

Public Issue Account Agreement/
Banker to the Issue Agreement

Agreement entered on April 23, 2018 amongst our Company,
Book Running Lead Manager, the Registrar to the Issue and
Public Issue Bank/Banker to the Issue and includes Addendum
dated February 26, 2019 to the said agreement appointing ICICI
Bank Limited as a Sponsor Bank for collection of the Bid Amount
on the terms and conditions thereof.

Qualified Institutional Buyers or
QIBs

Qualified Institutional Buyers as defined under Regulation 2(1)
(zd) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 20009.

Red Herring Prospectus or RHP

This Red Herring Prospectus dated March 12, 2019 issued in
accordance with Section 32 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the
provisions of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, which does not have
complete particulars of the price at which the Equity Shares were
being offered and the size of the Issue, including any addenda or
corrigenda thereto.

The Red Herring Prospectus has been registered with the RoC at
least three days before the Bid/ Issue Opening Date and will
become the Prospectus upon filing with the RoC on or after the
Pricing Date

Refund Account(s)

The account opened with the Refund Bank(s), from which
refunds, if any, of the whole or part of the Bid Amount (excluding
refund to Bidders) shall be made.

Refund Bank(s) / Refund Banker(s)

Bank which is / are clearing member(s) and registered with the
SEBI as Bankers to the Issue at which the Refund Account has
been opened, in this case being ICICI Bank Limited.

Refund through electronic transfer
of funds

Refunds through NECS, direct credit, RTGS or NEFT, as
applicable

Registered Broker

Individuals or companies registered with SEBI as "Trading
Members" (except Syndicate/Sub-Syndicate Members) who hold
valid membership of NSE having right to trade in stocks listed on
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Term

Description

Stock Exchanges, through which investors can buy or sell
securities listed on stock exchanges, a list of which is available on
http://www.nseindia.com/membership/dynaContent/find_a_brok
er.htm

Registrar /Registrar to the Issue

Registrar to the Issue, in this case being Bigshare Services Private
Limited having registered office at 1% Floor, Bharat Tin Works
Building, Opp.Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road, Marol, Andheri
(East), Mumbai — 400059, Maharashtra, India.

Registrar and Share Transfer
Agents or RTAs

Registrar and share transfer agents registered with SEBI and
eligible to procure Applications at the Designated RTA Locations
in terms of circular no. CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated
November 10, 2015

Reservation Portion

The portion of the Issue reserved for category of eligible Bidders
as provided under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2009

Reserved Category / Categories

Categories of persons eligible for making Bids under reservation
portion.

Resident Indian

A person resident in India, as defined under FEMA

Retail Individual Bidder(s)/Retail
Individual
Investor(s)/RII(S)/RIB(s)

Individual Bidders, or minors applying through their natural
guardians, including HUFs (applying through their Karta), who
apply for an amount less than or equal to Rs 2,00,000.

Revision Form

Form used by the Bidders, to modify the quantity of the Equity
Shares or the Bid Amount in any of their Bid cum Application
Forms or any previous Revision Form(s)

SCSB/ Self Certified Syndicate
Banker

Shall mean a Banker to an Issue registered under SEBI (Bankers
to an Issue) Regulations, 1994, as amended from time to time, and
which Issue the service of making Bids/Application/s Supported
by Blocked Amount including blocking of bank account and a list
of which is available on
http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/home/list/5/33/0/0/Recognised
Intermediaries or at such other website as may be prescribed by
SEBI from time to time

SEBI (Foreign Portfolio Investor)
Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio
Investors) Regulations, 2014.

SEBI Listing Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and includes the
agreement to be entered into between our Company and the Stock
Exchange in relation to listing of Equity Shares on such Stock
Exchange.

Specified Locations

Bidding centres where the Syndicate shall accept Bid cum
Application Forms from Bidders, a list of which is available on
the website of SEBI (www.sebi.gov.in) and updated from time to
time

Sponsor Bank(s)

Sponsor Bank means a Banker to the Issue registered with SEBI
which is appointed by the Issuer to act as a conduit between the
Stock Exchanges and NPCI (National in order to push the mandate
collect requests and / or payment instructions of the retail
investors into the UPI, the sponsor bank in this case being ICICI
Bank Limited.
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Term

Description

Syndicate Agreement

Agreement dated April 23, 2018 entered into amongst the BRLM,
the Syndicate Members, our Company in relation to the
procurement of Bid cum Application Forms by Syndicate

Syndicate Members

Intermediaries registered with SEBI who are permitted to carry
out activities as an underwriter, namely, Pantomath Stock Brokers
Private Limited

Syndicate or Members of the

Syndicate

The BRLM and the Syndicate Members

TRS or Transaction Registration
Slip

The slip or document issued by the Syndicate, or the SCSB (only
on demand), as the case may be, to the Bidder as proof of
registration of the Bid

Underwriter

Pantomath Capital Advisors Private Limited

Underwriting Agreement

The agreement dated April 23, 2018 entered into between the
Underwriter and our Company

Unified Payments Interface
(UPD)

UPI is an instant payment system developed by the NPCI. It
enables merging several banking features, seamless fund routing
& merchant payments into one hood. UPI allows instant transfer
of money between any two persons’ bank accounts using a
payment address which uniquely identifies a person’s bank a/c.

UPI ID

ID created on Unified Payment Interface (UPI) for single-window
mobile payment system developed by the National Payments
Corporation of India (NPCI).

UPI Mandate Request

A request (intimating the RIB by way of a notification on the UPI
application and by way of a SMS directing the RIB to such UPI
application) to the RIB initiated by the Sponsor Bank to authorise
blocking of funds on the UPI application equivalent to Bid
Amount and subsequent debit of funds in case of Allotment.

UPI Mechanism

The bidding mechanism that may be used by a RIB to make a Bid
in the Issue in accordance with SEBI circular
(SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/138) dated November 1,
2018.

UPI PIN Password to authenticate UPI transaction.
(i) Till Application / Issue closing date: All days other than a

Saturday, Sunday or a public holiday;
(ii) Post Application / Issue closing date and till the Listing of
Working Day Equity Shares: All trading days of stock exchanges excluding

Sundays and bank holidays in accordance with the SEBI
circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL/CIR/P/2016/26 dated
January 21, 2016

*as per SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018

TECHNICAL AND INDUSTRY RELATED TERMS

Term Description
ASEAN Association of Southeast Asian Nations
A-TUFS Amended Technology Up-gradation Fund Scheme
BTRA The Bombay Textile Research Association
CAGR Compound Annual Growth Rate
CCEA The Cabinet Committee on Economic Affairs
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Term Description

CPI Consumer Price Index

CSO Central Statistics Office

DGFT The Directorate General of Foreign Trade

EESL Energy Efficiency Services Limited

EV Electric Vehicle

FDI Foreign Direct Investment

GAV Gross Value Added

GDP Gross Domestic Product

GST Goods And Services Tax

HVAC Heating Ventilation and Air-Conditioning

IBC Insolvency And Bankruptcy Code

IBEF India Brand Equity Foundation

ICAC International Cotton Advisory Committee

IWDP Integrated Wool Development Programme

1P Index Of Industrial Production

IMF International Monetary Fund

KVIC Khadi and Village Industries Commission

MEIS Merchandise Exports from India Scheme

MoU Memorandum of Understanding

M-SIPS Modified Special Incentive Package Scheme

MSME Micro Small and Medium Enterprises

MSP Minimum Support Price

NBFCs Non-Banking Financial Company

NSSF National Small Savings Fund

OMO Open Market Operations

PMP Phased Manufacturing Programme

SAATHI Sustainable and Accelerated Adoption of Efficient Textile
Technologies to Help Small Industries

SANKALP Skills Acquisition and Knowledge Awareness for Livelihood
Promotion

SASMIRA The Synthetic and Art Silk Mills’ Research Association

SCBTS Scheme for Capacity Building in Textile Sector

SEZ Special Economic Zone

SITP Scheme for Integrated Textile Parks

SITRA The South India Textile Research Association

STRIVE Skill Strengthening for Industrial Value Enhancement

TUFS Technology Upgradation Fund Scheme

UNIDO United Nations Industrial Development Organisation

WEOQO World Economic Outlook

CONVENTIONAL AND GENERAL TERMS/ABBREVIATIONS

Term Description
AY.JAY Assessment Year
AIC Account
AGM Annual General Meeting
AlF Alternative Investment Fund as defined in and registered with

SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Alternative Investments Funds) Regulations, 2012

Page 12 of 376




Term

Description

AO0A

Articles of Association

AS/Accounting Standard

Accounting Standards as issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India

ASBA Application Supported by Blocked Amount

BIFR Board for Industrial and Financial Reconstruction

BRLM Book Running Lead Manager

CAGR Compounded Annual Growth Rate

Category | Foreign Portfolio | FPIswho are registered as — Category | foreign portfolio investors
Investors under the SEBI FPI Regulations

Category Il Foreign Portfolio | FPIs who are registered as — Category Il foreign portfolio
Investors investors under the SEBI FPI Regulations

Category 11l Foreign Portfolio | FPIs who are registered as — Category Il foreign portfolio
Investors investors under the SEBI FPI Regulations

CC Cash Credit

CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited

CENVAT Central Value Added Tax

CFO Chief Financial Officer

CIN Corporate Identification Number

Cm Centimetre

CMD Chairman and Managing Director

Companies Act, 1956

Companies Act, 1956 (without reference to the provisions thereof
that have ceased to have effect upon notification of the Notified
Sections) and the Companies Act, 2013.

Companies Act, 2013

The Companies Act, 2013, to the extent in force pursuant to the
notification of the notified sections

CS

Company Secretary

CST

Central Sales Tax

Depositories

NSDL (National Securities Depository Limited) and CDSL
(Central Depository Services Limited); Depositories registered
with the SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 1996, as amended
from time to time

Depositories Act

The Depositories Act, 1996, as amended from time to time.

DGFT Directorate General of Foreign Trade

DIN Director Identification Number

DIPP Department of Industrial Policy & Promotion

DP Depository Participant

DP ID Depository Participant’s Identity

DPIT Department For Promotion Of Industry And Internal Trade

EBIDTA Earnings before interest, depreciation, tax, amortization and
extraordinary items

ECS Electronic Clearing System

EGM Extraordinary General Meeting

EPFA The Employees* Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions
Act, 1952

EPS Earnings Per Share

ESIC Employee State Insurance Corporation

ESOP Employee Stock Option Plan
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Term Description
ESPS Employee Stock Purchase Scheme
F.Y.IFY Financial Year
FCNR Account Foreign Currency Non Resident Account
FDI Foreign Direct Investment
FEMA Foreign Exchange Management Act 1999, as amended from time

to time and the regulations framed there under

FIl Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Institutional
Investors) Regulations, 1995, as amended from time to time.

FII(s) Foreign Institutional Investor, as defined under the FII
Regulations and registered with the SEBI under applicable laws
in India

FIPB The Foreign Investment Promotion Board, Ministry of Finance,
Government of India

Fis Financial Institutions

FPI(s) Foreign Portfolio Investor means a person who satisfies the
eligibility criteria prescribed under regulation 4 and has been
registered under Chapter Il of Securities And Exchange Board Of
India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2014, which
shall be deemed to be an intermediary in terms of the provisions
of the SEBI Act,1992

FV Face Value

FVCI Foreign Venture Capital Investor registered under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital Investor)
Regulations, 2000

GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

GDP Gross Domestic Product

GIR Number General Index Registry number

Gol / Government Government of India

HNI High Networth Individual

HUF Hindu Undivided Family

I. T. Act The Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended.

ICAI Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

:?CegjationsF/zegUIgté(I;nIS/ ( ngg; SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations/Regulations

Regulations, 2009 as amended from time to time

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

Indian GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India

INR Indian National Rupee

IPO Initial Public Offering

IRDA Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority

IT Authorities Income Tax Authorities

IT Rules The Income Tax Rules, 1962, as amended from time to time

Key Managerial Personnel / KMP

The officers declared as a Key Managerial Personnel and as
mentioned in the chapter titled “Our Management” beginning on
page 185 of this Prospectus

KVA

Kilovolt-ampere

Listing Regulations / SEBI Listing
Regulations/ SEBI  (LODR)
Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Page 14 of 376




Term Description

Ltd. Limited

MD Managing Director

MICR Magnetic Ink Character Recognition

Mn Million

MoA Memorandum of Association

MoF Ministry of Finance, Government of India

MoU Memorandum of Understanding

N/A or N.A. Not Applicable

NAV Net Asset Value

NBFC Non Banking Finance Company

Net Worth The aggregate of the paid up share capital, share premium
account, and reserves and surplus (excluding revaluation reserve)
as reduced by the aggregate of miscellaneous expenditure (to the
extent not adjusted or written off) and the debit balance of the
profit and loss account

NI Act Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881

NOC No Objection Certificate

NPCI NPCI

NR Non Resident

NRE Account Non Resident (External) Account

NRI Non Resident Indian, is a person resident outside India, who is a
citizen of India or a person of Indian origin and shall have the
same meaning as ascribed to such term in the Foreign Exchange
Management (Deposit) Regulations, 2000, as amended from time
to time

NRO Account Non Resident (Ordinary) Account

NSDL National Securities Depository Limited

NSE National Stock Exchange of India Limited

oCB Overseas Corporate Bodies

p.a. per annum

P/E Ratio Price Earnings Ratio

PAN Permanent Account Number

PAT Profit After Tax

PBT Profit Before Tax

Pvt. Private

QIB Qualified Institutional Buyer

RII Retail Individual Investor

RBI Reserve Bank of India

RBI Act The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, as amended from time to
time

RoC Registrar of Companies

RoNW Return on Net Worth

Rs./INR Indian Rupees

SCRA Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 as amended from
time to time

SCRR Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957

SCSB Self Certified Syndicate Bank

SEBI Securities and Exchange Board of India
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Term

Description

SEBI Act

Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as amended
from time to time

SEBI AIF Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investments
Funds) Regulations, 2012

SEBI FIl Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Institutional
Investors) Regulations, 1995

SEBI FPI Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio
Investors) Regulations, 2014

SEBI FVCI Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital
Investors) Regulations, 2000

SEBI Insider Trading Regulations

The SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as
amended from time to time, including instructions and
clarifications issued by SEBI from time to time

SEBI Takeover
Takeover Code

Regulations /

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition
of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011

SEBI VCF Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Fund)
Regulations, 1996 as repealed pursuant to the SEBI AlF

Regulations

Sec Section

SICA Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985, as
amended from time to time

SME Small Medium Enterprise

SSI Undertaking Small Scale Industrial Undertaking

Stock Exchange (s) SME Platform of NSE

STT Securities Transaction Tax

Sub-Account

Sub-accounts registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Foreign
Institutional Investor) Regulations, 1995, other than sub-accounts
which are foreign corporate or foreign individuals.

TAN Tax Deduction Account Number

TIN Taxpayers Identification Number

TNW Total Net Worth

TRS Transaction Registration Slip

U.S. GAAP Generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of
America

u/s Under Section

UIN Unique ldentification Number

Uol Union of India

UPI Unified payments interface, a payment mechanism that allows

instant transfer of money between any two persons bank account
using a payment address which uniquely identifies a person’s
bank account.

US/ U.S. / USA/ United States

United States of America

USD/US$/$

United States Dollar, the official currency of the United States of
America

uv

Ultraviolet

VAT

Value Added Tax

VCF / Venture Capital Fund

Foreign Venture Capital Funds (as defined under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Funds)
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Term Description
Regulations, 1996) registered with SEBI under applicable laws in
India.
w.e.f. With effect from
WDV Written Down Value
WTD Whole-time Director
YoY Year over year

Notwithstanding the following: -

In the section titled “Main Provisions of the Articles of Association” beginning on page 330 of this
Prospectus, defined terms shall have the meaning given to such terms in that section;

In the section titled “Financial Statements” beginning on page 209 of this Prospectus, defined terms
shall have the meaning given to such terms in that section;

In the section titled “Risk Factor” beginning on page 21 of this Prospectus, defined terms shall have
the meaning given to such terms in that section;

In the chapter titled “Statement of Possible Tax Benefits” beginning on page 129 of this Prospectus,
defined terms shall have the meaning given to such terms in that chapter; and

In the chapter titled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” beginning on page 210 of this Prospectus, defined terms shall have the meaning given
to such terms in that chapter.
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL, INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA

All references to “India” are to the Republic of India and all references to the “Government” are to the
Government of India.

FINANCIAL DATA

Unless stated otherwise, the financial data included in this Prospectus are extracted from the restated
financial statements of our Company, prepared in accordance with the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, Indian GAAP and restated in accordance with SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, as stated in the
report of our Peer Reviewed Auditor, set out in the section titled “Financial Statements as Restated”
beginning on page 209 this Prospectus. Our restated financial statements are derived from our audited
financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP and the Companies Act, and have been
restated in accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations.

Our fiscal year commences on April 1% of each year and ends on March 31% of the next year. All references
to a particular fiscal year are to the 12 month period ended March 31% of that year. In this Prospectus, any
discrepancies in any table between the total and the sums of the amounts listed are due to rounding-off.
All decimals have been rounded off to two decimal points.

There are significant differences between Indian GAAP, IFRS and US GAAP. The Company has not
attempted to quantify their impact on the financial data included herein and urges you to consult your
own advisors regarding such differences and their impact on the Company’s financial data. Accordingly
to what extent, the financial statements included in this Prospectus will provide meaningful information
is entirely dependent on the reader’s level of familiarity with Indian accounting practices / Indian GAAP.
Any reliance by persons not familiar with Indian Accounting Practices on the financial disclosures
presented in this Prospectus should accordingly be limited.

Any percentage amounts, as set forth in “Risk Factors”, “Our Business”, “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and elsewhere in this Prospectus unless
otherwise indicated, have been calculated on the basis of the Company’s restated financial statements
prepared in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, Indian GAAP and restated
in accordance with SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, as stated in the report of our Peer Reviewed Auditor, set
out in the section titled “Financial Statements as Restated” beginning on page 209 of this Prospectus.

CURRENCY OF PRESENTATION

In this Prospectus, references to “Rupees” or “Rs.” or “INR” are to Indian Rupees, the official currency
of the Republic of India. All references to “$”, “US$”, “USD”, “U.S. $”or “U.S. Dollars” are to United
States Dollars, the official currency of the United States of America.

All references to ‘million’ / ‘Million’ / ‘Mn’ refer to one million, which is equivalent to ‘ten lacs’ or ‘ten
lakhs’, the word ‘Lacs / Lakhs / Lac’ means ‘one hundred thousand’ and ‘Crore’ means ‘ten million’ and
‘billion / bn./ Billions” means ‘one hundred crores’.

INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA

Unless stated otherwise, Industry and Market data and various forecasts used throughout this Prospectus
have been obtained from publically available information, Industry Sources and Government
Publications.

Industry Sources as well as Government Publications generally state that the information contained in
those publications has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable but their accuracy and
completeness and underlying assumptions are not guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured.
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Although we believe that industry data used in this Prospectus is reliable, it has not been independently
verified by the Book Running Lead Manager or our Company or any of their affiliates or advisors. Such
data involves risks, uncertainties and numerous assumptions and is subject to change based on various
factors, including those discussed in the section titled “Risk Factors” beginning on page 21 of this
Prospectus. Accordingly, investment decisions should not be based solely on such information.

Further, the extent to which the industry and market data presented in this Prospectus is meaningful
depends on the reader‘s familiarity with and understanding of the methodologies used in compiling such
data. There are no standard data gathering methodologies in the industry in which we conduct our
business, and methodologies and assumptions may vary widely among different industry sources.
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Prospectus contains certain “forward-looking statements”. These forward looking statements can
generally be identified by words or phrases such as “aim”, “anticipate”, “believe”, “expect”, “estimate”,
“intend”, “objective”, “plan”, “project”, “shall”, “will”, “will continue”, “will pursue” or other words or
phrases of similar meaning. Similarly, statements that describe our strategies, objectives, plans or goals
are also forward-looking statements. All forward looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and
assumptions about us that could cause actual results and property valuations to differ materially from
those contemplated by the relevant forward looking statement.

Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our expectations include, but
are not limited to the following:-

» General economic and business conditions in the markets in which we operate and in the local,
regional, national and international economies;

» Changes in laws and regulations relating to the sectors/areas in which we operate;

» Increased competition in the Industry which we operate;

» Factors affecting the Industry in which we operate;

» Our ability to meet our capital expenditure requirements;

» Fluctuations in operating costs;

« Our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel,

» Changes in political and social conditions in India, the monetary and interest rate policies of India
and other countries;

» Inflation, deflation, unanticipated turbulence in interest rates, equity prices or other rates or prices;

»  The performance of the financial markets in India and globally;

» Any adverse outcome in the legal proceedings in which we are involved;

» Our failure to keep pace with rapid changes in technology;

»  The occurrence of natural disasters or calamities;

»  Other factors beyond our control;

»  Our ability to manage risks that arise from these factors;

» Conflict of Interest with affiliated companies, the promoter group and other related parties; and

» Changes in government policies and regulatory actions that apply to or affect our business.

For a further discussion of factors that could cause our actual results to differ, refer to section titled “Risk
Factors” and chapter titled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations” beginning on pages 21 and 210 respectively of this Prospectus. By their nature, certain
market risk disclosures are only estimates and could be materially different from what actually occurs in
the future. As a result, actual future gains or losses could materially differ from those that have been
estimated.

Future looking statements speak only as of the date of this Prospectus. Neither we, our Directors, Book
Running Lead Manager, Underwriter nor any of their respective affiliates have any obligation to update
or otherwise revise any statements reflecting circumstances arising after the date hereof or to reflect the
occurrence of underlying events, even if the underlying assumptions do not come to fruition. In
accordance with SEBI requirements, the BRLM and our Company will ensure that investors in India are
informed of material developments until the grant of listing and trading permission by the Stock
Exchange.
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SECTION Il - RISK FACTORS

An investment in Equity Shares involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider all the
information in this Prospectus, including the risks and uncertainties described below, before making an
investment in our Equity Shares. In making an investment decision, prospective investors must rely on
their own examination of our Company and the terms of this Issue including the merits and risks involved.
Any potential investor in, and subscriber of, the Equity Shares should also pay particular attention to the
fact that we are governed in India by a legal and regulatory environment in which some material respects
may be different from that which prevails in other countries. The risks and uncertainties described in this
section are not the only risks and uncertainties we currently face. Additional risks and uncertainties not
known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may also have an adverse effect on our business. If any
of the following risks, or other risks that are not currently known or are now deemed immaterial, actually
occur, our business, results of operations and financial condition could suffer, the price of our Equity
Shares could decline, and you may lose all or any part of your investment. Additionally, our business
operations could also be affected by additional factors that are not presently known to us or that we
currently consider as immaterial to our operations.

Unless otherwise stated in the relevant risk factors set forth below, we are not in a position to specify or
quantify the financial or other implications of any of the risks mentioned herein. Unless otherwise stated,
the financial information of our Company used in this section is derived from our restated financial
statements prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP and the Companies Act, 2013 and its applicable
Companies Act Rules (as amended from time to time) and restated in accordance with the SEBI ICDR
Regulations. To obtain a better understanding, you should read this section in conjunction with the
chapters titled “Our Business” beginning on page 153, “Our Industry” beginning on page 132 and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” beginning
on page 210 respectively, of this Prospectus as well as other financial information contained herein.

The following factors have been considered for determining the materiality of Risk Factors:
° Some events may not be material individually but may be found material collectively;
° Some events may have material impact qualitatively instead of quantitatively; and

° Some events may not be material at present but may have material impact in future.

The financial and other related implications of risks concerned, wherever quantifiable, have been
disclosed in the risk factors mentioned below. However, there are risk factors where the impact may not
be quantifiable and hence the same has not been disclosed in such risk factors. Unless otherwise stated,
the financial information of the Company used in this section is derived from our financial statements
under Indian GAAP, as restated in this Prospectus. Unless otherwise stated, we are not in a position to
specify or quantify the financial or other risks mentioned herein. For capitalized terms used but not
defined in this chapter, refer to the chapter titled “Definitions and Abbreviation” beginning on page 3 of
this Prospectus. The numbering of the risk factors has been done to facilitate ease of reading and
reference and does not in any manner indicate the importance of one risk factor over another. The risk
factors are classified as under for the sake of better clarity and increased understanding:
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INTERNAL RISK FACTORS

BUSINESS RISK

1. Currently our Company is also involved in a civil and tax related proceedings; any adverse
decision in such proceedings may render us liable to liabilities and penalties and may adversely affect
our business and results of operations.

Internal

External

Business Risk

Issue Related

Others

Industry Related

Also, there is no assurance that in future, we, our promoters, our directors or group companies may not
face legal proceedings; any adverse decision in such legal proceedings may impact our business. For
further details in relation to legal proceedings involving our Company, Promoters, Directors, and Group
Company see the chapter titled “Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments™ on page 234 of this

Prospectus.
Name of | Crimin | Civil/ Tax Labou | Consume | Complaint | Aggregate
Entity al Arbitratio | Proceed | r r S under | amount
Proceed | n ings Disput | Complai | Section 138 | involved
ings Proceeding es nts of NI Act, | (Rs. In
S 1881 lakhs)
Company
By the | Nil 3 Nil Nil Nil Nil Not
Company ascertaina
ble
Against the | Nil 1 4 Nil Nil Nil 69.77
Company
Promoters
By the | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Promoter
Against the | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Promoter
Group Companies
By Group | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Company
Against Nil Nil 1 Nil Nil Nil 0.20
Group
Company

Directors other than promoters
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By the | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Directors
Against the | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Directors

*NL.A. = Not Applicable

Our Company has filed an Application (“Application”) before the Regional Director, Western Region,
Mumbai dated March 7, 2019 to condone the inadvertent error for the delay in appointment of company
secretary under Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Future implication of the matter:

It shall be noted that if a company makes any default in complying with the provisions of Section 203 of
the Companies Act, 2013, such company shall be liable to a penalty of INR 5 lakhs and every director
and key managerial personnel of the company who is in default shall be liable to a penalty of INR 50,000
and where the default is a continuing one, with a further penalty of INR 1,000 for each day after the first
during which such default continues but not exceeding INR 5 lakhs. Therefore, if the said Application of
our Company for condonation of delay in appointment of company secretary is not admitted, it may
expose our Company to the abovementioned penalty or any other penalty as may be decided by the
Regional Director.

Our Company has filed a Compounding Application (“Application”) before the Regional Director,
Western Region, Mumbai dated March 10, 2019 to compound the inadvertent error for not opening a
separate bank in a scheduled bank as required by proviso to section 42(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Future implication of the matter:

It shall be noted that in case the Application is admitted, our Company shall be bound to pay the
compounded amount as may be directed by the Regional Director. It shall be further noted that in case
the Application stands rejected, our Company, its Promoters and Directors may be liable for a penalty
which may extend to the amount raised through private placement or INR 2 crore (whichever is lower)
and our Company may also be directed to refund all the monies raised through private placement (along
with interest).

Our Company has filed an Application (“Application”) before the Regional Director, Western Region,
Mumbai dated March 10, 2019 to condone the inadvertent delay in seeking prior approval of Central
Government under section 297 of the Companies Act, 1956 (now Section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013).

Future implication of the matter:

It shall be noted that if the said Application of our Company for condonation of delay in seeking prior
approval of Central Government under section 297 of the Companies Act, 1956 is not admitted, it may
expose our Company to a penalty as may be decided by the Regional Director.

2. Our Company specialises in creating designs as per the trend followed by global companies,
we therefore stand at a risk of facing infringement claims against copying any patented designs.

We believe our Company’s unique strength is creating designs which are as per the global trend and in
fashion. For that, team of our Company travels across different countries to select trending designs being
followed by global companies. We replicate such designs apart from creating our own designs which are
then used in our textile fabrics. Certain designs in the textile industry is patented and unauthorized use of
such designs may lead to infringement claims, litigations, and penalty among others. Such incidents may
drain our resources towards non-core activities leading to financial and operational losses. However, our
Company ensures that no patented designs are used in our manufacturing and till date our Company has
not faced any such actions, suits, legal claims from any of the Company, but we may not be able to assure
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that such adverse situation will not arise in future, occurrence of which may adversely impact our business
operations.

3. In 2011, our manufacturing facility was collapsed which has adversely affected our facility
and installed machines, the insurance claim for the same could not be sustained.

Our Company has constructed its manufacturing facility in year 2007 located in Bhiwandi, Maharashtra
by installing old looms requiring high usage of power. In 2011, the said manufacturing unit was collapsed
due to improper construction of premises and weakening of soil beneath the foundation, which led to the
collapse of the manufacturing facility and all the machineries installed inside the premises. Due to such
improper construction which was not covered under the terms of the insurance policy, our Company could
not avail the insurance claim for the damage from the Insurance Company. Further, due to this, operations
of our Company were severely affected which also led to losses from FY 2012-13 to FY 2015-16 as per
our Restated Financial statements. Occurrence of any such events in future due to accidents, damages or
any other misfortunes could adversely impact the overall business activity of the Company.

4. Our Company does not own the land on which our registered and manufacturing office is
located. Any dispute in relation to the said places would have a material adverse effect on our business
and results of operations.

We operate from our registered office situated at 206, Gambhir Industrial Estate, Off Aarey Road, Opp.
Paramount Print, Goregaon (East), Mumbai — 400063, Maharashtra, India. The land on which our
registered office is located is owned by our Promoter Kashyap Gambhir and have been taken on lease by
our Company. The duration of lease is for 36 months commencing 1* February, 2018 at a Fee of Rs.
34,920 p.a.

Further, our manufacturing facility is located at T-1, Building Plot No. T, S.no. 157/1, Paiki at Village
Sonale, Talathi Saja : Temghar, Tal. Bhiwandi, Thane — 421032. Our Company do not own the land on
which the facility is constructed and the land is taken on lease for 36 months commencing from 1%
February, 2018 at a Fee of Rs. 34,920 p.a.

Although the lease agreements can be extended for further period, but we cannot assure that we will have
the right to occupy, the aforementioned premises in future, or that we will be able to continue with the
uninterrupted use of this property, which may impair our operations and adversely affect our financial
condition.

For further details of our Land and Properties, please refer to the chapter titled "Our Business" beginning
on page 153 of this Prospectus.

5. Machines installed in our manufacturing facility are used and old, which may affect the
efficiency of the production process.

Textile industry is largely dependent on the machinery and technology being used for the manufacturing
process. Better quality machines which are new and advanced in technologies perform more efficiently
in terms of speed of manufacturing, power consumed during the process among other factors. Machineries
installed in our manufacturing facility are used and old which were manufactured a decade ago. Further,
all of these machines collapsed during the facility collapse in 2011, but they were recovered from the
debris and were refurbished for use. Since the machineries being used are old, our manufacturing process
may not be as efficient as other machineries which are new with advanced technology. Owing to high
capital expenditures required for setting up new machineries, our Company may not be able to timely
update our machineries with the advanced versions affecting our overall operations.

As on date of Prospectus, Details of machineries mentioning total life of Machinery and No. of years
machinery used is as under:
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. . No. of Years

Name of uanti Total life of .
Machinery ° ty VEEls elales Machinery Maﬁ?égery
Rapier Looms 19 12/12/2007 | Win Worth 15 Years 10 Years
Air Jet Looms 24 16/02/2011 | Tessitura Sootovento | 15 Years 7 Years
Wrapping 2007-08 | Prashant Gramatex 15 Years 4 to 10 years
Machine 3
Folding Machine 1 22/01/2015 | Gayatri 15 Years 3 Years

2009/ 2010 | Alphatex Engineering | 15 Years 8 Years

[ Shri Vignesh
Coning Machine 2 Machine
Single End 25/04/2015 | Prashant Gramatex 15 Years 3 Years
Sizing Machine 1
Packing Machine 1 22/01/2016 | Pradeep Enterprises 15 Years 2 Years
Beam Trolly 21/11/2011 | Quality Engineering | 15 Years 6 Years
1 Works

Knotting 2009-10 | Deev Jyoti / Shiv Tex | 15 Years 8 Years
Machine 1
Cleaning 2015 Made locally 15 Years 3 Years
Machine 1

2013-2016 | Horizon Airtech 15 Years 2 Years | 5
Air Compressor 5 Years

2018-19 | FX Multitech Pwt. | 15 years -
Air Compressor 1 Ltd.
Humidification 2014 Best Air Firm Tamil | Notavailable | Not available
Plant 1 Nadu
Goods Lift 1 2014 Star Elevators 15 Years 3 Years
Dryer 1 2014 Excal Enterprises 15 Years 3 Years
Electric 2007-2014 | Made locally 15 Years 3-10 Years
Stabilizer 6
6. Our Company at present does not have diversity in their product offering.

In the textile industry, companies that are engaged in the manufacturing of varieties of fabrics have a
diversified product portfolio and are better able to manage customers’ requirements cyclicality than units
manufacturing limited type of fabrics. Our Company manufactures fabrics using cotton, linen, cotton
linen blended and cotton lycra. With the availability of diversified product portfolio, more number of
options are provided to customers to choose from. Likewise, a wider range of fabrics, colours, and designs
helps forge strong relationships with garment traders, resulting in a preferred vendor status. Our Company
is present only in limited segment, and hence stands at an uncomfortable position where we may lose
certain customers demanding varieties of options.

7. Our Company has a negative cash flow in its operating activities, investing activities and
financing activities in past, details of which are given below. Sustained negative cash flow could impact
our growth and business.

Our Company had negative operating cash flows from our operating, investing and financing activities in
the previous years as per the Restated Financial Statements and the same are summarized as under:

Amount (Rs. In lakhs)
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For_the Period For the year ended 31* March
Particulars ending on
September 30| o518 | 2017 | 2016 | 2015 | 2014
2018
Cash Flow from / (used in)
Operating Activities 148.09 245.14 896.68 | 163.20 | 430.85 | (139.49)
Cash Flow from / (used in)
Investing Activities (22.14) 0.08 | (20.38) | (85.45) | (231.83) | (319.29)
Cash Flow from / (used in)
Financing Activities (124.39) | (247.90) | (874.25) | (80.95) | (197.05) | 462.51

Cash flow of a company is a key indicator to show the extent of cash generated from operations to meet
capital expenditure, pay dividends, repay loans and make new investments without raising finance from
external resources. If we are not able to generate sufficient cash flows in future, it may adversely affect
our business and financial operations.

8. Textile is a capital intensive industry, we may not be able to continuously invest in capacity
expansions due to fund constraints, or any other internal or external reasons.

Textile industry in general is capital intensive and requires continuous investment in capital asset for
expansion of its manufacturing capacity for continuous growth. Since most of the facility runs at optimum
capacity, any increase in demand or market size more than the current production capacity, will require
capacity expansion. Our Company is currently running at 96% capacity and generated Rs.3,663.49 lakhs
in total revenue for the period ended on September 30, 2018 and Rs. 6433.90 Lakhs in Total Revenue for
the Financial Year ended March 31, 2018.

Since our Company is growing both in terms of revenue and production, any further increase in demand
from our customers, our expansion in new markets will require us to invest in new machinery to add more
capacity. Such expansion will require us extensive capital investment in our manufacturing facility which
may cause stress on our financials as we may be required to take rely on our lenders/financial institutions
for funding the capacity expansion. Further, we may not be able to generate sufficient revenue and
profitability from such expansion affecting our business adversely.

9. Certain observation have been made by our Statutory Auditor and Peer reviewed auditor in
their Auditors’ report.

Our Statutory Auditor in their report for the F.Y. 2015-16 has an observation as per Reports under The
Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016, which is as under:

“The company has accepted deposits in contravention of the Companies Act, 2013 and as explained it
was genuine business requirement of the company to accept such deposits for running day to day
business.”

Our Company has not received any show cause notice with respect to above till date. However, there can
be no assurance that our Company may not be subject to any penalties in future for such non compliances.
Also, as on date of this Prospectus, the Company has repaid the whole amount taken as loan in
contravention of the Companies Act and there subsists no default with regards to same.

Further, our peer reviewed auditor in its restated financial statements has following emphasis of matters
which read as under:

a) As Per Our opinion, the company has contravened the provisions of sub section 1 of section 73 of
Companies Act, 2013 read with the ( Acceptance of Deposit) Rules 2014 in past.
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In case any queries are raised by the appropriate authorities, penalty (ies) as prescribed in the law
may be levied on the Company. However, Quantum of penalty depends upon discretion of the
appropriate authority, hence, we are unable to quantify the same.

b) “During the Financial Year 2011-12, one of the factory building of the Company collapsed, for which
the claim has been rejected by insurance Company. Proper treatment of loss on account of the
collapse of the building have been given in restated financials. However, for assets substantially
damaged, AS-28 “Impairment of Asset” was required to be followed by the Company, but due to non-
availability of sufficient data, the Company have departed from the said Accounting Standard.”

As per the management of the company, the factory building was collapsed in Financial Year 2011-12
due to improper building structure. However, the machineries were not substantially damaged and were
restored to its existing production capacity after due repairs. Therefore requirements of AS 28 regarding
Impairment of Assets were not followed by the Company.

10. We may be unable to attract and retain employees with the requisite skills, expertise and
experience, which would adversely affect our operations, business growth and financial results.

We rely on the skills, expertise and experience of our employees to create designs which are preferred by
our customers. Our employees through their years of experience and expertise in designing related activity
are creating varieties of designs as per the global trend and continuously updating them with their own
expertise. Designs being one of our important competitive strengths, we are largely dependent on our in-
house designing team. Our employees may terminate their employment with us prematurely and we may
not be able to retain them. Experienced and skilled workers in the textile industry are highly sought after,
and competition for talent is intense. If we experience any failure to attract and retain competent personnel
or any material increase in employee costs as a result of the shortage of skilled employee, our
competitiveness and business would be damaged, thereby adversely affecting our financial condition and
operating results. Further, if we fail to identify suitable replacements of our departed staff, our business
and operation could be adversely affected and our future growth and expansions may be inhibited.

11. We generate our entire sales from our operations in certain geographical regions especially
Maharashtra and any adverse developments affecting our operations in these regions could have an
adverse impact on our revenue and results of operations.

As on date of the Prospectus, our Company is executing orders majorly from traders in Maharashtra. Such
geographical concentration of our business in this region heightens our exposure to adverse developments
related to competition, as well as economic and demographic changes in this region which may adversely
affect our business prospects, financial conditions and results of operations. We may not be able to
leverage our experience in this region to expand our operations in other parts of India and overseas
markets, should we decide to further expand our operations.

Factors such as competition, culture, regulatory regimes, business practices and customs, industry needs,
transportation, in other markets where we may expand our operations may differ from those in this region,
and our experience in such region may not be applicable to other markets. In addition, as we enter new
markets and geographical areas, we are likely to compete not only with national players, but also local
players who might have an established local presence, are more familiar with local regulations, business
practices and industry needs, have stronger relationships with local contractors, farmers, relevant
government authorities, and who have access to existing waste sources or are in a stronger financial
position than us, all of which may give them a competitive advantage over us. Our inability to expand at
other locations may adversely affect our business prospects, financial conditions and results of operations.
While our management believes that the Company has requisite expertise and vision to grow and mark
its presence in other markets going forward, investors should consider our business and prospects in light
of the risks, losses and challenges that we face as an early-stage company and should not rely on our
results of operations for any prior periods as an indication of our future performance.
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12. Our Company has not complied with certain statutory provisions and has made delayed filing
of required forms with the Registrar of Companies. Such non-compliances/lapses may attract
penalties.

Our Company is required under the Companies Act to make certain filings with the Registrar of
Companies, from time to time within the stipulated period. Our Company had on certain occasions made
delayed/lapsed in filing of required forms and certain filings were made which were inadequate in nature.
Further, our Company has not complied with certain statutory provisions in the past including but not
limited to the following:

e  The paid up capital of our Company was more than Rupees 100 lakhs after March 15, 2008 and
pursuant to Section 297 of the Companies Act, 1956, our Company was required to take previous
approval of Central Government before entering into any contract inter alia with a director of the
company or his relative, a firm in which such a director or relative is a partner, or a private company
of which the director is a member or director. However, our Company has not taken approval of
Central Government before entering into such contracts.

e We have in the past, not complied with the provisions of Section 314(1) of the Companies Act,
1956 with respect to appointment of relatives of directors to an “office or place of profit.” The said
appointments had to be approved by the shareholders by passing special resolutions, which need
to be filed with RoC within prescribed time. If any office or place of profit is held in contravention
of the provisions of Section 314 (1), the relatives of the directors shall be inter alia, deemed to have
vacated his office as such, on and from the date next following the date of the general meeting of
the Company and shall be liable to refund any remuneration received from the Company.

¢ Non-compliance with Section 383A of Companies Act 1956 and section 203 of Companies Act,
2013 by not appointing a Company Secretary for some period of time. However, as on date of the
Prospectus, our Company has appointed a Company Secretary.

e Inpast, our Company has made erroneous filling of annual returns for certain financial years which
reflects incorrect details pertaining to members of the Company and transfers executed in the
respective annual return.

e  Provision of Section 73 to 76 of Companies Act 2013 with respect to availment of unsecured loans
from persons other than the directors, relatives of directors and members of the Company during
the past. However, as on date of this Prospectus our company has repaid the loan taken in violation
of section 73 to 76 of Companies Act, 2013.

e  Provision of Section 42 of Companies Act, 2013 with respect to Separate bank account for Money
received from Private Placement on July 6, 2015.

However, our Company has filed applications dated March 7, 2019, March 10, 2019 and March 10, 2019
with the Regional Director, Western Region, Mumbai for compounding of offences committed under
Sections 42, 188 (erstwhile Section 297 ) and 203 of the Companies Act , 2013 respectively.

No show cause notice in respect of the above has been received by the Company till date, any penalty
imposed for such non-compliance in future by any regulatory authority could affect our financial
conditions to that extent. Such delay/non-compliance may in the future render us liable to statutory
penalties and could have serious consegquences on our operations.

13. We require a number of approvals, NOCs, licences, registrations and permits in the ordinary
course of our business. Some of the approvals are required to be transferred in the name of “Arted;
Fabs Limited” from “Artedz Fabs Private Limited” pursuant to name change of our company and any
failure or delay in obtaining the same in a timely manner may adversely affect our operations.
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We require a number of approvals, licenses, registrations and permits in ordinary course of our business.
Additionally, we need to apply for renewal of approvals which expire, from time to time, as and when
required in the ordinary course. Also, we were a private limited company in the name of “Artedz Fabs
Private Limited” which was carrying business of manufacturing of finished and designed cotton and linen
fabrics. After complying with the relevant procedure of Companies Act, 1956/2013, the said private
limited company was converted into a public limited company in the year 2018. After conversion there
was change of name of the company from “Artedz Fabs Private Limited” to “Artedz Fabs Limited”. We
shall be taking necessary steps for transferring the approvals in new name of our company. In case we
fail to transfer/obtain the same in name of the company same may adversely affect our business or we
may not be able to carry our business.

Any failure to renew the approvals that have expired, or to apply for and obtain the required approvals,
licences, registrations or permits, or any suspension or revocation of any of the approvals, licences,
registrations and permits that have been or may be issued to us, could result in delaying the operations of
our business, which may adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and
prospects. Currently, renewal of License to set up textile manufacturing business given by Group Gram
Panchayat, Sonale is pending. Additionally, our company is yet to apply for approvals mentioned below,
which is also given in ‘Government and Other Statutory Approvals Chapter’ on page 241 of this
Prospectus.

i)  NOC from Directorate of Industries/DIC-Thane/JSI-MMR for setting up industrial unit in MMR
Zone | and Il area

ii) Consent to Establish issued by Maharashtra State Pollution Control Board.

14, Raw materials constitute a significant percentage of the Company’s total expenses.
Particularly, any increase in cotton yarn prices and any decrease in the supply of cotton yarn would
materially adversely affect the Company’s business.

Raw materials constitute a significant percentage of the total expenses of the Company. Inventories costs
accounted for 76.95% and 73.51% of total expenses for the period ended on September 30, 2018 and for
the Financial Year ended on 31% March, 2018 respectively. The primary raw material used by the
Company is cotton yarn. We are exposed to fluctuations in the prices of our major raw material, Cotton
yarn which is directly related to the prices of cotton bales. We may be unable to control factors affecting
the price at which we procure our raw material. We also face the risks associated with compensating for
or passing on such increase in our cost of production on account of such fluctuations in prices to our
customers. Upward fluctuations in the prices of raw material may thereby affect our margins and
profitability, resulting in a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations. However, Company operates on receiving advance orders and accordingly plans to minimize
the impact of raw material price fluctuation. For further details of our procurement operations and our
cost of production, refer chapters titled “Our Business” and “Financial Statements as restated”
beginning on page 153 and 209 of this Prospectus.

15. Our Company currently market its product through various distributors which is done
completely from offline market.

Owing to our relationship with various distributors and traders, our Company at present generates 100%
of its revenue from offline market. Our Company does not have any presence in online market through
any of the e-commerce portals. India including the countries abroad, have in recent past witnessed a shift
in buying pattern particularly clothes from offline to online model. Customers prefers to purchase their
products on-the-go rather than visiting shops which consumes time and effort. With the evolvement of e-
commerce websites, online market have been witnessing continuous growth. Since, we are not present in
the online market, we may see lower demand of our products as the customers may continue shifting from
offline to online model, leading to lower operational and financial performance.
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16. Our Company does not enter into any binding agreement with its customers at the time of
receiving orders. Company may not be able to enforce any claims on customers in case of non-
acceptance of manufactured products by them.

Our Company manufactures textile fabrics on the basis of orders placed by our customers. Post that, we
place orders for the raw material required in the production and initiate the production process. Once the
production is completed, the same is delivered to the customers and subsequently consideration is
received as per the credit terms.

However, Company do not enter into any agreement with our customers which legally binds them for
acceptance of the orders they have placed as the business operations are performed primarily on the basis
of trusts and relationships. Our customer may deny to take the delivery of goods owing to any reasons,
which may impact our financial position adversely, since we do not have any legal right to enforce the
purchase order on our custo mers. However, our Company have not faced any such situation in the
past, but we may not be able to assure that such actions by our customers will not occur in future.

17. Currently we have an aggregate outstanding export obligation amounting to a total duty saved
of Rs. 23.66 Lacs, which needs to be fulfilled. Failure to meet export obligation would entail payment
of the amount of proportionate duty saved together with interest.

Currently, we have an outstanding export obligation amounting to a total duty saved of Rs. 23.66 lacs
which needs to be fulfilled. This amount pertains to various procured capital assets imported at
concessional rate of import duty under EPCG scheme. For further information of details of the licenses
and outstanding export obligations please refer chapter titled “Our Business” on page 153 of this
Prospectus. Any failure to meet such export obligation would entail payment of the amount of
proportionate duty saved together with interest.

18. Our results of operations may be materially adversely affected by our failure to anticipate and
respond to changes in fashion trends and consumer preferences in a timely manner.

Our results of operations depend upon the continued demand by customers for our products and design.
We believe that our success depends in large part upon our ability to anticipate, and respond in a timely
manner to changing fashion trends and customer‘s demands and preferences and upon the appeal of our
products. Though we have been receiving good response from the market which can be reflected with the
increase in our turnover year on year and with our turnover crossing Rs. 3,662.75 Lakhs for the period
ended on September 30, 2018 and Rs. 6,426.28 Lakhs for the Financial Year ended on 31% March, 2018,
in case there is any slowdown in the Fabric industry or if the Fabric products go off-trend, our revenue
from operations could be adversely affect. Any decline in demand for our products, or a failure to
anticipate market trends could, among other things, lead to lower sales, excess inventories and higher
markdowns, each of which could have a material adverse effect on our reputation, results of operations
and financial condition.

19. Changes in technology may render our current technologies obsolete or require us to make
substantial capital investments.

Modernization and technology up-gradation is essential to provide better quality product. Although we
strive to keep our technology in line with the latest standards, we may be required to implement new
technology or upgrade the existing employed by us. Further, the costs in upgrading our technology could
be significant which could substantially affect our finances and operations. Our failure or inability to
incorporate any change in technology might place our competitors at an advantage in terms of costs,
efficiency and timely delivery of the final products.

20. Our Company has witnessed an increase in trade receivables, inability to recover our
receivables may cause financial crunch.
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Our sales are generally made on credit terms of 60 days to 90 days. During the period of September 30,
2018, Fiscals 2018, 2017, and 2016, the accounts receivables turnover days of our Company was 214
days, 191 days, 129 days, and 104 days respectively. As at September 30, 2018, Fiscals 2018, 2017 and
2016 trade receivables of Rs. 4,315.80 Rs. 3,370.22 Lakhs, Rs. 1,874.32 Lakhs, and Rs. 1,104.64 Lakhs
respectively. Our management consider that a long credit period inevitably increases the potential credit
risk of our Company. There is no assurance that all such amounts due to our Company will be settled on
time. Accordingly, our Company faces credit risk in collecting the trade receivable due from the
customers. Our Company’s performance, liquidity and profitability will be adversely affected if
significant amounts due to our Company are not settled on time. The bankruptcy or deterioration of the
credit condition of any of our major customers could also materially and adversely affect our business.

21. Certain activities in our manufacturing process is done on job-work basis. Inability to get
satisfactory level of service from them may impact our brand image and hence profitability.

Manufacturing of textile fabrics goes through many processes which requires large set of machineries and
facility area. Some of our processes, like, dyeing, finishing are outsourced on job work basis. These job
workers are located at nearby facility which ensures lower cost of transportation. Further, we have long
term relations with these job workers and are well aware of their service levels, however, we do not have
control over these entities or any written or binding agreement with respect to our job works. Inability to
get the necessary job work done on time from these job workers at reasonable costs and terms, could
affect our order execution and hence also our profitability and brand image.

22. Our top customers contribute significantly to our revenues for the period ended September 30,
2018. Any loss of business from one or more of them may adversely affect our revenues and
profitability.

Our top 10 and top 5 customers contributed 63.01% and 41.80% of our revenues for the period ended on
September 30, 2018. However, the composition and revenue generated from these clients might change
as we continue to add new customers in normal course of business. Any decline in our quality standards,
growing competition and any change in the demand for our services by these customers may adversely
affect our ability to retain them. We believe we have maintained good and long term relationships with
our customers. However, there can be no assurance that we will continue to have such long term
relationship with them also any delay or default in payment by these customers may adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations. We cannot assure that we shall generate the same
guantum of business, or any business at all, from these customers, and loss of business from one or more
of them may adversely affect our revenues and profitability.

23. Our top suppliers contributes major portion of our total material purchases. Any disruption in
supplies from them may adversely affect our production process.

Our top 10 and top 5 suppliers contributes around 79.25% and 64.15% of our Total Raw material
purchases of the period ended on September 30, 2018. We do not have any formal agreement with our
raw material suppliers. Though we maintain good relations with them, there can be no assurance that we
shall be able to continue such relations with any or all of them. Any disruption in supplies from these
parties may require us to find additional suppliers. There can be no assurance that we shall be able to find
additional suppliers in time or transact business with them on favourable terms and conditions or the
quality of products supplied by these suppliers will be at par with those of our existing suppliers. Since
such suppliers are not contractually bound to deal with us exclusively, we may face the risk of losing their
services to our competitors. Any disruption in supplies from our suppliers due to inexistence of contracts
may adversely affect our production process, trading activity and consequently our results of operations.

24, We generally do business with our customers on purchase order basis and do not enter into
long-term contracts with most of them.
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Our business is dependent on our continuing relationships with our customers. Our Company does not
has any long-term contract with any of customers. Any change in the buying pattern of our end users or
disassociation of major customers can adversely affect the business of our Company. The loss of or
interruption of work by, a significant customer or a number of significant customers or the inability to
procure new orders on a regular basis or at all may have an adverse effect on our revenues, cash flows
and operations.

25. We have not entered into any technical support service for the maintenance and smooth
functioning of our equipment’s and machineries, which may affect our performance.

Our manufacturing processes involve daily use of technical equipment’s and machineries. They require
periodic maintenance checks and technical support in an event of technical breakdown or malfunctioning.
Our company has not entered into any technical support service agreements with any competent third
party. However, Company has an in-house team for maintenance and advancement of machinery. Our
failure to reduce the downtime in case such events occur may adversely affect our productivity, business
and results of operations.

26. Our Company requires significant amounts of working capital for a continued growth. Our
inability to meet our working capital requirements may have an adverse effect on our results of
operations.

Our business is working capital intensive and requires significant portion of working capital and major
portion of which is utilized towards trade receivables and trade payables. Further, our Company intends
to continue growing by reaching out to newer clients/ customers and also increasing the sales in the
existing customer base. Our growing scale and expansion, may result in increase in the quantum of current
assets. Our inability to maintain sufficient cash flow, credit facility and other sources of fund, in a timely
manner, or at all, to meet the requirement of working capital or pay out of debts, could adversely affect
our financial condition and result of our operations. Summary of our working capital position is given
below:-

Amount (Rs. In lakhs)

I;(;:itot:je For the year ended 31* March
Particulars ended on

Septembe 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

r 30, 2018
A. Current Assets
Inventories 2,419.75 | 2,082.40 | 1,712.64 | 1,514.04 | 1,284.32 | 1,192.58
Trade Receivables 4,315.80 | 3,370.22 | 1,874.32 | 1,104.64 | 1,551.58 778.94
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3.95 2.38 5.06 3.00 6.21 4.24

Short Term Loans & 62.16 | 39.99| 47.75| 3629 | 30.59 24.84

Advances

B. Current Liabilities

Trade Payables 2,953.79 | 2,096.17 | 1,165.52 546.89 | 1,018.58 386.87
Other Current Liabilities 519.56 571.04 303.90 531.09 640.89 367.29
Short Term Provisions 159.96 57.50 26.18 20.43 36.09 10.21
Working Capital (A-B) 3,168.35 | 2,770.29 | 2,144.17 | 1,559.55 | 1,177.15 | 1,236.24

Trade Receivables as % of
total current assets

Trade Payables as % of
total current liabilities

63.45% | 61.33% | 51.50% | 41.56% | 54.01% | 38.94%

81.30% | 76.93% | 77.93% | 49.79% | 60.07% | 50.61%
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217. The operations of our Company are subject to manufacturing risk and may be disrupted by
failure in the facilities. These liabilities and costs could have a material adverse effect on our business,
results of operations and financial condition.

Due to the nature of the business we are required to be compliant with requisite safety requirements and
standards. Our manufacturing facilities are subject to operating risk arising from compliance with the
directives of relevant government authorities. The operations of our Company are also subject to
operating risks, such as breakdown or failure of equipment, power supply or processes, performance
below expected levels of output or efficiency, earthquakes and other natural disasters and industrial
accidents, fire or explosion, including hazards that may cause injury and loss of life, severe damage to
and destruction of property and equipment and environmental damage. Such operating risks may result
in non-compliance with government regulations, property damage and personal injury which may result
in the imposition of civil and criminal penalties, which may adversely affect public perception about our
operations and the perception of our suppliers, clients and employees.

28. We are highly dependent on third parties for supply our raw materials. Further we also job
work few processes by third parties involved in our manufacturing cycle. Any hindrance from such
parties with respect to supplies or quality of products, may affect our production process, resulting into
loss of revenues.

We procure our primary raw material i.e. yarns from third party suppliers. Further we also use third party
job work facilities for few processes such as dyeing, sizing and finishing of our products in units situated
in Bhiwandi, Maharashtra and Tarapur, Maharashtra. Our quality of fabric highly depends upon the
quality of raw material i.e. yarn we procure and the process through which it under goes. Any goods
received by us which do not comply with the quality specifications or standards prevalent in the business
or market segment, may result in customer dissatisfaction, which may have an adverse effect on our sales
and profitability. Also in case of job work carried by third parties for us, any inconsistency in standard,
or any deterioration in quality of services, supplied by them may hamper our reputation and thereby
business operations. Further any refusal from suppliers to adhere to the delivery schedules or to supply in
the necessary quantities may adversely affect our ability to deliver orders on time and as a result we may
lose customers.

In case our Company receives significant higher demand or if there is a need to replace an existing job
worker, there can be no assurance that additional supplies of raw material or job work facilities will be
available and that too on the desired terms in order to enable us to fulfil our orders on time.

29. Credit Rating of our Company.

The cost and availability of capital, amongst other factors, is also dependent on our credit ratings. We had
been rated by CARE Rating on September 28, 2018. Our Company have been last rated CARE BB-
(Stable) on our Long term Bank facilities. Ratings reflect a rating agency‘s opinion of our financial
strength, operating performance, strategic position, and ability to meet our obligations. Any downgrade
of our credit ratings would increase borrowing costs and constrain our access to capital and lending
markets and, as a result, could adversely affect our business. In addition, downgrades of our credit ratings
could increase the possibility of additional terms and conditions being added to any new or replacement
financing arrangements.

30. Our Group Company have incurred losses in past, which may have an adverse effect on our
reputation and business.

The following table sets forth the details of our loss-making Group Company:

Amount in Rs. lakhs
S. No. Name of the Company Profit / (Loss) for Fiscal 2016
1. Toron Fabs Pvt. Ltd. (2.62)
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There can be no assurance that our Group Company will not incur losses in the future, which may have
an adverse effect on our reputation and business.

31. Our industry is labour intensive and our business operations may be materially adversely
affected by strikes, work stoppages or increased wage demands by our employees or those of our
suppliers.

Our industry being labour intensive is highly dependent on labour force for carrying out its manufacturing
operations. Shortage of skilled/unskilled personnel or work stoppages caused by disagreements with
employees could have an adverse effect on our business and results of operations. We have not
experienced any major disruptions in our business operations due to disputes or other problems with our
work force in the past; however there can be no assurance that we will not experience such disruptions in
the future. Such disruptions may adversely affect our business and results of operations and may also
divert the management's attention and result in increased costs.

India has stringent labour legislation that protects the interests of workers, including legislation that sets
forth detailed procedures for the establishment of unions, dispute resolution and employee removal and
legislation that imposes certain financial obligations on employers upon retrenchment. We are also
subject to laws and regulations governing relationships with employees, in such areas as minimum wage
and maximum working hours, overtime, working conditions, hiring and terminating of employees and
work permits. Although our employees are not currently unionized, there can be no assurance that they
will not unionize in the future. If our employees unionize, it may become difficult for us to maintain
flexible labour policies, and we may face the threat of labour unrest, work stoppages and diversion of our
management's attention due to union intervention, which may have a material adverse impact on our
business, results of operations and financial condition.

Further due to increased competition for skilled employees in India over the last few years, we may need
to increase our levels of employee compensation rapidly to remain competitive in attracting the best
possible talent which may result in increased costs and affect our profitability.

32. Conflicts of interest may arise out of common business undertaken by our Company and our
Group Company.

Our Group Company, Toron Fabs Private Limited is also authorized to carry similar activities as those
conducted by our Company. As a result, conflicts of interests may arise in allocating business
opportunities amongst our Company, and our Group Company in circumstances where our respective
interests diverge. In cases of conflict, our Promoters may favour other company in which our Promoters
have interests. There can be no assurance that our Promoters or our Group Company or members of the
Promoter Group will not compete with our existing business or any future business that we may undertake
or that their interests will not conflict with ours. Any such present and future conflicts could have a
material adverse effect on our reputation, business, results of operations and financial condition.

33. We face competition in our business from organized and unorganized players, which may
adversely affect our business operations and financial condition.

The textile industry is highly and increasingly competitive and unorganised, and our results of operations
and financial condition are sensitive to, and may be materially adversely affected by competitive pricing
and other factors. Competition may result in pricing pressures, reduced profit margins, lost market share
or a failure to grow our market share, any of which could substantially harm our business and results of
operations.

The textile segment which we cater to is fragmented and continues to be dominated by unorganised
suppliers. Textile industry also has many large conglomerates giving further competition to players like
us. We compete primarily on the basis of quality, customer satisfaction and marketing. We believe that
in order to compete effectively, we must continue to maintain our reputation, be flexible and prompt in
responding to rapidly changing market demands and customer preferences, and offer customer a wide
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variety of fabrics at competitive prices. There can be no assurance that we can effectively compete with
our competitors in the future, and any such failure to compete effectively may have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

34. Our Company has certain contingent liabilities, which may affect our financial condition.
Detail of contingent liabilities as per our restated financial statement is as under:
(Rs. In Lakhs)

SeAie?;b As at As at As at As at As at
Particulars eF; 30 March March March March March
2018’ 31,2018 | 31,2017 | 31, 2016 | 31, 2015 | 31, 2014

(@) Claim against company
not acknowledge as debt.

(b) Duty saved against EPCG 23.66 23.66 | 23.66| 23.66| 23.66| 23.66

69.77 69.77 69.77 69.77 69.77 69.77

For further information on such contingent liabilities, see “Financial Statements” on page 209.

In the event that any of these contingent liabilities materialize, our business prospects, financial condition
and results of operations may be adversely affected.

35. The shortage or non-availability of power facilities may adversely affect our manufacturing
processes and have an adverse impact on our results of operations and financial condition.

Our manufacturing processes requires substantial amount of power facilities. The quantum and nature of
power requirements of our industry and Company is such that it cannot be supplemented/ augmented by
alternative/ independent sources of power supply since it involve significant capital expenditure and per
unit cost of electricity produced is very high in view of increasing oil prices and other constraints.

We are mainly dependent on State Government for meeting our electricity requirements. Any disruption
/ non availability of power shall directly affect our production which in turn shall have an impact on
profitability and turnover of our Company.

36. We do not generally enter into agreements with our third party job workers or raw material
suppliers. Any disruption in supplies from them may adversely affect our production process.

We have no formal agreement entered into with our third party job workers or raw material suppliers.
Though we maintain good relations with them, there can be no assurance that we shall be able to continue
such relations with any or all of them. Any disruption in supplies from these parties may require us to
find additional suppliers. There can be no assurance that we shall be able to find additional suppliers in
time or transact business with them on favourable terms and conditions or the quality of products supplied
by these suppliers will be at par with those of our existing suppliers. Further we cannot assure you that
our third party job workers will continue to be associated with us on reasonable terms, or at all. Since
such third party job workers are not contractually bound to deal with us exclusively, we may face the risk
of losing their services to our competitors. Any disruption from our third party job workers or suppliers
due to inexistence of contracts may adversely affect our production process and consequently our results
of operations.

37. Any penalty or action taken by any regulatory authorities in future for non-compliance with
provisions of corporate and other law could impact the financial position of our Company to that
extent.

Our Company may have not complied with certain accounting standards and Section 4A of The Payment
of Gratuity Act, 1972, in the past. Although no show cause notice in respect of the same has been received
by our Company till date any penalty imposed for such non-compliance could affect our financial
conditions to that extent. In relation to gratuity we have not received any notice/communication from the
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relevant authority, for the previous defaults till date. However, now our Company is complying with all
the accounting standards and has given effects in the Restated Financial Statements for such non
compliances.

38. Continued operations of our manufacturing facility are critical to our textile business and any
disruption in the operation of our facility may have a material adverse effect on our business, results
of operations and financial condition.

Our manufacturing facility, at Bhiwandi, Maharashtra is subject to operating risks, such as unavailability
of machinery, break-down, obsolescence or failure of machinery, disruption in power supply or processes,
performance below expected levels of efficiency, labour disputes, natural disasters, industrial accidents
and statutory and regulatory restrictions. Our machines have limited lives and require periodic cleaning
as well as annual over hauling maintenance. In the event of a breakdown or failure of such machinery,
replacement parts may not be available and such machinery may have to be sent for repairs or servicing.
We have not entered into any technical support service agreements for the maintenance and smooth
functioning of our equipment‘s and machineries. This may lead to delay and disruption in our production
process that could have an adverse impact on our sales, results of operations, business growth and
prospects.

39. Our Company’s failure to maintain the quality standards of the products could adversely
impact our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our products depend on customer‘s expectations and choice or demand of the customer and trends in the
fashion industry. Any failure to maintain the quality standards of our products may affect our business.
Although we have put in place strict quality control procedures, we cannot assure that our products will
always be able to satisfy our customer’s quality standards. Any negative publicity regarding our
Company, or products, including those arising from any deterioration in quality of our products from our
vendors, or any other unforeseen events could adversely affect our reputation, our operations and our
results from operations.

40. Introduction of alternative textile materials caused by changes in technology or consumer
preferences may affect demand for our existing products which may adversely affect our financial
results and business prospects.

Our products are used mainly by manufacturers of readymade garments / garment houses that require
fabric materials for manufacturing apparel. Our business is affected by change in technology, consumer
preferences, market perception of brand, attractiveness and convenience. Our ability to anticipate such
changes and to continuously develop and introduce new and enhanced products successfully on a timely
basis will be a key factor in our growth and business prospects. There can be no assurance that we will
be able to keep pace with the technological advances that may be necessary for us to remain competitive.
Further, any substantial change in preference of consumers who are end users of our products will affect
our customer’s businesses and, in turn, will affect the demand for our products. Any failure to forecast
and/or meet the changing demands of textile business and consumer preferences may have an adverse
effect on our business, profitability and growth prospects.

41. If we are unable to source business opportunities effectively, we may not achieve our financial
objectives.

Our ability to achieve our financial objectives will depend on our ability to identify, evaluate and
accomplish business opportunities. To grow our business, we will need to hire, train, supervise and
manage new employees and to implement systems capable of effectively accommodating our growth.
However, we cannot assure you that any such employees will contribute to the success of our business or
that we will implement such systems effectively. Our failure to source business opportunities effectively
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. It is
also possible that the strategies used by us in the future may be different from those presently in use. No
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assurance can be given that our analysis of market and other data or the strategies we use or plans in
future to use will be successful under various market conditions.

42. We have in the past entered into related party transactions and may continue to do so in the
future.

Our Company has entered into various transactions with our Promoters, Directors and Promoter Group.
While we believe that all such transactions are conducted on arm’s length basis, there can be no assurance
that we could not have achieved more favourable terms had such transactions were not entered into with
related parties. Furthermore, it is likely that we will enter into related party transactions in future in
compliance with the applicable law. There can be no assurance that such transactions, individually or in
aggregate, will not have an adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operation. For details
on the transactions entered by us, please refer to chapter “Related Party Transactions” beginning on page
207 of the Prospectus.

43. Failure to manage our inventory could have an adverse effect on our net sales, profitability,
cash flow and liquidity.

The results of operations of our business are dependent on our ability to effectively manage our inventory
and stocks. To effectively manage our inventory, we must be able to accurately estimate customer demand
and supply requirements and manufacture new inventory accordingly. If our management has misjudged
expected customer demand it could adversely impact the results by causing either a shortage of products
or an accumulation of excess inventory. Further, if we fail to sell the inventory we manufacture, we may
be required to write-down our inventory or pay our suppliers without new purchases or create additional
vendor financing, which could have an adverse impact on our income and cash flows. Any increase in
sales return beyond the standard levels, may also result in accumulation of inventories and consequently
impact our cash flows.

44, Our Company is dependent on third party transportation providers for the delivery of finished
products and any disruption in their operations or a decrease in the quality of their services could
affect our Company's reputation and results of operations.

Our Company uses third party transportation providers for delivery of our products to the customers.
Though our business has not experienced any disruptions due to transportation strikes in the past, any
future transportation strikes may have an adverse effect on our business. In addition there may be loss or
damage in transit for various reasons including occurrence of accidents or natural disasters. There may
also be delay in delivery of products which may also affect our business and results of operation
negatively. An increase in the freight costs or unavailability of freight for transportation may have an
adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

Further, disruptions of transportation services due to weather-related problems, strikes, lock-outs,
inadequacies in the road infrastructure, or other events could impair ability to procure raw materials on
time. Any such disruptions could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

45, Our insurance coverage may not be adequate.

Our Company has obtained insurance coverage in respect of certain risks. We have taken insurance
policies such as Standard Fire and Special Perils Policy. While we believe that we maintain insurance
coverage in adequate amounts consistent with size of our business, our insurance policies do not cover
all risks, specifically risks like loss of profits, losses due to terrorism, etc. Further, there can be no
assurance that our insurance policies will be adequate to cover the losses in respect of which the insurance
has been availed. If we suffer a significant uninsured loss or if insurance claim in respect of the subject-
matter of insurance is not accepted or any insured loss suffered by us significantly exceeds our insurance
coverage, our business, financial condition and results of operations may be materially and adversely
affected.
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For further details, please refer chapter titled “Our Business” beginning on page 153 of this Prospectus.

46. Our lenders have charge over our movable and immovable properties in respect of finance
availed by us.

We have secured our lenders by creating a charge over our movable and immovable properties in respect
of facilities availed by us from banks and financial institutions. The total amounts outstanding and payable
by us as secured loans were Rs. 1,080.79 Lakhs as on September 30, 2018 as per Restated Financial
Statements. In the event we default in repayment of the facilities availed by us and any interest thereof,
our properties may be forfeited by lenders, which in turn could have significant adverse effect on business,
financial condition or results of operations. For further information on the Financial Indebtedness please
refer to page 229 of this Prospectus.

47. Our lenders have imposed certain restrictive conditions on us under our financing
arrangements.

Under our financing arrangements, we are required to obtain the prior, written lender consent for, among
other matters, changes in our capital structure, formulate a scheme of amalgamation or reconstruction and
entering into any other borrowing arrangement. Further, we are required to maintain certain financial
ratios.

There can be no assurance that we will be able to comply with these financial or other loan covenants or
that we will be able to obtain the consents necessary to take the actions we believe are necessary to operate
and grow our business. Our level of existing debt and any new debt that we incur in the future has
important consequences. Any failure to comply with these requirements or other conditions or covenants
under our financing agreements that is not waived by our lenders or is not otherwise cured by us, may
require us to repay the borrowing in whole or part and may include other related costs. Our Company
may be forced to sell some or all of its assets or limit our operations. This may adversely affect our ability
to conduct our business and impair our future growth plans. For further information, see the chapter titled
“Financial Indebtedness” on page 229 of the Prospectus. Though these covenants are restrictive to some
extent for us, however it ensures financial discipline, which would help us in the long run to improve our
financial performance.

48. We have taken guarantees from Promoters and members of Promoter Group in relation to debt
facilities provided to us.

We have taken guarantees from Promoters and members of Promoter Group in relation to our secured
debt facilities availed from our Bankers. In an event any of these persons withdraw or terminate its/their
guarantees, the lender for such facilities may ask for alternate guarantees, repayment of amounts
outstanding under such facilities, or even terminate such facilities. We may not be successful in procuring
guarantees satisfactory to the lender and as a result may need to repay outstanding amounts under such
facilities or seek additional sources of capital, which could adversely affect our financial condition. For
more information please see the chapter titled “Financial Indebtedness” beginning on page 229 of this
Prospectus.

49. We have not made any alternate arrangements for meeting our capital requirements for the
Objects of the issue. Further we have not identified any alternate source of financing the ‘Objects of
the Issue’. Any shortfall in raising / meeting the same could adversely affect our growth plans,
operations and financial performance.

As on date, we have not made any alternate arrangements for meeting our capital requirements for the
Obijects of the Issue. We meet our capital requirements through our bank finance, unsecured loans, owned
funds and internal accruals. Any shortfall in our net owned funds, internal accruals and our inability to
raise debt in future would result in us being unable to meet our capital requirements, which in turn will
negatively affect our financial condition and results of operations. Further, we have not identified any
alternate source of funding and hence any failure or delay on our part to raise money from this issue or
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any shortfall in the issue proceeds may delay the implementation schedule and could adversely affect our
growth plans. For further details please refer to the chapter titled “Objects of the Issue” beginning on page
120 of this Prospectus.

50. Our ability to pay dividends in the future will depend upon our future earnings, financial
condition, cash flows, working capital requirements, capital expenditure and restrictive covenants in
our financing arrangements.

We may retain all our future earnings, if any, for use in the operations and expansion of our business. As
a result, we may not declare dividends in the foreseeable future. Any future determination as to the
declaration and payment of dividends will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend
on factors that our Board of Directors deem relevant, including among others, our results of operations,
financial condition, cash requirements, business prospects and any other financing arrangements.
Accordingly, realization of a gain on shareholders investments may largely depend upon the appreciation
of the price of our Equity Shares. There can be no assurance that our Equity Shares will appreciate in
value. For details of our dividend history, see “Dividend Policy” on page 208 of this Prospectus.

51. Our Company has unsecured loans which are repayable on demand. Any demand loan from
lenders for repayment of such unsecured loans, may adversely affect our cash flows.

As on September 30, 2018, our Company has unsecured loans amounting to Rs. 981.43 lakhs as per
Restated Financial Statements from banks, financial institution and directors. Further, some of these loans
are not repayable in accordance with any agreed repayment schedule and may be recalled by the relevant
lender at any time. Any such unexpected demand or accelerated repayment may have a material adverse
effect on the business, cash flows and financial condition of the borrower against which repayment is
sought. Any demand from lenders for repayment of such unsecured loans, may adversely affect our cash
flows. For further details of unsecured loans of our Company, please refer the chapter titled “Financial
Statements as Restated” beginning on page 209 of this Prospectus.

52. The industry segments in which we operate being fragmented, we face competition from other
players, which may affect our business operational and financial conditions.

The yarn industry is growing rapidly and hence it is competitive on account of both the small and large
players. Players in this industry generally compete with each other on key attributes such as technical
competence, quality of yarn, strong clientele, pricing and timeliness of delivery. Some of our competitors
may have longer industry experience and greater financial, technical and other resources, which may
enable them to react faster in changing market scenario and remain competitive. Growing competition
may result in a decline in our market share and may affect our margins which may adversely affect our
business operations and our financial condition.

53. We are subject to various laws and regulations relating to the handling and disposal of any
hazardous materials and wastes being generated from our assembly facility. If we fail to comply with
such laws and regulations, we can be subjected to prosecution, including imprisonment and fines or
incur costs that could have a material adverse effect on the success of our business.

We are required to obtain registrations from the relevant State Pollution Control Board to be able to
handle and dispose hazardous and wastes. We are also required to take a number of precautionary
measures and follow prescribed practices in this regard.

Further, our company is subject to following certain rules and guidelines, but not limited to:

The Maharashtra Industrial Policy 2013;

Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970;

Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972;

Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 (“ID Act”) and Industrial Dispute (Central) Rules, 1957,
The Factories Act, 1948;

o0 o
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f. The Environment Protection Act, 1986;
g. Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974

Our failure to comply with these laws could result in us being prosecuted, including our directors and
officers responsible for compliance being subjected to imprisonment and fines. We may also be liable for
damage caused to the environment. Any such action could adversely affect our business and financial
condition.

54. We generally do business with our customers on order basis and do not enter into long term
contracts with them.

Our business is dependent on our continuing relationships with our customers. Our Company does not
have any long-term contract with any customers. Any change in the consumption pattern of our customer
or disassociation of major customers can adversely affect the business of our Company. The loss of or
interruption of work by, a significant customer or a number of significant customers or the inability to
procure new orders on a regular basis or at all may have an adverse effect on our revenues, cash flows
and operations.

55. Within the parameters as mentioned in the chapter titled ‘Objects of this Issue’ beginning on
page 120 of this Prospectus, our Company’s management will have flexibility in applying the proceeds
of this Issue. The fund requirement and deployment mentioned in the Objects of this Issue have not
been appraised by any bank or financial institution.

We intend to use entire Issue Proceeds towards meeting working capital requirements, general corporate
purposes and issue expenses. Such deployment is based on certain assumptions and strategy which our
Company believes to implement in future. The funds raised from the Issue may remain idle on account
of change in assumptions, market conditions, strategy of our Company, etc., For further details on the use
of the Issue Proceeds, please refer chapter titled ‘Objects of the Issue’ beginning on page 120 of this
Prospectus. The deployment of funds for the purposes described above is at the discretion of our
Company‘s Board of Directors.

The fund requirement and deployment is based on internal management estimates and has not been
appraised by any bank or financial institution. Accordingly, within the parameters as mentioned in the
chapter titled ‘Objects of the Issue’ beginning on page 120 of this Prospectus, the management will have
significant flexibility in applying the proceeds received by our Company from the Issue. Our Board of
Directors will monitor the proceeds of this Issue. However, Audit Committee will monitor the utilization
of the proceeds of this Issue and prepare the statement for utilization of the proceeds of this Issue.
However in accordance with Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company shall not vary the objects
of the Issue without our Company being authorise to do so by our shareholders by way of special
resolution and other compliances in this regard. Our Promoters and controlling shareholder shall provide
exit opportunity to such shareholders who do not agree to the proposal to vary the objects, at such price,
and in such manner, as may be prescribed by SEBI, in this regard.

56. Our future funds requirements, in the form of issue of capital or securities and/or loans taken
by us, may be prejudicial to the interest of the shareholders depending upon the terms on which they
are eventually raised.

We may require additional capital from time to time depending on our business needs. Any issue of shares
or convertible securities would dilute the shareholding of the existing shareholders and such issuance may
be done on terms and conditions, which may not be favorable to the then existing shareholders. If such
funds are raised in the form of loans or debt, then it may substantially increase our interest burden and
decrease our cash flows, thus prejudicially affecting our profitability and ability to pay dividends to our
shareholders.

57. Negative publicity could adversely affect our revenue model and profitability of our Company.
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Our business is dependent on the trust our customers have reposed in the quality of our services. Any
negative publicity our Company, service, or our brand due to any other unforeseen events could affect
our reputation and our results from operations. Further, our business may also be affected if there is any
negative publicity associated with the services which are being rendered by our Company which may
indirectly result in erosion of our reputation and goodwill.

58. Deployment of funds raised through this Issue shall not be subject to any Monitoring Agency
and shall be purely dependent on the discretion of the management of our Company.

Since, the Issue size is less than Rs.10,000 lakh and as per the provisions of Regulation 16 (1) of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations, there is no mandatory requirement of appointing an Independent Monitoring Agency
for overseeing the deployment of utilization of funds raised through this Issue. The deployment of these
funds raised through this Issue, is hence, at the discretion of the management and the Board of Directors
of our Company and will not be subject to monitoring by any independent agency. Any inability on our
part to effectively utilize the Issue proceeds could adversely affect our financials.

However, Audit Committee will monitor the utilization of the proceeds of this Issue and prepare the
statement for utilization of the proceeds of this Issue. However in accordance with Section 27 of the
Companies Act, 2013, a company shall not vary the objects of the Issue without our Company being
authorise to do so by our shareholders by way of special resolution and other compliances in this regard.
Our Promoters and controlling shareholder shall provide exit opportunity to such shareholders who do
not agree to the proposal to vary the objects, at such price, and in such manner, as may be prescribed by
SEBI, in this regard.

59. Our success depends largely upon the services of our Directors, Promoters and other Key
Managerial Personnel and our ability to attract and retain them. Demand for Key Managerial
Personnel in the industry is intense and our inability to attract and retain Key Managerial Personnel
may affect the operations of our Company.

Our success is substantially dependent on the expertise and services of our Directors, Promoter and our
Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”). They provide expertise which enables us to make well informed
decisions in relation to our business and our future prospects. Our future performance will depend upon
the continued services of these persons. Demand for KMP in the industry is intense. We cannot assure
you that we will be able to retain any or all, or that our succession planning will help to replace, the key
members of our management. The loss of the services of such key members of our management team and
the failure of any succession plans to replace such key members could have an adverse effect on our
business and the results of our operations.

60. In addition to normal remuneration or benefits and reimbursement of expenses, some of our
Directors and key managerial personnel are interested in our Company to the extent of their
shareholding and dividend entitlement in our Company.

Our Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”) are interested in our Company to the extent of
remuneration paid to them for services rendered and reimbursement of expenses payable to them. In
addition, some of our Directors and KMP may also be interested to the extent of their shareholding and
dividend entitlement in our Company. For further information, see “Capital Structure” and “Our
Management” on pages 103 and 185, respectively, of this Prospectus.

61. Our Promoters and members of the Promoter Group will continue jointly to retain majority
control over our Company after the Issue, which will allow them to determine the outcome of matters
submitted to shareholders for approval.

After completion of the Issue, our Promoters and Promoter Group will collectively own 50.29% of the
Equity Shares. As a result, our Promoter together with the members of the Promoter Group will be able
to exercise a significant degree of influence over us and will be able to control the outcome of any proposal
that can be approved by a majority shareholder vote, including, the election of members to our Board, in
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accordance with the Companies Act and our AoA. Such a concentration of ownership may also have the
effect of delaying, preventing or deterring a change in control of our Company.

In addition, our Promoter will continue to have the ability to cause us to take actions that are not in, or
may conflict with, our interests or the interests of some or all of our creditors or minority shareholders,
and we cannot assure you that such actions will not have an adverse effect on our future financial
performance or the price of our Equity Shares.

62. We may not be successful in implementing our business strategies.

The success of our business depends substantially on our ability to implement our business strategies
effectively. Even though we have successfully executed our business strategies in the past, there is no
guarantee that we can implement the same on time and within the estimated budget going forward, or that
we will be able to meet the expectations of our targeted clients. Changes in regulations applicable to us
may also make it difficult to implement our business strategies. Failure to implement our business
strategies would have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

63. We could be harmed by employee misconduct or errors that are difficult to detect and any such
incidences could adversely affect our financial condition, results of operations and reputation.

Employee misconduct or errors could expose us to business risks or losses, including regulatory sanctions
and cause serious harm to our reputation and goodwill of our Company. There can be no assurance that
we will be able to detect or deter such misconduct. Moreover, the precautions we take to prevent and
detect such activity may not be effective in all cases. Our employees and agents may also commit errors
that could subject us to claims and proceedings for alleged negligence, as well as regulatory actions on
account of which our business, financial condition, results of operations and goodwill could be adversely
affected.

64. Certain agreements may be inadequately stamped or may not have been registered as a result
of which our operations may be adversely affected.

Few of our agreements may not be stamped adequately or registered. The effect of inadequate stamping
is that the document is not admissible as evidence in legal proceedings and parties to that agreement may
not be able to legally enforce the same, except after paying a penalty for inadequate stamping. The effect
of non-registration, in certain cases, is to make the document inadmissible in legal proceedings. Any
potential dispute due to non-compliance of local laws relating to stamp duty and registration may
adversely impact the operations of our Company.

65. Industry information included in this Prospectus has been derived from industry reports
commissioned by us for such purpose. There can be no assurance that such third-party statistical,
financial and other industry information is either complete or accurate.

We have relied on the reports of certain independent third party for purposes of inclusion of such
information in this Prospectus. These reports are subject to various limitations and based upon certain
assumptions that are subjective in nature. We have not independently verified data from such industry
reports and other sources. Although we believe that the data may be considered to be reliable, their
accuracy, completeness and underlying assumptions are not guaranteed and their dependability cannot be
assured. While we have taken reasonable care in the reproduction of the information, the information has
not been prepared or independently verified by us, or any of our respective affiliates or advisors and,
therefore, we make no representation or warranty, express or implied, as to the accuracy or completeness
of such facts and statistics. Due to possibly flawed or ineffective collection methods or discrepancies
between published information and market practice and other problems, the statistics herein may be
inaccurate or may not be comparable to statistics produced for other economies and should not be unduly
relied upon. Further, there is no assurance that they are stated or compiled on the same basis or with the
same degree of accuracy as may be the case elsewhere. Statements from third parties that involve
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estimates are subject to change, and actual amounts may differ materially from those included in this
Prospectus.

66. The requirements of being a listed a public listed company may strain our resources and
impose additional requirements.

With the increased scrutiny of the affairs of a public listed company by shareholders, regulators and the
public at large, we will incur significant legal, accounting, corporate governance and other expenses that
we did not incur in the past. We will also be subject to the provisions of the listing agreements signed
with the Stock Exchanges which require us to file unaudited financial results on a half yearly basis. In
order to meet our financial control and disclosure obligations, significant resources and management
supervision will be required. As a result, management’s attention may be diverted from other business
concerns, which could have an adverse effect on our business and operations. There can be no assurance
that we will be able to satisfy our reporting obligations and/or readily determine and report any changes
to our results of operations in a timely manner as other listed companies. In addition, we will need to
increase the strength of our management team and hire additional legal and accounting staff with
appropriate public company experience and accounting knowledge and we cannot assure that we will be
able to do so in a timely manner.

67. The average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares by our Promoters could be lower than the
floor price.

Our Promoters average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares in our Company may be lower than the Floor
Price of the Price Band as may be decided by the Company in consultation with the BRLM. For further
details regarding average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares by our Promoters in our Company and
build-up of Equity Shares by our Promoters in our Company, please refer chapter title “Capital Structure”
beginning on page 103 of this Prospectus.

ISSUE SPECIFIC RISKS

68. There are restrictions on daily/weekly/monthly movements in the price of the Equity Shares,
which may adversely affect a shareholder’s ability to sell, or the price at which it can sell, Equity Shares
at a particular point in time.

Once listed, we would be subject to circuit breakers imposed by all stock exchanges in India, which does
not allow transactions beyond specified increases or decreases in the price of the Equity Shares. This
circuit breaker operates independently of the index-based market-wide circuit breakers generally imposed
by SEBI on Indian stock exchanges. The percentage limit on circuit breakers is set by the stock exchanges
based on the historical volatility in the price and trading volume of the Equity Shares. The stock exchanges
do not inform us of the percentage limit of the circuit breaker in effect from time to time, and may change
it without our knowledge. This circuit breaker limits the upward and downward movements in the price
of the Equity Shares. As a result of this circuit breaker, no assurance may be given regarding your ability
to sell your Equity Shares or the price at which you may be able to sell your Equity Shares at any particular
time.

69. After this Issue, the price of the Equity Shares may be highly volatile, or an active trading
market for the Equity Shares may not develop.

The price of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges may fluctuate as a result of the factors, including:

Volatility in the Indian and global capital market;

Company’s results of operations and financial performance;

Performance of Company’s competitors,

Adverse media reports on Company or pertaining to the Textile Industry;

Changes in our estimates of performance or recommendations by financial analysts;
Significant developments in India’s economic and fiscal policies; and

Page 43 of 376



e Significant developments in India’s environmental regulations.

Current valuations may not be sustainable in the future and may also not be reflective of future valuations
for our industry and our Company. There has been no public market for the Equity Shares and the prices
of the Equity Shares may fluctuate after this Issue. There can be no assurance that an active trading market
for the Equity Shares will develop or be sustained after this Issue or that the price at which the Equity
Shares are initially traded will correspond to the price at which the Equity Shares will trade in the market
subsequent to this Issue.

70. You will not be able to sell immediately on Stock Exchange any of the Equity Shares you
purchase in the Issue until the Issue receives appropriate trading permissions.

The Equity Shares will be listed on the Stock Exchange. Pursuant to Indian regulations, certain actions
must be completed before the Equity Shares can be listed and trading may commence. We cannot assure
you that the Equity Shares will be credited to investor’s demat accounts, or that trading in the Equity
Shares will commence, within the time periods specified in this Prospectus. Any failure or delay in
obtaining the approval would restrict your ability to dispose of the Equity Shares. In accordance with
section 40 of the Companies Act, 2013, in the event that the permission of listing the Equity Shares is
denied by the stock exchanges, we are required to refund all monies collected from investors.

71. The Issue price of our Equity Shares may not be indicative of the market price of our Equity
Shares after the Issue and the market price of our Equity Shares may decline below the issue price and
you may not be able to sell your Equity Shares at or above the Issue Price.

The Issue Price of our Equity Shares will be determined by book built method. This price is be based on
numerous factors (For further information, please refer chapter titled “Basis for Issue Price” beginning
on page 126 of this Prospectus) and may not be indicative of the market price of our Equity Shares after
the Issue. The market price of our Equity Shares could be subject to significant fluctuations after the
Issue, and may decline below the Issue Price. We cannot assure you that you will be able to sell your
Equity Shares at or above the Issue Price. Among the factors that could affect our share price include
without limitation. The following:

e Half yearly variations in the rate of growth of our financial indicators, such as earnings per share,
net income and revenues;

e  Changes in revenue or earnings estimates or publication of research reports by analysts;

e  Speculation in the press or investment community;

e  General market conditions; and

¢  Domestic and international economic, legal and regulatory factors unrelated to our performance.
72. Sale of Equity Shares by our Promoters or other significant shareholder(s) may adversely

affect the trading price of the Equity Shares.

Any instance of disinvestments of equity shares by our Promoters or by other significant shareholder(s)
may significantly affect the trading price of our Equity Shares. Further, our market price may also be
adversely affected even if there is a perception or belief that such sales of Equity Shares might occur.

73. QIB and Non-Institutional Investors are not permitted to withdraw or lower their Bids (in
terms of quantity of Equity Shares or the Bid Amount) at any stage after submitting a Bid.

Pursuant to the SEBI ICDR Regulations, QIBs and Non-Institutional Investors are not permitted to
withdraw or lower their Bids (in terms of quantity of Equity Shares or the Bid Amount) at any stage after
submitting a Bid. Retail Individual Investors can revise their Bids during the Bid/ Issue Period and
withdraw their Bids until Bid/ Issue Closing Date. While our Company is required to complete Allotment
pursuant to the Issue within six Working Days from the Bid/lssue Closing Date, events affecting the
Bidders’ decision to invest in the Equity Shares, including material adverse changes in international or
national monetary policy, financial, political or economic conditions, our business, results of operations
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or financial condition may arise between the date of submission of the Bid and Allotment. Our Company
may complete the Allotment of the Equity Shares even if such events occur, and such events may limit
the Bidders ability to sell the Equity Shares Allotted pursuant to the Issue or cause the trading price of
the Equity Shares to decline on listing.

EXTERNAL RISKS FACTORS
INDUSTRY RISKS

74. Changes in government regulations or their implementation could disrupt our operations and
adversely affect our business and results of operations.

Our business and industry is regulated by different laws, rules and regulations framed by the Central and
State Government. These regulations can be amended/ changed on a short notice at the discretion of the
Government. If we fail to comply with all applicable regulations or if the regulations governing our
business or their implementation change adversely, we may incur increased costs or be subject to
penalties, which could disrupt our operations and adversely affect our business and results of operations.

OTHER RISKS

75. Significant differences exist between Indian GAAP and other accounting principles, such as
U.S. GAAP and IFRS, which may be material to the financial statements prepared and presented in
accordance with SEBI ICDR Regulations contained in this Prospectus.

As stated in the reports of the Auditor included in this Prospectus under chapter “Financial Statements as
restated” beginning on page 209, the financial statements included in this Prospectus are based on
financial information that is based on the audited financial statements that are prepared and presented in
conformity with Indian GAAP and restated in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, and no
attempt has been made to reconcile any of the information given in this Prospectus to any other principles
or to base it on any other standards. Indian GAAP differs from accounting principles and auditing
standards with which prospective investors may be familiar in other countries, such as U.S. GAAP and
IFRS. Significant differences exist between Indian GAAP and U.S. GAAP and IFRS, which may be
material to the financial information prepared and presented in accordance with Indian GAAP contained
in this Prospectus.

Accordingly, the degree to which the financial information included in this Prospectus will provide
meaningful information is dependent on familiarity with Indian GAAP, the Companies Act and the SEBI
ICDR Regulations. Any reliance by persons not familiar with Indian GAAP on the financial disclosures
presented in this Prospectus should accordingly be limited.

76. You may be subject to Indian taxes arising out of capital gains on the sale of the Equity Shares.

Under the Income-tax Act, 1961, capital gains arising from the sale of equity shares in an Indian company
are generally taxable in India except any gain realised on the sale of shares on a stock exchange held for
more than 12 months will not be subject to capital gains tax in India if the Securities Transaction Tax
(“STT”) has been paid on the transaction. The STT will be levied on and collected by an Indian stock
exchange on which equity shares are sold. Any gain realised on the sale of shares held for more than 12
months to an Indian resident, which are sold other than on a recognised stock exchange and as a result of
which no STT has been paid, will be subject to long term capital gains tax in India. Further, any gain
realised on the sale of shares on a stock exchange held for a period of 12 months or less will be subject
to short term capital gains tax. Further, any gain realised on the sale of listed equity shares held for a
period of 12 months or less which are sold other than on a recognised stock exchange and on which no
STT has been paid, will be subject to short term capital gains tax at a relatively higher rate as compared
to the transaction where STT has been paid in India.

In Finance Bill 2017, Section 10(38) was amended to provide that exemption under this section for
income arising on transfer of equity share acquired on or after 1st day of October 2004 shall be available
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only if the acquisition of share is chargeable to STT under Chapter VII of the Finance (No 2) Act, 2004.
In this case, this provision becomes effective, sale shares acquired on or after 1st day of October 2004 on
which STT was not charged will attract tax under provisions of Long Term Capital Gains.

As per Finance Bill 2018, exemption under section 10(38) for income arising from long term gains on
transfer of equity share shall not be available on or after 1st day of April 2018 if the long term capital
gains exceeds Rs. 1,00,000/- p.a. Such income arising from long term gains on transfer of equity share on
or after 1st day of April 2018 in excess of Rs. 1,00,000/- pa. shall be chargeable at the rate of 10%.

Capital gains arising from the sale of shares will be exempt from taxation in India in cases where an
exemption is provided under a tax treaty between India and the country of which the seller is a resident.
Generally, Indian tax treaties do not limit India’s ability to impose tax on capital gains. As a result,
residents of other countries may be liable for tax in India as well as in their own jurisdictions on gains
arising from a sale of the shares subject to relief available under the applicable tax treaty or under the
laws of their own jurisdiction.

77. Changing laws, rules and regulations and legal uncertainties, including adverse application
of tax laws, may adversely affect our business and financial performance.

Our business and financial performance could be adversely affected by unfavourable changes in or
interpretations of existing, or the promulgation of new laws, rules and regulations applicable to us and
our business. Please refer to “Key Industry Regulations and Policies” on page 169 for details of the laws
currently applicable to us. There can be no assurance that the Government of India may not implement
new regulations and policies which will require us to obtain approvals and licenses from the Government
of India and other regulatory bodies or impose onerous requirements and conditions on our operations.
Any such changes and the related uncertainties with respect to the applicability, interpretation and
implementation of any amendment to, or change to governing laws, regulation or policy in the
jurisdictions in which we operate may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition
and results of operations. In addition, we may have to incur expenditures to comply with the requirements
of any new regulations, which may also materially harm our results of operations. Any unfavourable
changes to the laws and regulations applicable to us could also subject us to additional liabilities.

GST has been implemented with effect from July 1, 2017 and has replaced the indirect taxes on goods
and services such as central excise duty, service tax, central sales tax, state VAT and surcharge currently
being collected by the central and state governments. The GST is expected to increase tax incidence and
administrative compliance. Given the limited availability of information in the public domain concerning
the GST, we are unable to provide any assurance as to the tax regime following implementation of the
GST. The implementation of this new structure may be affected by any disagreement between certain
state Governments, which could create uncertainty. Any future amendments may affect our overall tax
efficiency, and may result in significant additional taxes becoming payable.

Further, the general anti avoidance rules (“GAAR”) provisions have been made effective from assessment
year 2018-19 onwards, i.e.; financial Year 2017-18 onwards and the same may get triggered once
transactions are undertaken to avoid tax. The consequences of the GAAR provisions being applied to an
arrangement could result in denial of tax benefit amongst other consequences. In the absence of any
precedents on the subject, the application of these provisions is uncertain.

The application of various Indian tax laws, rules and regulations to our business, currently or in the future,
is subject to interpretation by the applicable taxation authorities. If such tax laws, rules and regulations
are amended, new adverse laws, rules or regulations are adopted or current laws are interpreted adversely
to our interests, the results could increase our tax payments (prospectively or retrospectively) and/or
subject us to penalties. Further, changes in capital gains tax or tax on capital market transactions or sale
of shares could affect investor returns. As a result, any such changes or interpretations could have an
adverse effect on our business and financial performance.
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78. Financial instability in Indian financial markets could adversely affect our Company’s results
of operations and financial condition.

In this globalized world, the Indian economy and financial markets are significantly influenced by
worldwide economic, financial and market conditions. Any financial turmoil, say in the United States of
America, Europe, China or other emerging economies, may have a negative impact on the Indian
economy. Although economic conditions differ in each country, investors’ reactions to any significant
developments in one country can have adverse effects on the financial and market conditions in other
countries. A loss in investor confidence in the financial systems, particularly in other emerging markets,
may cause increased volatility in Indian financial markets. Indian financial markets have also experienced
the contagion effect of the global financial turmoil. Any prolonged financial crisis may have an adverse
impact on the Indian economy, thereby resulting in a material and adverse effect on our Company's
business, operations, financial condition, profitability and price of its Shares. Stock exchanges in India
have in the past experienced substantial fluctuations in the prices of listed securities.

79. Political instability or a change in economic liberalization and deregulation policies could
seriously harm business and economic conditions in India generally and our business in particular.

The Gol has traditionally exercised and continues to exercise influence over many aspects of the
economy. Our business and the market price and liquidity of our Equity Shares may be affected by interest
rates, changes in Government policy, taxation, social and civil unrest and other political, economic or
other developments in or affecting India. The rate of economic liberalization could change, and specific
laws and policies affecting the information technology sector, foreign investment and other matters
affecting investment in our securities could change as well. Any significant change in such liberalization
and deregulation policies could adversely affect business and economic conditions in India, generally,
and our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations, in particular.

80. Global economic, political and social conditions may harm our ability to do business, increase
our costs and negatively affect our stock price.

Global economic and political factors that are beyond our control, influence forecasts and directly affect
performance. These factors include interest rates, rates of economic growth, fiscal and monetary policies
of governments, inflation, deflation, foreign exchange fluctuations, consumer credit availability,
fluctuations in commodities markets, consumer debt levels, unemployment trends and other matters that
influence consumer confidence, spending and tourism. Increasing volatility in financial markets may
cause these factors to change with a greater degree of frequency and magnitude, which may negatively
affect our stock prices.

81. Foreign investors are subject to foreign investment restrictions under Indian law that limits
our ability to attract foreign investors, which may adversely impact the market price of the Equity
Shares.

Under the foreign exchange regulations currently in force in India, transfers of shares between non-
residents and residents are freely permitted (subject to certain exceptions) if they comply with the pricing
guidelines and reporting requirements specified by the RBI. If the transfer of shares, which are sought to
be transferred, is not in compliance with such pricing guidelines or reporting requirements or fall under
any of the exceptions referred to above, then the prior approval of the RBI will be required. Additionally,
shareholders who seek to convert the Rupee proceeds from a sale of shares in India into foreign currency
and repatriate that foreign currency from India will require a no objection/ tax clearance certificate from
the income tax authority. There can be no assurance that any approval required from the RBI or any other
government agency can be obtained on any particular terms or at all.

82. The extent and reliability of Indian infrastructure could adversely affect our Company’s
results of operations and financial condition.
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India’s physical infrastructure is in developing phase compared to that of many developed nations. Any
congestion or disruption in its port, rail and road networks, electricity grid, communication systems or
any other public facility could disrupt our Company’s normal business activity. Any deterioration of
India’s physical infrastructure would harm the national economy, disrupt the transportation of goods and
supplies, and add costs to doing business in India. These problems could interrupt our Company’s
business operations, which could have an adverse effect on its results of operations and financial
condition.

83. Any downgrading of India’s sovereign rating by an independent agency may harm our ability
to raise financing.

Any adverse revisions to India’s credit ratings for domestic and international debt by international rating
agencies may adversely impact our ability to raise additional financing, and the interest rates and other
commercial terms at which such additional financing may be available. This could have an adverse effect
on our business and future financial performance, our ability to obtain financing for capital expenditures
and the trading price of our Equity Shares.

84. Natural calamities could have a negative impact on the Indian economy and cause our
Company’s business to suffer.

India has experienced natural calamities such as earthquakes, tsunami, floods etc. in recent years. The
extent and severity of these natural disasters determine their impact on the Indian economy. Prolonged
spells of abnormal rainfall or other natural calamities could have a negative impact on the Indian
economy, which could adversely affect our business, prospects, financial condition and results of
operations as well as the price of the Equity Shares.

85. Terrorist attacks, civil unrests and other acts of violence or war involving India or other
countries could adversely affect the financial markets, our business, financial condition and the price
of our Equity Shares.

Any major hostilities involving India or other acts of violence, including civil unrest or similar events
that are beyond our control, could have a material adverse effect on India’s economy and our business.
Incidents such as the terrorist attacks, other incidents such as those in US, Indonesia, Madrid and London,
and other acts of violence may adversely affect the Indian stock markets where our Equity Shares will
trade as well the global equity markets generally. Such acts could negatively impact business sentiment
as well as trade between countries, which could adversely affect our Company’s business and
profitability. Additionally, such events could have a material adverse effect on the market for securities
of Indian companies, including the Equity Shares.

PROMINENT NOTES

1. Public Issue of 23,10,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each of our Company for cash at
a price of Rs. 36 per Equity Share (“Issue Price”) aggregating Rs. 831.60 Lakhs, of which 1,20,000
Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each will be reserved for subscription by Market Maker to
the Issue (“Market Maker Reservation Portion”). The Issue less the Market Maker Reservation
Portion i.e. Net Issue of 21,90,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each is hereinafter
referred to as the “Net Issue”. The Issue and the Net Issue will constitute 26.99% and 25.58%,
respectively of the post Issue paid up equity share capital of the Company.

2. Investors may contact the Book Running Lead Manager or the Company Secretary & Compliance
Officer for any complaint/clarification/information pertaining to the Issue. For contact details of
the Book Running Lead Manager and the Company Secretary & Compliance Officer, please refer
to chapter titled “General Information” beginning on page 91 of this Prospectus.

3. The pre-issue net worth of our Company as per Restated Standalone Financial Statements was Rs.
1,084.42 Lakhs for the period ended on September 30, 2018 and Rs. 830.17 lakhs for the year
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10.

11.

12.

ended on March 31, 2018. The book value of Equity Share after Issue of Bonus was Rs. 17.35 for
the year ended on September 30, 2018 and Rs. 13.28 for the year ended on March 31, 2018 as per
the Restated Financial Statements of our Company. For more information, please refer to section
titled “Financial Statements” beginning on page 209 of this Prospectus.

The average cost of acquisition per Equity Share by our Promoter is set forth in the table below:

Name of the Promoters No. of Shares held Average cost of Acquisition (in Rs.)
Kashyap Gambhir 18,35,582 8.92
Satbinder Singh Gill 5,50,583 15.82

For further details relating to the allotment of Equity Shares to our Promoters, please refer to the
chapter titled “Capital Structure” beginning on page 103 of this Prospectus.

For details on related party transactions and loans and advances made to any company in which
Directors are interested, please refer “Related Party Transaction” under chapter titled “Financial
Statements as restated” beginning on page 209 of this Prospectus.

Investors may note that in case of over-subscription in the Issue, allotment to Retail applicants and
other applicants shall be on a proportionate basis. For more information, please refer to the chapter
titled “Issue Structure” beginning on page 264 of this Prospectus.

Except as disclosed in the chapter titled “Capital Structure”, “Our Promoter and Promoter
Group”, “Our Management” and “Related Party Transaction” beginning on pages 103, 200, 185
and 207 respectively, of this Prospectus, none of our Promoter, Directors or Key Management
Personnel has any interest in our Company.

Except as disclosed in the chapter titled “Capital Structure” beginning on page 103 of this
Prospectus, we have not issued any Equity Shares for consideration other than cash.

Trading in Equity Shares of our Company for all investors shall be in dematerialized form only.

Investors are advised to refer to the chapter titled “Basis for Issue Price” beginning on page 126
of the Prospectus.

There are no financing arrangements whereby the Promoter Group, the Directors of our Company
and their relatives have financed the purchase by any other person of securities of our Company
during the period of six months immediately preceding the date of filing of this Reed Herring
Prospectus with the Stock Exchange.

Our Company was originally incorporated as “Artedz Fabs Private Limited” at Mumbai,
Mabharashtra as a Private Limited Company under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 vide
Certificate of Incorporation dated August 08, 2006 bearing Corporate ldentification Number
U17299MH2006PTC163645 issued by Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra.
Subsequently, our Company was converted into a Public Limited Company pursuant to special
resolution passed by the members in Extra Ordinary General Meeting of our Company held on
January 18, 2018 and the name of our Company was changed to “Artedz Fabs Limited” and a fresh
certificate of incorporation consequent upon Conversion of Private Company to Public Limited
Company dated February 19, 2018 was issued by Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra.
The Corporate Identification Number of our Company is U17299MH2006PLC163645.

For further details of Incorporation, change of name of the Registered Office of our Company,
please refer to chapter titled “Our History and Certain Other Corporate Matters” beginning on
page 181 of this Prospectus.

Except as stated in the chapter titled “Our Group Companies” beginning on page 204 and chapter
titled “Related Party Transactions” beginning on page 207 of this Prospectus, our Group
Companies have no business interest or other interest in our Company.
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SECTION 111 - INTRODUCTION
SUMMARY OF OUR INDUSTRY

The information in this section includes extracts from publicly available information, data and statistics
and has been derived from various government publications and industry sources. Neither we nor any
other person connected with the Issue have verified this information. The data may have been re-classified
by us for the purposes of presentation. Industry sources and publications generally state that the
information contained therein has been obtained from sources generally believed to be reliable, but that
their accuracy, completeness and underlying assumptions are not guaranteed and their reliability cannot
be assured and, accordingly, investment decisions should not be based on such information. You should
read the entire Prospectus, including the information contained in the sections titled “Risk Factors” and
“Financial Statements” and related notes beginning on page 21 and 209 respectively of this Prospectus
before deciding to invest in our Equity Shares.

INTRODUCTION TO THE INDIAN TEXTILE INDUSTRY
India’s textiles sector is one of the oldest industries in Indian economy dating back several centuries.
India's overall textile exports during FY 2017-18 stood at US$ 39.2 billion.

The Indian textiles industry is extremely varied, with the hand-spun and hand-woven textiles sectors at
one end of the spectrum, while the capital intensive sophisticated mills sector at the other end of the
spectrum. The decentralised power looms/ hosiery and knitting sector form the largest component of the
textiles sector. The close linkage of the textile industry to agriculture (for raw materials such as cotton)
and the ancient culture and traditions of the country in terms of textiles make the Indian textiles sector
unigue in comparison to the industries of other countries. The Indian textile industry has the capacity to
produce a wide variety of products suitable to different market segments, both within India and across the
world.

(Source: Textile Industry & Market Growth in India - India Brand Equity Foundation - www.ibef.org)
GLOBAL ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

According to the International Monetary Fund (IMF), the global economy is experiencing a near-
synchronous recovery, the most broad-based since 2010. In 2017, roughly three-quarters of countries
experienced improvements in their growth rates, the highest share since 2010. The latest World Economic
Outlook (WEO) of the IMF shows global GDP growth accelerated to around 3.6 percent in 2017 from
3.2 percent in 2016, and the forecast for 2018 has been upgraded by 0.2 percentage points to 3.9 percent.
Although rebounding, global growth is still well below levels reached in the 2000s.

One reason why the recovery has spread around the globe is that world trade in goods and services has
finally emerged from its torpor, registering 4.7 percent real volume growth in 2017 compared with 2.5
percent in 2016. Another reason is that commodity producers such as Russia, Brazil, and Saudi Arabia,
which for the past few years been suffering from depressed prices, have benefitted from the upswing in
demand. Commaodity prices increased smartly in 2017, led by petroleum, whose price rose by 16 percent
to reach $61 per barrel by the end of the year.

Even as global growth and commodity prices have surged, inflation has remained remarkably quiescent,
remaining below 2 percent in the main advanced regions. Consequently, monetary policies in the US,
Eurozone and Japan have remained highly accommodative despite a strong recovery. These unusual
settings—rapid growth, ultra-low interest rates—at a late stage in the economic cycle have produced the
rarest of combinations: record-high high bond prices and stock market valuations, both at the same time.
The consensus forecast calls for these conditions to be sustained in 2018, as companies respond to buoyant
demand conditions by stepping up investment, some governments (such as the US) embark on
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expansionary fiscal policies, while advanced country monetary policies remain stimulative and world
trade continues to grow briskly.

What are the risks? Of course, there are the usual geo-political and geo-economic risks: war in the Korean
peninsula; political upheaval in the Middle East; aggressive output cuts by Saudi Arabia (and Russia) in
advance of the planned listing of the Saudi Arabian oil company, Aramco, which could force oil prices
even higher; a final reckoning from China’s unprecedented credit surge in the form of capital controls,
slowdown in growth, and a sharply depreciating currency with consequences for the global economy
(Economic Survey, 2016-17, Chapter 1); and trade tensions that could lead to skirmishes, and then spiral
out of control. But perhaps the main risks lie on the macro-finance front in advanced economies. These
stem from three, inter-related, sources:

o Asset valuations (price-equity ratios) tend to revert to their mean. And the faster and higher they climb,
especially so late in the economic cycle, the greater the risk of sharp corrections.

¢ Simultaneously high valuations of both bonds and equities tend to be briefly lived because they suffer
from an acute tension: if future earnings and economic growth are so bright, justifying high equity
prices, interest rates cannot be forever so low.

e And if interest rates rise—or if markets even sense that central banks will need to shift their stance—
both bond and equity prices could correct sharply. A plausible scenario would be the following. The
IMF is now forecasting that advanced country output gaps will close in 2018 for the first time since
the Global Financial Crisis. As this occurs, wages would start rising, eating into profits (which would
prick equity valuations); and as inflation rises in tandem, policy makers would be forced into raising
rates, deflating bond valuations and further undermining share prices.

What would happen to growth if asset prices correct? Surely, the impact would be far smaller than it was
in 2007-09, because advanced countries are far less vulnerable than they were a decade ago. In particular,
the leverage tied to these assets is much lower, which would minimize contagious propagation; while
banks are much better buffered, with higher levels of capital and core deposits, and lower levels of risky
assets.

Even so, there would be some consequences. For one, a large decline in wealth would force advanced
country consumers to cut back on their spending, which in turn would lead firms to curtail their
investments. And if this happens, monetary and fiscal policies would have much less room for
expansionary manoeuvre since interest rates are already low while government debts are high. And the
political implications of yet another decline in asset prices, the second in a decade, could also be
significant, with effects that are difficult to imagine.

In sum, assessing future risks hinges on two calls: interest rate policy and asset valuations. On policy,
extraordinarily low rates have, to paraphrase Paul Krugman, become “an obsession in search of a
justification.” Initially justified by the dislocations caused by the Global Financial Crisis, then by large
output gaps, they are now defended on the grounds that inflation remains weak, even as the slack in
product and labour markets is disappearing rapidly. Will the gathering new evidence on closing output
gaps and rising employment dispel that obsession?

On valuations, the prognosticator must navigate a narrow strait: steering clear of the “Cry of Wolf” trap
(bond prices will finally, finally correct, having defied the prediction of correction in each of the last
several years), without succumbing to the siren call of “This Time is Different” (stock valuations are
sustainable this time because interest rates will remain at historic lows).

(Source: Economic Survey 2017-18 Volume 1 www.indiabudget.nic.in)
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OVERVIEW OF INDIA’S ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE IN 2017-18
Economic activity

The key question going forward is whether the economy has troughed, and if so at what pace it will
recover toward its medium term trend. High frequency indicators do suggest that a robust recovery is
taking hold as reflected in a variety of indicators, including overall GVA, manufacturing GVA, the 1IP,
gross capital formation (Figure 17) and exports.

Similarly, real non-food credit growth has rebounded to 4 percent in November 2017 on a year-on-year
basis, while the squeeze on real credit to industry is abating (Figure 18). Moreover, the flow of nonbank
resources to the corporate sector, such as bond market borrowing and lending by NBFCs, has increased
by 43 percent (April-December 2017 compared to the same period a year ago), substituting in part for
weak bank credit. Rural demand, proxied by motor cycle sales, and auto sales, while not yet back to its
pre-demonetization trend, are recovering (Figures 19 and 20).
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Source: Society for Indian Automobile Manufacturers, Survey calculations.

Perhaps most significantly, the behaviour of manufacturing exports and imports in the second and third
quarters of this fiscal year has started to reverse. The re-acceleration of export growth to 13.6 percent in
the third quarter of FY2018 and deceleration of import growth to 13.1 percent, in line with global trends,
suggest that the demonetization and GST effects are receding. Services export and private remittances are
also rebounding (Figure 21).

On demonetization specifically, the cash-to-GDP ratio has stabilized, suggesting a return to equilibrium.
The evidence is that since about June 2017 the trend in currency is identical to that pre-demonetization
(Figure 22). The stabilization also permits estimation of the impact of demonetization: about Rs. 2.8 lakh
Crores less cash (1.8 percent of GDP) and about Rs. 3.8 lakh Crores less high denomination notes (2.5
percent of GDP).
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A final, important factor explaining the growth recovery is fiscal, which is providing a boost to aggregate
demand. For reasons related to smoothening the transition, GST revenues will only be collected for 11
months, which is akin to a tax cut for consumers. Meanwhile, overall revenue expenditure growth by the
central and state governments at remains strong at 11.7 percent (April to November). Cyclical conditions
may also lead to lower tax and non-tax revenues, which act as an automatic stabilizer.

All this said, while the direction of the indicators is positive, their level remains below potential. 11P
growth (April-November 2017 over same period in the previous year) is 3.2 percent, real credit growth
to industry is still in negative territory, and the growth in world trade remains less than half its level of a
decade ago. Moreover, even though the cost of equity has fallen to low levels, corporates have not raised
commensurate amounts of capital, suggesting that their investment plans remain modest (Box 6). In other
words, the twin engines that propelled the economy’s take-off in the mid-2000s — exports and investment
— are continuing to run below take-off speed.

Meanwhile, developments in the agriculture sector bear monitoring. The trend acceleration in rural wages
(agriculture and non-agriculture), which had occurred through much of 2016 because of increased activity
on the back of a strong monsoon, seems to have decelerated beginning just before the kharif season of
2017-18 (Figure 23) but it is still greater than much of the last three years. Three crop-specific
developments are evident. Sowing has been lower in both kharif and rabi, reducing the demand for labour.
The acreage for kharif and rabi for 2017-18 is estimated to have declined by 6.1 percent and 0.5 percent,
respectively. Pulses and oilseeds have seen an increase in sowing, but this has translated into unusually
low farmgate prices (below their minimum support price, MSP), again affecting farm revenues. The so-
called TOP perishables (tomatoes, onions, and potatoes) have meanwhile fluctuated between high and
low prices, engendering income uncertainty for farmers.

The CSO has forecast real GDP growth for 2017-18 at 6.5 percent. However, this estimate has not fully
factored in the latest developments in the third quarter, especially the greater-than-CSO-forecast exports
and government contributions to demand. Accordingly, real GDP growth for 2017-18 as a whole is
expected to be close to 6 3/4 percent. Given real GDP growth of 6 percent in the first half, this implies
that growth in the second half would rebound to 7.5 percent, aided by favourable base effects, especially
in the fourth quarter.
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Figure 23. Real and Nominal Rural Wages Growth Figure 24. Inflation: CPT and Variants*
(percent, 3 month moving average) (percent, year-on-year)
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Average CPI inflation for the first nine months has averaged 3.2 percent and is projected to reach 3.7
percent for the year as a whole. Thisimplies average CPI inflation in the last quarter of 5 percent, in line
with the RBI’s forecast. Therefore, the GDP deflator is expected to grow by 3.6 percent for 2017-18,
somewhat higher than the CSO’s forecast of 2.8 percent. Consequentially, nominal GDP growth is
estimated at 10.5 percent, compared with the CSO’s 9.5 percent estimate.

Macroeconomic indicators

After 13 months of continuously under-shooting the inflation target by an average of 130 basis points,
headline inflation for the first time crossed the RBI’s 4 percent target in November, posting a rate of 5.2
percent in December 2017 (Figure 24). The recent upswing in inflation stems from rising global oil prices
(not all of which has been passed on to consumers), unseasonal increases in the prices of fruits and
vegetables, and the 7th Pay Commission housing rent allowances, which mechanically increase inflation.
Stripped of all these factors, underlying inflation has been increasing at a more modest pace, reaching 4.3
percent at end-December—in part because firms are passing the incidence of GST on to final consumers
only gradually.

The current account deficit has also widened in 2017-18 and is expected to average about 1.5-2 percent
of GDP for the year as a whole. The current account deficit can be split into a manufacturing trade deficit,
an oil and gold deficit, a services deficit, and a remittances deficit (Figure 25). In the first half of 2017-
18, the oil and gold balance has improved (smaller deficit of $47 billion) but this has been offset by a
higher trade deficit ($18 billion) and a reduced services surplus ($37 billion), the latter two reflecting a
deterioration in the economy’s competitiveness.

Despite these developments, the overall external position remains solid. The current account deficit is
well below the 3 percent of GDP threshold beyond which vulnerability emerges. Meanwhile, foreign
exchange reserves have reached a record level of about $432 billion (spot and forward) at end-December
2017, well above prudent norms.

Fiscal developments

Bond yields have increased sharply (Figure 26) since August 2017, reflecting a variety of factors,
including concerns that the fiscal deficit might be greater-than-budgeted, expectations of higher inflation,
a rebound in activity that would narrow the output gap, and expectations of rate increases in the US. As
a result, the yield curve has become unusually steep (Figure 27).

The fiscal deficit for the first eight months of 2017-18 reached 112 percent of the total for the year, far
above the 89 percent norm (average of last 5 years), largely because of a shortfall in non-tax revenue,
reflecting reduced dividends from government agencies and enterprises. Expenditure also progressed at
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a fast pace, reflecting the advancing of the budget cycle by a month which gave considerable leeway to
the spending agencies to plan in advance and start implementation early in the financial year. Partially
offsetting these trends will be disinvestment receipts which are likely to exceed budget targets.

Figure 27. Yield Curve
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GST revenue collections are surprisingly robust given that these are early days of such a disruptive change
(See Box 7). Government measures to curb black money and encourage tax formalization, including
demonetization and the GST, have increased personal income tax collections substantially (excluding the
securities transactions tax). From about 2 percent of GDP between 2013-14 and 2015-16, they are likely
to rise to 2.3 percent of GDP in 2017-18, a historic high. Precise estimates of the government’s
contribution to this improvement vary depending on the methodology used. An econometric exercise
yields an estimate of Rs. 40,000 Crores over the two fiscal years of 2016-17 and 2017-18.3 Another based
on comparing the difference in actual tax buoyancy in 2016-17 and 2017-18 over the previous seven-
years’ average buoyancy, yields an estimate of about Rs. 65,000 Crores (both exclude the 25,000 Crores
collected under the Income Disclosure Scheme and Pradhan Mantri Garib Kalyan Yojana). Thus, the sum
of all government efforts increased income tax collections, thus far, between Rs. 65,000 and Rs. 90,000
Crores. These numbers imply a substantial increase in reported incomes (and hence in formalization) of
about 1.5 percent to 2.3 percent of GDP.

As a result of the budget overruns, the central government’s fiscal deficit until November 2017 was Rs.
6.1 lakh crore compared to the budgeted Rs. 5.5 lakh crore. In contrast, state governments seem to be
hewing closely to their targeted fiscal consolidation — in part because the centre has guaranteed them a
large increase in their indirect tax take, as part of the GST agreement.

Reflecting largely fiscal developments at the centre, a pause in general government fiscal consolidation
relative to 2016-17 cannot be ruled out. In addition, the measured deficit for 2017-18 will include Rs.
80,000 crore (0.5 percent of GDP) in capital provided to public sector banks. But this will not affect
aggregate demand, as reflected in international accounting practice which deems such operations as
financing (“below-the-line”) rather than expenditure.

In the case of borrowing by the states, markets have perhaps inadequately taken into account the fact that
higher market borrowings by them does not reflect higher deficits; rather about Rs. 50,000 crore or 0.3
percent of GDP of market borrowings is due to changes in the composition of financing, away from higher
cost NSSF borrowings toward lower cost market borrowings. This lack of strict correspondence between
the deficit and borrowings at the central and state levels (Figure 28) is discussed in greater detail in Box
8. For general government, about Rs. 40,000 Crores represents greater market borrowings that is not due
to deficits—a fact which markets apparently have not internalized.

Another factor contributing to the rise in bond yields has been stepped-up Open Market Operations
(OMO) by the RBI. This amounted to a net sale of about Rs. 90,000 Crores during April-December 2017-
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18 (compared to a net redemption of Rs. 1.1 lakh Crores during the same period in 2016-17) to sterilize
the impact of foreign flows, themselves induced by high interest rates.

(Source: Economic Survey 2017-18 Volume 1 www.indiabudget.nic.in)
OUTLOOK FOR 2018-19

The outlook for 2018-19 will be determined by economic policy in the run-up to the next national election.
If macro-economic stability is kept under control, the ongoing reforms are stabilized, and the world
economy remains buoyant as today, growth could start recovering towards its medium term economic
potential of at least 8 percent.

Consider the components of demand that will influence the growth outlook. The acceleration of global
growth should in principle provide a solid boost to export demand. Certainly, it has done so in the past,
particularly in the mid-2000s when the booming global economy allowed India to increase its exports by
more than 26 percent per annum. This time, the export response to world growth has been in line with the
long-term average, but below the response in the mid-2000s. Perhaps it is only a matter of time until
exports start to grow at a healthy rate. Remittances are already perking up, and may revive further due to
higher oil prices.

Private investment seems poised to rebound, as many of the factors exerting a drag on growth over the
past year finally ease off. Translating this potential into an actual investment rebound will depend on the
resolution and recapitalization process. If this process moves ahead expeditiously, stressed firms will be
put in the hands of stronger ownership, allowing them to resume spending. But if resolution is delayed,
so too will the return of the private cape cycle. And if this occurs public investment will not be able to
step into the breach, since it will be constrained by the need to maintain a modicum of fiscal consolidation
to head off market anxieties.

Consumption demand, meanwhile, will encounter different tugs. On the positive side, it will be helped
by the likely reduction in real interest rates in 2018-19 compared to the 2017-18 average. At the same
time, average oil prices are forecast by the IMF to be about 12 percent higher in 2018-19, which will
crimp real incomes and spending—assuming the increase is passed on into higher prices, rather than
absorbed by the budget through excise tax reductions or by the oil marketing companies. And if higher
oil prices requires tighter monetary policy to meet the inflation target, real interest rates could exert a drag
on consumption.

Putting all these factors together, a pick-up in growth to between 7 and 7.5 percent in 2018-19 can be
forecasted, re-instating India as the world’s fastest growing major economy. This forecast is subject to
upside potential and downside risks. The biggest source of upside potential will be exports. If the
relationship between India’s exports and world growth returns to that in the boom phase, and if world
growth in 2018 is as projected by the IMF, then that could add another % percentage point to growth.

Another key determinant of growth will be the implementation of the IBC process. Here timeliness in
resolution and acceptance of the IBC solutions must be a priority to Kick-start private investment. The
greater the delays in the early cases, the greater the risk that uncertainty will soon shroud the entire IBC
process. It is also possible that expeditious resolution may require the government to provide more
resources to PSBs, especially if the haircuts required are greater than previously expected, the ongoing
process of asset quality recognition uncovers more stressed assets, and if new accounting standards are
implemented.

Persistently high oil prices (at current levels) remain a key risk. They would affect inflation, the current
account, the fiscal position and growth, and force macroeconomic policies to be tighter than otherwise.
One eventuality to guard against is a classic emerging market “sudden stall” induced by sharp corrections
to elevated stock prices. (Box 9 suggests that India’s stock price surge is different from that in other
countries but does not warrant sanguine-ness about its sustainability.) Savers, already smarting from
reduced opportunities in the wake of demonetization, from depressed gold prices, and from lower nominal
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interest rates, would feel aggrieved, leading to calls for action. Stock price corrections could also trigger
capital outflows, especially if monetary policy unwinds less hesitantly in advanced countries and if oil
prices remain high. Policy might then have to respond with higher interest rates, which could choke off
the nascent recovery. The classic emerging market dilemma of reconciling the trade-off between macro-
stability and growth could then play itself out.

A key policy question will be the fiscal path for the coming year. Given the imperative of establishing
credibility after this year, given the improved outlook for growth (and hence narrowing of the output gap),
and given the resurgence of price pressures, fiscal policy should ideally have targeted a reasonable fiscal
consolidation. However, setting overly ambitious targets for consolidation—especially in a pre-election
year—based on optimistic forecasts that carry a high risk of not being realized will not garner credibility
either. Pragmatically steering between these extremes would suggest the following: a modest
consolidation that credibly signals a return to the path of gradual but steady fiscal deficit reductions.

Against this overall economic and political background, economic management will be challenging in
the coming year. If the obvious pitfalls (such as fiscal expansion) are avoided and the looming risks are
averted that would be no mean achievement.

(Source: Economic Survey 2017-18 Volume 1 www.indiabudget.nic.in)
GLOBAL MANUFACTURING SECTOR

World manufacturing growth

World manufacturing growth further declined in the third quarter of 2018 amid rising tension over trade
and tariffs among the leading manufacturers, especially the United States, the European Union and China.
Compared to the same period of the previous year, global manufacturing output rose by 3.2 per cent in
the third quarter of 2018, after growing by 3.8 per cent in the second, and 4.1 per cent in the first quarter
of 2018. Global manufacturing output growth has been consistently declining since the second half of
2017 (see Figure 1), which marked the temporary peak of the steady expansion that had been registered
since mid-2016, both in industrialized as well as in developing and emerging industrialized economies.

Manufacturing growth in industrialized economies generally lost some momentum in the third quarter of
2018. In a year-on-year comparison, manufacturing output growth is estimated at 1.7 per cent. Against
the backdrop of procyclical fiscal stimulus in the U.S., the pace of growth in North America rose to 3.4
per cent. By contrast, the manufacturing sector’s growth rate of industrialized economies in Europe
performed below expectations at 1.1 per cent compared to the same period of the previous year.

The manufacturing output growth of industrialized economies in East Asia was also quite moderate.
Compared to the same period of the previous year, the countries’ growth rate declined from 2.7 per cent
in the second quarter to 0.7 per cent in the third quarter of 2018. This relatively sharp decline is mainly
attributable to Japan’s negative year-on-year growth rate of -0.1 per cent, the country groups’ largest
manufacturer by far. Severe weather-related production impairments also contributed to this drop in
manufacturing output.
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Industrialized economies

The manufacturing output of industrialized countries maintained a positive growth rate in the third quarter
of 2018 compared to the same period of the previous year. While the pace of growth further slowed down
in East Asia and Europe to 0.7 per cent and 1.1 per cent, respectively, North America’s manufacturing
out-put expanded to 3.4 per cent compared to 2.0 per cent in the second quarter of 2018. Besides economic
factors, another reason for this diver-gent development is the relatively higher year-on-year comparison
thresholds for East Asia and Europe, as illustrated in Figure 2

The robust manufacturing growth rate observed in European industrialized economies since 2014 has
recently experienced a downward trend. This is especially visible when the data are compared to 2017, a
year characterized by high growth rates. For instance, the year-on-year growth of manufacturing output
reached 5.1 per cent in the fourth quarter of 2017. The first half of 2018 already showed a notable
deceleration, which continued into the third quarter of 2018. The manufacturing output growth rate
dropped to 3.9 per cent in the first quarter and decreased further to 3.0 per cent in the second quarter of
2018 and only reached 1.1 per cent in the third quarter of 2018.

A closer look at the leading euro zone economies reveals that year-on-year manufacturing output in the
third quarter of 2018 increased only marginally in France, Spain and Germany, reaching 1.0 per cent, 0.9
per cent and 0.3 per cent, respectively. Growth in Italy slightly de-creased, with a drop in manufacturing
output by 0.1 per cent.

With the exception of Malta and Portugal, where manufacturing output fell by 4.1 per cent and 1.3 per
cent, respectively, other euro zone economies continued to witness positive growth rates. Manufacturing
output rose by more than 3.0 per cent in Slovenia, Cyprus, Estonia, the Netherlands and Lithuania.
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Outside the euro zone, manufacturing out-put increased in Denmark by 4.5 per cent, by 3.6 per cent in
Hungary and by 3.3 per cent in Czechia. The United Kingdom had a lower growth rate of 1.0 per cent
under the intense pressure of the Brexit negotiations. Among the non-EU economies, Switzerland
registered a growth rate of 1.7 per cent compared to the third quarter of the previous year. Belarus, which
in accordance with UNIDO criteria has recently joined the group of industrialized economies, recorded
3.6 per cent growth in the third quarter of 2018. Similarly, manufacturing out-put grew by 2.7 per cent in
Norway and 2.4 per cent in the Russian Federation.

North America’s overall manufacturing production grew by 3.4 per cent compared to the same period of
the previous year. Economists view robust demand and tax incentives as some of the reasons for the
United States’ year-on-year manufacturing output growth of 3.4 per cent.

Positive results were observed in industrialized East Asian economies in the third quarter of 2018. Japan’s
manufacturing output slightly declined after eight straight quarters of year-on-year growth, the downward
trend partly being caused by severe weather-related production impairments, forcing vehicle
manufacturers and component suppliers, in particular, to suspend production at several plants. Other East
Asian economies recorded positive growth rates in the third quarter of 2018 compared to the same period
of the previous year. Malaysia grew by 4.8 per cent, Singapore by 3.8 per cent, Taiwan ROC by 2.7 per
cent, Hong Kong SAR by 1.4 per cent and the Republic of Korea by 1.0 per cent.

(Source: World Manufacturing Production- Statistics for Quarter 111, 2018; United Nations Industrial
Development Organisation - www.unido.org)

Developing and Emerging Industrial Economies

Consistent with recent quarterly reports, China is presented separately from other country groups due to
its size and the special characteristics of its economy, as the country’s pro-longed high growth period is
rapidly transforming China into an industrialized economy.
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China

China’s manufacturing output rose by 6.1 per cent in the third quarter of 2018. Although this marks the
slowest pace of year-on-year growth for years, Figure 4 demonstrates that the country enjoyed stability
in manufacturing production in the first three quarters of 2018. Despite deepening trade tensions,
seasonally adjusted estimates show that China’s manufacturing output has not yet experienced any
substantial declines. A relatively high growth performance was observed in computer electronics (+13.2
per cent), basic metals (+8.1 per cent) and machinery (+8.0 per cent) and contributed to China’s overall
economic performance. How-ever, experts warn of downward pressures such as rising costs, sluggish
demand or operating difficulties for enterprises due to trade frictions. The country’s further trajectory in
the fourth quarter of 2018 remains to be seen, as China and the U.S. imposed additional tariffs on each
other’s exports at the end of September and have threatened to expand these further at the beginning of
2019.

Developing and emerging industrial economies (excl. China)

Evidence of a slowdown in manufacturing output was observed in developing and emerging industrial
economies, especially in comparison to Chinese data. Year-on-year manufacturing output growth fell to
3.0 per cent compared to 3.6 per cent in the second quarter and 4.7 per cent in the first quarter of 2018.
The growth performance of Asia and the Pacific remained above this country groups’ average and reached
4.4 per cent compared to the same period of the previous year. India’s manufacturing output grew by 6.0
per cent and contributed substantially to these results, as did Indonesia’s at 5.1 per cent. Mongolia and
Bangladesh continued their year-on-year double-digit growth, primarily due to the fast growing textiles
and wearing apparel industry. High manufacturing growth of 7.3 per cent has also been a key driver of
the Philippines’ overall economic growth.

Latin America prolonged the phase of moderate expansion of the region’s manufacturing production with
a year-on-year growth rate of 1.4 per cent in the third quarter of 2018. Mexican manufacturing output,
which largely consists of export goods to the U.S., grew by 2.7 per cent compared to the same quarter of
the previous year. Progress in the discussions around the United States—Mexico—Canada Agreement
(USMCA builds on the North American Free Trade Agreement) may have contributed to this
development by reducing uncertainty. Focusing on some other countries in the region, manufacturing
output rose in Brazil by 1.6 per cent, in Chile by 1.5 per cent, in Colombia by 3.4 per cent and in Peru by
2.2 per cent. By contrast, Argentina, Latin America’s third largest economy, has fallen deeper into
recession, observing a year-on-year manufacturing output of -7.2 per cent in the third quarter of 2018.
Economists attribute the drop to struggling businesses due to peso depreciation and high interest rates.
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Growth estimates based on limited data for African countries generally indicated a moderate rise in
manufacturing output. South Africa, the region’s most industrialized country, registered a 1.5 per cent
growth in the third quarter of 2018 compared to the same period of the previous year. However, UNIDO
estimates on the share of MVVA in GDP suggest a decreasing tendency. Whereas the share was 13.1 per
cent in 2010, it declined to 12.4 per cent in 2017. Considering that manufacturing is a major catalyst and
multiplier for job creation, more dynamic manufacturing growth would be desirable. Among other
African economies, positive growth rates were achieved in Senegal at 4.0 per cent and C"ote d’Ivoire at
4.2 per cent.

As regards other developing economies, the manufacturing output of Eastern European countries grew
by 2.9 per cent in the third quarter of 2018 compared to the same period of the previous year.
Manufacturing output rose by 7.3 per cent in the FYR of Macedonia, 5.8 per cent in Poland and 4.6 per
cent in Romania. Turkey’s year-on-year growth dropped to 1.1 per cent in the third quarter, after 9.8 and
4.8 per cent in the first and second quarters of 2018, respectively, against the backdrop of a weakening
lira. Greece’s manufacturing output has continued to grow on a year-on-year basis since the beginning of
2016, reaching 2.8 per cent in the third quarter of 2018.

Key Findings - Global manufacturing Sector

Global manufacturing production showed a positive growth rate in all industries in the third quarter of
2018. Industries grouped ac-cording to technological intensity continued to follow growth patterns that
reveal that medium high- and high-technology manufacturing industries outperform other industry
groups. How-ever, in terms of growth rates, this industry group witnessed a sharp decline in the third
quarter of 2018 compared to the same period of the previous year.

By contrast, as illustrated in Figure 5, medium-technology industries, including the manufacture of rubber
and plastic products, non-metallic mineral products and basic metals, were able to resist decelerating
year-on-year growth rates in manufacturing output and expanded at 3.3 per cent in the third quarter of
2018. This is to a large extent due to augmented steel output in China, the worlds’ largest producer of
basic metals, where, compared to the third quarter of 2017, output grew by 8.1 per cent.

A decomposition of medium high- and high-technology industries identifies the auto-motive industry in
Germany, Japan and China as being the main cause for the waning growth rates. While China, after a
period of ten consecutive months with two digit year-on-year growth rates, continued to grow by 3.4 per
cent in the third quarter of 2018 compared to the same period of the previous year, the figures plunged to
-0.6 per cent in Japan and -8.0 per cent in Germany. Production breaks due to the mandatory
implementation of new test procedures related to the global harmonized standard for determining CO2
levels and other emissions might be one of the reasons for the strong decline in Germany.
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Global manufacturing output maintained relatively stable growth rates in the production of basic
consumer goods. The manufacture of food products rose by 2.9 per cent, beverages by 3.7 per cent and
wearing apparel by 3.9 per cent. The global production of wood products rose by 2.0 per cent, while the
manufacture of paper products only increased marginally by 0.4 per cent compared to the same period of
the previous year.

Figure 6 presents the growth rates for various industries in detail, showing mainly expanding
manufacturing output. Negative growth rates were only recorded in the manufacture of computer,
electronic and optical products in developing countries (excl. China) and the manufacture of textiles and
wearing apparel in industrialized economies. As regards the latter, shrinking year-on-year output was
specifically observed in Europe and East Asia. At the same time, developing countries in Asia and the
Pacific, in particular, achieved significantly higher growth rates in the textiles and clothing industry, due
also to positive signs of recovery in In-dia.

Additional data on growth rates in the third quarter of 2018 are available in the Statistical Tables.
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(Source: World Manufacturing Production- Statistics for Quarter 111, 2018; United Nations Industrial
Development Organisation - www.unido.org)

GLOBAL COTTON INDUSTRY: POSITION & OUTLOOK
World Balance sheet of Cotton Stocks

World Balance Sheet
million 480 Ib. bales 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017118 2017/18
February March
Beginning Stocks 921 102.8 111:1 95.3 87.7 87.7
Production 1204 119.1 96.2 106.8 121.4 1219
Supply 2125 2221 207.3 202.1 209.0 209.6
Mill-Use 110.0 1118 112.3 114.8 1205 120.8
Ending Stocks 102.9 111 95.3 87.7 886 88.8
Stocks/Use Ratio 93.5% 99.3% 84.9% 76.4% 73.5% 73.6%

India: Balance sheet of Cotton Stocks
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India Balance Sheet
million 480 |b. bales 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017118 2017/18
February March
Beginning Stocks 11.8 11.5 13.5 99 14:9 144
Production 31.0 29.5 25.9 27.0 28.5 28.5
Imports 0.7 1.2 1.1 27 1.7 1.7
Supply 435 422 40.5 39.7 41.3 41.3
Mill-Use 23.3 24.5 24.8 24.0 245 245
Exports 9.3 4.2 5.8 4.6 4.2 42
Demand 325 28.7 305 28.6 28.7 28.7
Ending Stocks 115 13.5 9.9 11.1 12.6 12.6
Stocks/Use Ratio 35.2% 47.0% 32.6% 39.0% 44.0% 44.0%

(Source: USDA — United States Department of Agriculture www.usda.gov)

INDIAN MANUFACTURING SECTOR
Introduction

Manufacturing has emerged as one of the high growth sectors in India. Prime Minister of India, Mr
Narendra Modi, had launched the ‘Make in India’ program to place India on the world map as a
manufacturing hub and give global recognition to the Indian economy. India is expected to become the
fifth largest manufacturing country in the world by the end of year 2020*.

Market Size

The Gross Value Added (GVA) at basic constant (2011-12) prices from the manufacturing sector in India
grew 7.9 per cent year-on-year in 2016-17, as per the first revised estimates of annual national income
published by the Government of India. Under the Make in India initiative, the Government of India aims
to increase the share of the manufacturing sector to the gross domestic product (GDP) to 25 per cent by
2022, from 16 per cent, and to create 100 million new jobs by 2022. Business conditions in the Indian
manufacturing sector continue to remain positive.

Investments

With the help of Make in India drive, India is on the path of becoming the hub for hi-tech manufacturing
as global giants such as GE, Siemens, HTC, Toshiba, and Boeing have either set up or are in process of
setting up manufacturing plants in India, attracted by India's market of more than a billion consumers and
increasing purchasing power.

Cumulative Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) in India’s manufacturing sector reached US$ 72.31 billion
during April 2000-September 2017. India has become one of the most attractive destinations for
investments in the manufacturing sector.

Government Initiatives

The Government of India has taken several initiatives to promote a healthy environment for the growth
of manufacturing sector in the country. Some of the notable initiatives and developments are:

Road Ahead

India is an attractive hub for foreign investments in the manufacturing sector. Several mobile phone,
luxury and automobile brands, among others, have set up or are looking to establish their manufacturing
bases in the country.
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The manufacturing sector of India has the potential to reach US$ 1 trillion by 2025 and India is expected
to rank amongst the top three growth economies and manufacturing destination of the world by the year
2020. The implementation of the Goods and Services Tax (GST) will make India a common market with
a GDP of US$ 2.5 trillion along with a population of 1.32 billion people, which will be a big draw for
investors.

With impetus on developing industrial corridors and smart cities, the government aims to ensure holistic
development of the nation. The corridors would further assist in integrating, monitoring and developing
a conducive environment for the industrial development and will promote advance practices in
manufacturing.

Exchange Rate Used: INR 1 = US$ 0.0155 as on January 04, 2018

Notes: * - According to the Global Manufacturing Competitiveness Index published by Deloitte
(Source: Indian Manufacturing Sector India Brand Equity Foundation www.ibef.org)

INDIAN TEXTILE INDUSTRY

Introduction

India’s textiles sector is one of the oldest industries in Indian economy dating back several centuries.
India's overall textile exports during FY 2017-18 stood at US$ 39.2 billion.

The Indian textiles industry is extremely varied, with the hand-spun and hand-woven textiles sectors at
one end of the spectrum, while the capital intensive sophisticated mills sector at the other end of the
spectrum. The decentralised power looms/ hosiery and knitting sector form the largest component of the
textiles sector. The close linkage of the textile industry to agriculture (for raw materials such as cotton)
and the ancient culture and traditions of the country in terms of textiles make the Indian textiles sector
unigue in comparison to the industries of other countries. The Indian textile industry has the capacity to
produce a wide variety of products suitable to different market segments, both within India and across the
world.

Market Size

The Indian textiles industry, currently estimated at around US$ 150 billion, is expected to reach US$ 250
billion by 2019. India’s textiles industry contributed seven per cent of the industry output (in value terms)
of India in 2017-18.1t contributed two per cent to the GDP of India and employs more than 45 million
people in 2017-18.The sector contributed 15 per cent to the export earnings of India in 2017-18.

The production of raw cotton in India is estimated to have reached 34.9 million bales in FY18".
Investments

The textiles sector has witnessed a spurt in investment during the last five years. The industry (including
dyed and printed) attracted Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) worth US$ 2.97 billion during April 2000 to
June 2018.

Some of the major investments in the Indian textiles industry are as follows:

e The Cabinet Committee on Economic Affairs (CCEA), Government of India has approved a new
skill development scheme named 'Scheme for Capacity Building in Textile Sector (SCBTS)' with
an outlay of Rs 1,300 crore (US$ 202.9 million) from 2017-18 to 2019-20.

e InMay 2018, textiles sector recorded investments worth Rs 27,000 crore (US$ 4.19 billion) since
June 2017.

Government Initiatives
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The Indian government has come up with a number of export promotion policies for the textiles sector.
It has also allowed 100 per cent FDI in the Indian textiles sector under the automatic route.

Initiatives taken by Government of India are:

e The Textile Ministry of India earmarked Rs 690 crore (US$ 106.58 million) for setting up 21
ready made garment manufacturing units in seven states for development and modernisation of
Indian Textile Sector.

e The Directorate General of Foreign Trade (DGFT) has revised rates for incentives under the
Merchandise Exports from India Scheme (MEIS) for two subsectors of Textiles Industry -
Readymade garments and Made ups - from 2 per cent to 4 per cent.

e As of August 2018, the Government of India has increased the basic custom duty to 20 per cent
from 10 per cent on 501 textile products, to boost Make in India and indigenous production.

e The Government of India announced a Special Package to boost exports by US$ 31 billion, create
one crore job opportunity and attract investments worth Rs 80,000 crore (US$ 11.93 billion)
during 2018-2020. As of August 2018 it generated additional investments worth Rs 25,345 crore
(US$ 3.78 billion) and exports worth Rs 57.28 billion (US$ 854.42 million).

e The Government of India has taken several measures including Amended Technology Up-
gradation Fund Scheme (A-TUFS), scheme is estimated to create employment for 35 lakh people
and enable investments worth Rs 95,000 crore (US$ 14.17 billion) by 2022.

Road Ahead

The future for the Indian textile industry looks promising, buoyed by both strong domestic consumption
as well as export demand. With consumerism and disposable income on the rise, the retail sector has
experienced a rapid growth in the past decade with the entry of several international players like Marks
& Spencer, Guess and Next into the Indian market.

High economic growth has resulted in higher disposable income. This has led to rise in demand for
products creating a huge domestic market.

Exchange Rate Used: INR 1 = US$ 0.0149 as of Q1 FY19.

References: Ministry of Textiles, Indian Textile Journal, Department of Industrial Policy and Promotion,
Press Information Bureau

Note: ~ - Third advance estimates for FY18 of 170 kgs. each

(Source: Indian Textile Industry - India Brand Equity Foundation www.ibef.org)
OVERVIEW INDIAN TEXTILE INDUSTRY

Textile plays a major role in the Indian economy. It contributes 14 per cent to industrial production and
4 per cent to GDP (ii) With over 45 million people, the industry is one of the largest source of employment
generation in the country. The industry accounts for nearly 15 per cent of total exports The size of India’s
textile market in 2016 was around US$ 137 billion, which is expected to touch US$ 226 billion market
by 2023, growing at a CAGR of 8.7 per cent between 2009-23E

As of June 2017, the central government is planning to finalize and launch the new textile policy in the
next three months. The policy aims to achieve US$ 300 billion worth of textile exports by 2024-25 and
create an additional 35 million jobs. Production of raw cotton in India grew from 28 million bales in FY07
and further increased to 35.1 million bales in FY17. During FYQ07-17, raw cotton production expanded at
a CAGR of 2.3 per cent. During FY16(1), of the overall amount of raw cotton produced in the country,
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domestic consumption totalled to 30 million bales, while in FY15(1), the domestic consumption of raw
cotton stood at 30.4 million bales. Raw cotton and man-made fibres are major segments in this category.

(Source: Indian Textile Industry - India Brand Equity Foundation www.ibef.org)

KEY TEXTILE AND APPAREL AREAS

North: Kashmir, Ludhiana and Panipat account for
80 per cent of woollens in India

West: Ahmedabad, Mumbai,
Surat, Rajkot, Indore and
Vadodara are the key places for
cotton industry

East: Bihar for jute, parts of Uttar
Pradesh for woollen and Bengal

for cotton and jute industry

% © Major textile and apparel zones

South: Tirupur, Coimbatore and Madurai for hosiery.

Bengaluru, Mysore and Chennai for silk

(Source: Textile and Apparel Report October 2018 - India Brand Equity Foundation www.ibef.org)
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SUMMARY OF OUR BUSINESS

Some of the information contained in the following discussion, including information with respect to our
business plans and strategies, contain forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties.
You should read the chapter titled “Forward-Looking Statements” beginning on page 20 of this
Prospectus, for a discussion of the risks and uncertainties related to those statements and also the section
“Risk Factors” for a discussion of certain factors that may affect our business, financial condition or
results of operations. Our actual results may differ materially from those expressed in or implied by these
forward-looking statements. Our fiscal year ends on March 31 of each year, so all references to a particular
fiscal are to the twelve-month period ended March 31 of that year.

The financial information used in this section, unless otherwise stated, is derived from our Financial
Information, as restated prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP, Companies Act and SEBI
Regulations. The following information is qualified in its entirety by, and should be read together with,
the more detailed financial and other information included in this Prospectus, including the information
contained in the sections titled “Risk Factors” and “Financial Information” beginning on pages 21 and
209, respectively.

OVERVIEW

Our Company was originally incorporated as “Artedz Fabs Private Limited” at Mumbai, Maharashtra as
a Private Limited Company under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 vide Certificate of
Incorporation  dated August 08, 2006 bearing Corporate Identification = Number
U17299MH2006PTC163645 issued by Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra. Subsequently,
our Company was converted into a Public Limited Company pursuant to special resolution passed by the
members in Extra-ordinary General Meeting of our Company held on January 18, 2018 and the name of
our Company was changed to “Artedz Fabs Limited” and a fresh certificate of incorporation consequent
upon Conversion of Private Company to Public Limited Company dated February 19, 2018 was issued
by Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra. The Corporate Identification Number of our Company
is U17299MH2006PLC163645.

Our Company is engaged in manufacturing and

trading of textile fabrics for shirtings and suitings. We

specialise in manufacturing of textile fabrics majorly

from cotton yarn. We also use linen yarn as well as

blended yarns as the raw material. We are primarily

engaged in the manufacturing of grey fabrics with

high-end and fashion forward designs, using the ARTE Z FAB S
expertise of our in-house designing team. Our

Company caters to orders from both domestic and LIMITER®D
international markets. With a manufacturing facility

spread over a Land area of 15,789 sg. ft. in Bhiwandi,

Maharashtra, our Company currently has an installed capacity of 21 Lakhs sq. metre per annum with 43
installed looms which can cater to the orders requiring any specific category of yarn.

Our Company initially started its commercial production in the year 2007 by setting up a manufacturing
facility at Bhiwandi Nashik Road, Maharashtra by importing second hand machineries. In year 2011, the
manufacturing facility of the Company collapsed due to incorrect and improper construction, subsequent
to that, we reconstructed the manufacturing facility by installing the same machineries in the same facility.
However, in order to retain our customer’s trust during the dire time not only was our Company successful
in reconstructing the facility but we also fulfilled the orders received from our customers through
outsourcing our manufacturing activity, thereby reposing the value and brand of the Company.

Initially, our Company started the manufacturing of Cotton Fabric for shirtings and further started
manufacturing Linen Fabric along with Blend of Cotton and Linen Fabrics. Our Company concentrates
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on Men’s Casual Shirt and manufactures entirely for two collections viz., Summer & Winter. Our
Company manufactures its products on the basis of orders received from the customers hence following
the Just-in-time concept for managing its inventory level curtailing cost. Ours is a complete made to order
business model.

As an organization, our focus has been on the design and colour we offer to our customers. Further, we
aim to satisfy our customers with timely delivery of the orders placed by us. However, our production
capacity at times are not sufficient to meet the orders received from the customers. However, to meet the
customer demand, we accept the orders and undertake all the pre-production activity in-house but trade
the grey fabric from our trusted job workers. In our trading activity, we basically purchase grey fabric
and sells it further to the customers instead of manufacturing it in-house.

Our Company is promoted and managed by Kashyap Gambhir and Satbinder Singh Gill. Our Promoters
have experience of more than 12 years in the textile industry. They are actively involved in the business
operations, the outcome of which is reflected in the operational and financial performance of the
Company.

LOCATIONAL PRESENCE
Our Company’s Location and Manufacturing facility are as follows:

Registered Office: A-206, Gambhir Industrial Estate, Off Aarey Road, Opp. Paramount Print, Goregaon
(East), Mumbai — 400063, Maharashtra, India.

Manufacturing Unit: Unit No. T -1, Shree Rajlaxmi Complex, Bhiwandi —Nashik Road, Near Satyam
Petrol Pump and Popular petrol Pump, Village —Sonale, Bhiwandi, Taluka- Bhiwandi, District — Thane,
Maharashtra, India.
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FINANCIAL SNAPSHOT AS PER RESTATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial Snapshot of our Company as per Restated Financial Statements is as under:
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Segmental break-up of our Standalone Revenue from Operation is as under:

2016-17

5311
786
179

2017-18

6426
1006
352

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

tLLt

For the period ended
on September 30, 2018

3663
639
254

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Particulars F.Y.2015- | F.Y 2016- | F.Y.2017- | For the period ended on
16 17 18 September 30, 2018
Manufacturing 2,006.69 3,387.19 3,534.79 2,804.88
Trading 1,869.98 1,918.44 2,891.49 857.87
Revenue from Operations 3,876.68 5,305.63 6,426.28 3,662.75
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Figure describing capacity utilization trend over the period:

(Units in Lakhs)

18
16

LLL.

8
6
4
2
0
FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18
M Cotton Fabrics  ® Cotton Linen Blended Linen Fabrics  m Cotton Lycra  m Synthetic
Particulars Unit F.Y. 2015-16 F.Y. 2016-17 F.Y.2017-18
Cotton Fabrics Mtrs p.a. 10,51,860.00 15,58,686.00 14,02,817.40
Cotton Linen Blended Mtrs p.a. 2,69,707.60 3,99,663.00 4,19,646.15
Linen Fabrics Mtrs p.a. 13,485.38 19,983.15 20,982.31
Cotton Lycra Mtrs p.a. 13,485.38 19,983.15 20,982.31
Synthetic Mtrs p.a. - - 1,55,868.60

Break up for the state wise revenue details for last 3 years and for the period ended on September 30,

2018 along with the percentage.

(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

EY For the period
FY 2015- 16 FY 2016- 17 2017- 18 ended on
State September 30, 2018
Reven Yol Reven Yo 1 Reve Yol Yol
Total Total Total |Revenue| Total
ue ue nue
Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue
Maharashtra | 212 83.05 | 2202 98.04 | 8411|9977 (3626131 99.00
73 02 .82
Tamil Nadu 239.52 6.18 25.3 0.48| 13.2 0.21 - -
West Bengal 46.87 1.21 3.86 0.07| 0.56 0.01 - -
Gujarat 52.58 1.36| 59.75 1.13 0.7 0.01 36.62 1.00
Karnataka 208.82 5.39 6.17 0.12 - - - -
Madhya 44.29 114 | 759 0.14 ) )
Pradesh - -
Delhi 10.09 0.26 0.94 0.02 - - - -
Punjab 33.42 0.86 - - - - - -
Haryana 11 0.28 - - - - - -
Kerala 9.54 0.25 - - - - - -
Uttar Pradesh 0.82 0.02 - - - - - -
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EY For the period
F Y 2015- 16 FY 2016- 17 2017- 18 ended on

State September 30, 2018

% to % to % to % to

Ri\;en Total Ri\;en Total Rr’]ivee Total |Revenue| Total
Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue
3,876. 5,305. 6,426 3,662.75] 100.00

Total 68 100.00 63 100.00 98 100.00

Productwise revenue details for last 3 years and for the period ended on September 30, 2018 along with

the percentage

(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

For the period ended
FY 2015- 16 FY 2016- 17 FY 2017- 18 on September 30,
Product A
N % to % to % to
Total Revenu | Total | Revenu | Total % to Total
Revenue Revenue
Reven e Reven e Reven Revenue
ue ue ue

Revenue From Manufacturing Activity
Cotton Fabric 1420.01 36.63 | 2579.87 | 48.63 | 2,384.79 | 37.111,881.02 51.35
gfg;%g | Linen | 595093 | 1357| 719.39| 1356 | 90224 | 14.04| 82663 22.57
Linen Fabric 39.17 1.01 55.95 1.05 57.70 0.90 6.15 0.17
Cotton Lycra 21.58 0.56 31.97 0.60 34.20 0.53 19.09 0.52
Synthetic - - - - 155.86 2.43 71.99 1.97
Sub Total (A) | 2006.69 51.76 | 3387.19 | 63.84 | 3,534.79 | 55.01 | 2,804.88 76.58
Revenue From Trading Activity
Cotton Fabric | 1,184.87 30.56 886.12 | 16.70 | 1,586.87 | 24.69 | 681.62 79.45
CottonLinen | »o595|  583| 10030| 1.89| 23578| 367| °*% 11.07
Blended
Linen Fabric 239.18 6.17 255.95 4.82 23.42 0.36 16.76 1.95
Cotton Lycra - - 50.01 0.94 174.08 2.71 3.22 0.38
Synthetic 220.01 5.68 625.96 [ 11.80 871.34 | 13.56 61.29 7.15
(Sé‘)b —Total | 1960099 | 4824 | 1918.44| 36.16 | 289149 | a44.99| 787 23.42
ZA\OJE?L 3876.68 | 100.00 | 5305.63 | 100.00 | 6,426.28 | 100.00 |3,662.75| 100.00

Top 5 customers for period ended September 30, 2018

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Sr. No. Customer Name Amount Percentage to Total Sales
1. Dukes International LLP 507.43 13.85%
2. Piyutex Synfab (India) Pvt. Ltd. 332.31 9.07%
3. Aravali Silk Mills Pvt. Ltd. 299.57 8.18%
4. J.J. Textiles 203.54 5.56%
5. Y2K Fashion 188.12 5.14%
Total 1,530.97 41.80%
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Top 5 suppliers for period ended September 30, 2018

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Sr. No. Supplier Name Amount Percentage to Total Purchases
1. Seema Synthetics 624.51 21.64%
2. Pearl Polymers 488.29 16.92%
3. Sonale Fabrics Pvt. Ltd. 305.82 10.60%
4. Shreeji Synthetics 246.14 8.53%
5. Purab Associates 186.27 6.46%
Total 1,851.01 64.15%
OUR PRODUCTS

Sr. No. Product Image Description

1 Cotton Fabric Cotton fabric is popular because

it’s easy to care for and
comfortable year-round. As the
body perspires, cotton fibers
absorb the moisture and release
it on the surface of the fabric, so
that it evaporates. In cold
weather, if the fabric remains
dry, the fibers retain body heat,
especially the napped fabrics.
Cotton is easy to clean; it can be
laundered or dry-cleaned. It
withstands high water
temperatures, so it can be boiled
and thus sterilized. It does
wrinkle easily and is prone to
shrinkage.

Linen is a textile made from
the fibers of flax plant. Further,
Linen is laborious to
manufacture, but the fiber is
very absorbent and garments
made of linen are valued for
their exceptional coolness and
freshness in hot weather.

2 Linen Fabric

#‘nnzm-muﬁu:ﬂtﬂf"ﬁ_“: Polyester is a category
O " 3 | i
: _. 1 : : : ’L - ¢ : ~___ |of polymers that contains
- Lt | the ester functional group in

. . .. ... ... |their main chain. As a

SR | specific material, it most
: : : : . : :‘ e i' : . : commonly refers to a type
Bl ettt ettt | Callled polyethylene
. ... .. .. ... ... |terephthalate (PET). Natural
: sﬁy_-r_ms:lm[lm:ltmxinm-.m w | polyesters and a few synthetic
' | ones are biodegradable, but

most synthetic polyesters are

3 Polyester Fabric
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not. The material is used
extensively in clothing.

4 Nylon Fabric

Nylon is a generic designation
for a family of synthetic
polymers. Nylon is
a thermoplastic silky material
that can be melt-processed into
fibers, films or shapes.

5 Blended Fabric
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Blended fabrics are created
when two or more different
kinds of fibres are mixed
together to create a new fabric
with unique properties.

OUR MANUFACTURING PROCESS

( N
Procurement of Yarn

\ J

( N
Dyeing

\ J

( N
Warping

\ J

r D
Checking

\ y

r D
Weaving

\ y

r D

Sizing
\ y

( N
Finishing
\ J
( N
Inspection &
Checking
\ J

The making of Cotton and Linen fabrics requires the following process to obtain a finish product. These

steps include purchasing of raw materials, dyeing, warping, sizing, drawing and weaving, checking and
mending processing and inspection and checking.
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1. Procurement of Yarn

Yarn is the major raw material used for the manufacturing of our fabrics. We procure the raw
materials directly from the domestic market. Order for the yarn is placed on the basis of orders
received from our customers and accordingly we book the category, quantity and quality of yarn from
the respective vendors.

2. Dyeing
Yarns are dyed once procured. The solids, stripes and checks that we see is a resultant of using
different dyed yarns in the warp and weft. Yarns are dyed in package form or hank form by the yarn

dyeing process. Our Company outsources the dyeing process to nearby dyeing units in Tarapur /
Bhiwandi.

3. Warping

Warping is a process of making the hank yarn to linear lengthy form in a huge warping wheel, which
helps the yarn to take position of warping section for weaving. The dyed yarns are collected and spun
onto the warping wheel where the yarn is counted with the length.

4. Sizing
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The objective of sizing is to improve the strength of yarn by chemically binding the fibres with each
other and also improve upon its friction resistance capacity by chemically coating its surface.

5. Weaving

The weaving process consists of interlacing straight yarns at right angles to one another. Warp yarns
are supplied from a large reel, called a wrap beam, mounted at the back of the weaving machine. The
warp thread is in the form of a sheet. The weft thread is inserted between two lawyers of warp sheets
by means of a suitable carrier, such as, Rapier.

6. Checking

Once the weaving is completed, fabric is sent for checking to ease out any lag in the process and
rectify it before further processing. Each roll of fabric is checked in the machine by a dedicated labour.
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Finishing

The woven fabric contains impurities and thus requires further treatment in order to develop its full
textile potential. Furthermore, it may receive considerable added value by applying one or more
finishing processes such as washing, mercerizing, calendaring, coating, finishing etc. which result in
adding the required softness, control shrinkage and fineness to the fabric. This process is outsourced
to third party in nearby facilities.

Inspection and Checking

Our Company gives utmost importance to the quality of our final product. Hence, it is ensured that
the fabric material is individually checked and ensured that it is free from any defects. It is ensured
that the material manufactured is as per the required quality standards. Finishing of products involves
removal of loose and unwanted threads, conformity of design and size as per the order.

oV LY
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OUR RAW MATERIALS

Requirement of raw material is entirely dependent on the type of order received from the customers.
Product is made by using yarn as per the type of fabric required. Major raw materials required by our
Company are Cotton Yarn, Cotton Linen, Cotton Lycra, flax, Linen, Nylons, Slub, etc. as per the products
to be manufactured.

We place the order for the raw material as soon as the order is received from our customers. Immediately
then, the yarn details are finalised. The pricing of the yarn is generally as per the spot rate available while
the delivery of the yarn takes anytime between 5 to 15 days. Procurement of the raw material is done
majorly from Southern India and also from the local markets in Gujarat.

OUR COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS

We believe the following strengths have contributed to our success and will continue to be competitive
advantages for us, supporting our strategy and contributing to improvements in our financial performance:

Competitive Strengths

Strong Customer

|Experienced Promoters| Timely Delivery Inhouse Design Relationship

1. Experienced Promoters

The Promoters of the Company, Kashyap Gambhir and Satbinder Singh Gill have been associated with
the textile industry even before the incorporation of this Company and are having an experience of more
than 12 years. With their sound knowledge and experience in the industry in which we operate, our
Company enjoys a strategic and sensible approach towards business decisions which have become the
guiding force behind the operational and financial success of our company. They are responsible for the
entire business operations of the Company along with an experienced team of professionals who assist
them independently. We believe that their experience shall continue to contribute significantly to the
growth of our operations.

2. Timely Delivery

Being a competitive industry, the quality of customer service we provide becomes one of the deciding
factor for preference among other players. Any delay in delivery of the same impacts our customers &
they refrain from giving us repeat orders, but we have tried to ensure that we do not lose any customer
owing to our service and quality. We have always strived to provide the delivery of our products as per
the committed time.

3. In-house Design

We believe one of our unique strength is the capability of our in-house designing. Fabric becomes more
appealing with designs which are both trendy, fashion forward and to the taste of the customers. Our
especially dedicated in-house designing team led by our Promoter, Satbinder Singh Gill, keeps updating
our designs portfolio as per the ongoing trends. This design catalogue with numerous options is presented
to customers to use in their fabric.
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4. Strong Customer Relationship

Sales in our Industry is driven by the long-maintained customer relationship which then provided
repetitive orders. Our promoters are into textile business for more than 3 decades and have built strong
relationship with its customers who prefer our Company as their business partner. Further, this
relationship helps with non-commercial marketing by way of “word of mouth publicity”. Owing to our
strong relationship with these customers, we do not enter into any written agreement for our transactions
with our customers, but we have never faced issues w.r.t non-acceptance of product delivery.

OUR BUSINESS STRATEGIES

Our vision is to meet the critical success factors of customers and provide superior service through clear
and concise two-way communication. The goal is to build relationships through our flexibility to meet
our customer's changing needs. Our Company is implementing a business strategy with the following key
components. Our strategy will be to focus on capitalizing on our core strengths and expanding the
operations of our business.

We intend to focus on our existing range of products with specific emphasis on the following factors as
business and growth strategy:

Business Strategies

Diversify into Printing on the Solid Negotiate with

Women Wear Fabrics Creditors for pricing Widening our reach

1. Diversify into women wear

Our company is currently focusing on fabric of one particular segment, Men’s Casual Shirt. With presence
for over a decade now, we have built a strong customer base required for expanding our market. Going
forward, our Company intends to diversify into fabric for the women wear segment, focusing on
contemporary styles for Indian and boho chic categories that can be manufactured within our existing
manufacturing facility avoiding the need of installation of any new machineries. Our Company expects a
considerable size of business from this segment which will be margin accretive to our business.

2. Printing on the Solid Fabrics

Our company currently manufactures various types of fabric made by using varieties of yarn. These
fabrics are manufactured using our in-house designs. Our Company plans to diversify into printing
segment and cater to the existing and new markets. We will outsource printing facilities from a 3™ party
on fabrics manufactured by us or also the fabrics sourced from outside. Our colour strength and design
expertise will come in use while we cater to the printing segment.

3. Negotiate with Creditors for pricing

From the Net Proceeds of this Issue, our Company intends to utilize the money to reduce the credit period
taken from our creditors and consequently negotiate with them for better pricing of raw material. This
will lead to improved relationship with our creditors and financially, it will decrease the cost of raw
material procured, in turn leading to improved profitability.

4, Widen our customer base
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Our customer base currently are traders engaged in the business of textile who are the middlemen between
fabric user (garmenters) and fabric manufacturers. To increase revenue and sales, we need to continuously
add new customers to our existing system. We currently cater to unorganised retail client, but we plan to
rigorously target the organised retail clients which will help us get big sized orders and better brand
visibility.

SWOT ANALYSIS

Strength Weakness
e Experienced promoter in textile industry o Reliability on outsourced activities
¢ In-house designing expertise e Dependency on suppliers for product
availability
e Seasonal availability of raw material
Opportunity Threat

o Capability to expand into value added | ¢ Market competition
products e Electric Power cut
Large demand in export and domestic market | e  \Water scarcity

e Government incentive for growth of textile | ¢  Raw material price fluctuation
sector

UTILITIES & INFRASTRUCTURE FACILITIES
Infrastructure Facilities

Our registered office is located at Goregaon, Maharashtra and our manufacturing unit is situated at
Bhiwandi, Maharashtra.

Our registered office is well equipped with all infrastructure facilities including telecommunications,
internet and other facilities, which are required for our business operations to function smoothly.

Our Registered office and manufacturing unit has facility of electricity and water provided by respective
authority. Generally power requirements are met through normal distribution channels like State
electricity Board.

Power

Our Company meets its power requirements for Manufacturing Unit by purchasing electricity from State
Electricity Board.

Water

We require water at various manufacturing processes. Our Company procures water from third party
through tankers for our production process and through tube well for drinking and other office use.

Fire Hydrant

Our Company has installed fire safety equipment to manage any fire accident at its facility.
MARKETING STRATEGY

Our Company intends to focus on following marketing strategies:

Introducing new range of products
Participating in trade fairs and exhibitions
Visiting Garment fairs

Customer satisfaction

Continuous follow-up with customers
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o Develop new markets and customers
END USERS

We sell our products to the traders engaged in the textile industry. They further sell the fabric to the units
engaged in the manufacturing of apparels.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS RESTATED

ANNEXURE-I
(Amount in Lakhs)
As at As at As at As at As at As at
Particulars September | March March March March March

30,2018 | 31,2018 | 31,2017 | 31,2016 | 31,2015 | 31,2014
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Shareholders’ funds
(@) Share capital 625.00 625.00 625.00 625.00 525.00 525.00
(b) Reserves and surplus 459.42 205.17 | (146.68) | (325.55) | (290.00) [ (212.70)
Sub-Total 1,084.42 830.17 478.32 299.45 235.00 312.30
2. Share Application Money - - - - - -
Pending Allotment
Sub-Total - - - - - -
3. Non-current liabilities
(a) Long-term borrowings 792.26 710.33 564.46 | 1,041.30 970.23 868.65
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) - - - - - -
(c) Other Non-Current provisions 806.70 824.46 830.62 150.00 100.00 100.00
(d) Long Term Provision 11.12 11.58 10.28 8.39 6.44 4.44
Sub-Total 1,610.08 [ 1,546.37 | 1,405.36 | 1,199.69 | 1,076.67 973.09
4. Current liabilities
(a) Short-term borrowings 1,080.79 | 1,046.89 | 1,045.93 | 1,047.76 904.42 864.15
(b) Trade payables 2,953.79 | 2,096.17 | 1,165.52 546.89 | 1,018.58 386.87
(c) Other current liabilities 519.56 571.04 303.90 531.09 640.89 367.29
(d) Short-term provisions 159.96 57.50 26.18 20.43 36.09 10.21
Sub-Total 4,714.10 | 3,771.60 | 2,541.53 | 2,146.17 | 2,599.98 | 1,628.52
TOTAL 7,408.60 | 6,148.14 | 4,425.21 | 3,645.31| 3,911.65| 2,913.91
Il. ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(a) Fixed assets 540.86 587.98 692.04 810.10 872.10 777.94
(i) Tangible Assets 540.86 587.98 692.04 810.10 872.10 500.50
(ii)Intangible assets - - - - - -
(iii)Capital Work in Progress - - - - - 277.44
(iv)intangible asset under - - - - - -
development
(b) Non-Current Investments 6.56 6.32 5.85 5.42 5.02 4.65
(c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 47.31 46.62 75.54 155.67 139.56 103.55
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As at As at As at As at As at As at
Particulars September | March March March March March
30,2018 | 31,2018 | 31,2017 | 31,2016 | 31,2015 | 31,2014
(d) Long Terms Loans and 12.22 12.22 12.00 16.16 22.26 27.16
Advances
(e) Other Non-Current Assets - - - - - -
Sub-Total 606.95 653.14 785.43 987.35| 1,038.94 913.30
2. Current assets
(a) Current investments - - - - - -
(b) Inventories 2,419.74 | 2,082.41( 1,712.65 | 1,514.03| 1,284.33 | 1,192.59
(c) Trade receivables 4,315.80 | 3,370.22 | 1,874.32 | 1,104.64| 1,551.58 778.94
(d) Cash and cash equivalents 3.95 2.38 5.06 3.00 6.21 4.24
(e)Short-term loans and advances 62.16 39.99 47.75 36.29 30.59 24.84
(f) Other Current Assets - - - - - -
Sub-Total 6,801.65 | 5,495.00 | 3,639.78 | 2,657.96 | 2,872.71| 2,000.61
Total 7,408.60 | 6,148.14 | 4,425.21 | 3,645.31| 3,911.65( 2,913.91
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

ANNEXURE-II
(Amount in Lakhs)

For the For the For the For the For the For the
Period year year year year year
Particulars ended ended ended ended ended ended
September | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31,
30, 2018 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
I. Revenue from operations 3,662.75 6,426.28 5,305.63 3,876.68 3,097.41 2,649.59
11.Other income 0.74 7.62 5.18 1.29 0.41 2.46
3,663.49 6,433.90 5,310.81 3,877.97 3,097.82 2,652.05

I11. Total Revenue (I + 1)
IV. Expenses:
Cost of Material Consumed 2,071.81 1,683.95 1,316.40 966.57 1,340.72 1,395.93
Purchases of Stock-in- 787.04 2,811.89 2,310.28 1,770.29 374.91 7.00
Trade
Changes in inventories of (310.73) (133.04) (74.67) (185.51) (57.44) (339.75)
finished goods work-in-
progress and Stock-in-
Trade
Employee benefits expense 129.00 254.79 224.97 187.30 208.01 180.27
Finance costs 240.23 394.72 395.58 395.37 338.90 263.12
amortization expense
Other expenses 347.14 810.74 748.08 646.86 869.17 1,120.29
Total expenses 3,311.61 5,934.62 5,051.81 3,929.62 3,210.91 2,716.85
V. Profit before 351.88 499.28 259.00 (51.65) (113.09) (64.79)
exceptional and
extraordinary items and
tax (111-1V)
VI. Exceptional items - - - - - -
VII. Profit before 351.88 499.28 259.00 (51.65) (113.09) (64.79)
extraordinary items and
tax (V - VI)
VIII. Extraordinary Items- - - - - - -
IX. Profit before tax (VI1- 351.88 499.28 259.00 (51.65) (113.09) (64.79)
VIII)
X. Tax expense:
(1) Current tax 98.31 118.51 17.19 - - -
(2) MAT Credit - - (17.19) - - -
(2) Deferred tax (0.68) 28.92 80.13 (16.11) (36.01) (19.93)
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For the For the For the For the For the For the
Period year year year year year
Particulars ended ended ended ended ended ended
September | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31,
30, 2018 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

(3) Current tax expense - - - - - -
relating to prior years
XI. Profit (Loss) for the 254.25 351.85 178.87 (35.55) (77.08) (44.86)
period from continuing
operations (VII-VI1II)
XII. Profit/(loss) from - - - - - -
discontinuing operations
XIII. Tax expense of - - - - - -
discontinuing operations
XIV. Profit/(loss) from - - - - - -
Discontinuing operations
(after tax) (XH-XI1I)
XV. Profit (Loss) for the 254.25 351.85 178.87 (35.55) (77.08) (44.86)
period (XI + XIV)
XVI Earnings per equity
share:
(1) Basic & Diluted 4.07 5.63 2.86 (0.59) (1.47) (1.05)

Page 85 of 376




STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW AS RESTATED

ANNEXURE-II
(Amount in Lakhs)
For the For the For the For the For the For the
Period year year year year year
Particulars ended ended ended ended ended ended
September | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31,
30, 2018 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

CASH FLOW FROM
OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Restated Net profit Before 351.88 499.28 259.00 (51.65) (113.09) (64.79)
Tax and Extraordinary
Items
Adjustments For: - - - - - -
Depreciation 47.12 111.57 131.17 148.74 136.64 89.98
(Interest Received) (0.27) (0.51) (0.47) (0.44) (0.41) (0.38)
Net (gain) / loss on Sale of - - - (0.85) - -
Asset
Interest and Finance 240.23 394.72 395.58 395.37 338.90 263.12
Charges
Operating Profit before 638.96 1,005.06 785.28 491.16 362.04 287.92
working capital changes
Adjustment For:
Decrease/(Increase) in (337.35) (369.76) (198.60) (229.71) (91.74) (414.70)
Inventories
Decrease/(Increase) in (945.59) | (1,495.90) (769.68) 446.95 (772.64) (257.87)
Trade receivables
(Decrease)/Increase in 857.62 930.65 618.63 (471.69) 631.71 158.24
Trade Payables
(Decrease)/Increase in (51.48) 267.14 (227.20) (109.79) 273.60 154.40
Other Current Liabilities
(Decrease)/Increase in 102.46 31.32 5.75 (15.67) 25.88 6.51
Short Term Provisions
(Decrease)/Increase in (0.46) 1.30 1.89 1.95 1.99 1.01
Other Non-current
Provisions
(Decrease)/Increase in (17.76) (6.16) 680.62 50.00 - (75.00)
Other Non-current
liabilities
Cash Generated from 246.40 363.65 896.68 163.20 430.85 (139.49)
Operations
Taxes Paid 98.32 118.51 - - - -
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For the For the For the For the For the For the
Period year year year year year
Particulars ended ended ended ended ended ended
September | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31,
30, 2018 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Net Cash From /(Used In 148.09 245.14 896.68 163.20 430.85 (139.49)
) Operating Activities (A)
Cash Flow From
Investing Activities
(Purchase) / Sale of Fixed - (7.51) (13.12) (86.74) (231.02) (304.29)
Assets/ Capital Work In
Progress
Decrease/(Increase) in Non- (0.24) (0.46) (0.44) (0.40) (0.37) (0.34)
Current investments
Decrease/(Increase) in (22.17) 7.76 (11.46) (5.70) (5.75) (3.02)
Short-term loans and
advances
Decrease/(Increase) in - (0.22) 4.16 6.10 4.90 (12.02)
Long Term Loans and
Advances
Net gain / loss on Sale of - - - 0.85 - -
Asset
Interest Received 0.27 0.51 0.47 0.44 0.41 0.38
Net Cash From /(Used In (22.14) 0.08 (20.38) (85.45) (231.83) (319.29)
) Investing Activities (B)
Cash Flow From
Financing Activities
Proceeds from Issue of - - - 100.00 - 250.00
Shares
Interest and Finance (240.23) (394.72) (395.58) (395.37) (338.90) (263.12)
Charges
Proceeds / (Repayments) of - - - - - (250.00)
Share Application Money
(Decrease)/Increase in 33.90 0.96 (1.83) 143.34 40.27 304.77
Short Term Borrowing
(Decrease)/Increase in 81.95 145.86 (476.83) 71.06 101.59 420.85
Long Term Borrowing
Net Cash From Financing (124.38) (247.90) (874.24) (80.97) (197.04) 462.50
Activities (c)
Net Increase / (Decrease) 1.56 (2.68) 2.06 (3.21) 1.97 3.73

in Cash (A)+(B)+(C)
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For the For the For the For the For the For the
Period year year year year year
Particulars ended ended ended ended ended ended
September | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31,
30, 2018 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Cash and Cash 2.38 5.06 3.00 6.21 4.24 0.51
equivalents at the
beginning of the year
Cash and Cash 3.95 2.38 5.06 3.00 6.21 4.24
equivalents at the end of
the year

I.  The Cash Flow statement has been prepared under Indirect method as per Accounting Standard-3

"Cash Flow Satements"

1. Figures in Brackets represent outflows

The above statement should be read with the Restated Statement of Assets and Liabilities, Statement

of Profit and loss, Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts as appearing in Annexure

I, 11, 1V (A) respectively.
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THE ISSUE
The following table summarizes the Issue details:

Particulars Details of Equity Shares
23,10,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs.10/- each fully
Public Issue of Equity Shares paid of the Company for cash at price of Rs. 36/- per Equity

Share aggregating Rs. 831.60 lakhs

Of which:

1,20,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each fully
Market Maker Reservation Portion paid of the Company for cash at price of Rs 36/- per Equity
Share aggregating Rs. 43.20lakhs

21,90,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs.10/- each fully
paid of the Company for cash at price of Rs. 36/- per Equity
Share aggregating Rs. 788.40 lakhs

Of which:

10,95,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each fully
paid of the Company for cash at price of Rs. 36/- per Equity
Net Issue to the Public Share aggregating Rs. 394.20 lakhs will be available for
allocation for allotment to Retail Individual Investors of up
to Rs. 2,00,000.

10,95,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10 /- each fully
paid of the Company for cash at price of Rs. 36/- per Equity
Share aggregating Rs. 394.20 lakhs will be available for
allocation to investors above Rs. 2,00,000.

Pre and Post Issue Equity Shares
Equity Shares outstanding prior to the
Issue

Equity Shares outstanding after the
Issue

62,50,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each.

85,60,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- Each.

For further details please refer chapter titled “Objects of the
Use of Proceeds(Obijects of the Issue) | Issue” beginning on page 120 of this Prospectus for
information on use of Issue Proceeds

Notes:

The Issue has been authorized by the Board of Directors vide a resolution passed at its meeting held on
April 06, 2018 and by the shareholders of our Company vide a special resolution passed pursuant to
section 62(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 at the Extra — Ordinary General Meeting held on May 02,
2018.

This Issue has been made in terms of Chapter XB of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2009, as amended
from time to time. The present Issue has been made by our Company in terms of Regulation 106M (1) of
SEBI ICDR Regulations read with Rule 19(2)(b)(i) of SCRR wherein not less than 25% of the post-Issue
paid-up equity share capital of our Company are being offered to the public for subscription.

The allocation in the net Issue to the public category shall be made as follows:
a) Minimum fifty percent to retail individual investors; and

b) Remaining to

i. Individual applicants other than retail individual investors; and

ii. Other investors including corporate bodies or institutions, irrespective of the number of specified
securities applied for;
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c) The unsubscribed portion in either of the categories specified in (a) or (b) above may be allocated to
the applicants in the other category.

If the retail individual investor category is entitled to more than fifty per cent on proportionate basis,
accordingly the retail individual investors shall be allocated that higher percentage.

For further details please refer to section titled ‘Issue Information’ beginning on page 258 of this
Prospectus.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Our Company was originally incorporated as “Artedz Fabs Private Limited” at Mumbai, Maharashtra as
a Private Limited Company under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 vide Certificate of
Incorporation  dated August 08, 2006 bearing Corporate Identification  Number
U17299MH2006PTC163645 issued by Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra. Subsequently,
our Company was converted into a Public Limited Company pursuant to special resolution passed by
members in Extra Ordinary General Meeting of our Company held on January 18, 2018 and the name of
our Company was changed to “Artedz Fabs Limited”. A fresh Certificate of Incorporation consequent
upon conversion of Private Company to Public Limited dated February 19, 2018 was issued by Registrar
of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra. The Corporate Identification Number of our Company is
U17299MH2006PLC163645.

For details of Incorporation, Change of Name and Registered Office of our Company, please refer to
chapter titled ‘Our History and Certain Other Corporate Matters’ beginning on page 181 of this
Prospectus.

REGISTERED OFFICE OF OUR COMPANY

Artedz Fabs Limited

206, Gambhir Industrial Estate,

Opp. Paramount Print, Off Aarey Road,

Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 400063, Maharashtra, India

Tel: 022 29276278

Fax: NA

Email: investors@artedzfabs.com

Website: www.artedzfabs.com

Corporate Identification Number: U17299MH2006PLC163645

REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES

Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra
100, Everest, Marine Drive

Mumbai- 400002, Maharashtra, India

Website: www.mca.gov.in

DESIGNATED STOCK EXCHANGE

National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Plaza, Plot no. C/1, G Block,
Bandra - Kurla Complex, Bandra (E),
Mumbai - 400051, Maharashtra, India
Website: www.nseindia.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF OUR COMPANY

Sr. Age (in . .
No. Name Years) DIN Address Designation
D/1002, Vikas Park, Mith | Chairman
Kashyap Chowky  Junction, Marve | and
L Gambhir 51 00512674 Road, Malad (West), Mumbai | Managing
— 400064, Maharashtra, India | Director
C/402, Shanti Complex, Tunga
Satbinder Singh Village, Saki Vihar Road, | Whole Time
2. Gill 43 00512666 Powai, Mumbai, -400072, | Director
Maharashtra, India.
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Sr. Age (in . .
No. Name Years) DIN Address Designation
D/1002, Vikas Park, Mith
Deepika Chowky Junction, Marve | Executive
3. Gambhir 51 00512676 Road, Malad (West) Mumbai - | Director
400064 Maharashtra, India.
Building No. 227, Room No.
8884, kannamwar Nagar - 1, | Director
4, Amita Nyaynit 36 08063284 | Tagore Nagar, Vikhroli (East), | (Non —
Mumbai — 400083, | Executive)
Maharashtra, India
C- 211, Libra Building, Off
Marve Road, Near Lower Indenendent
5. | Mrugank Gohil 31 07981022 | Kharodi, Malad  (West), Diregtor
Mumbai - 400095,
Maharashtra, India.
P.No. — 68, Kalamba Road,
- Near Panyachi taki, Salokhe | Independent
6. Shirish Rampure 27 07995861 Nagar, Karvir, Kolhapur - | Director
416007, Maharashtra, India

For further details of our Directors, please refer to the chapter titled “Our Management” beginning on
page 185 of this Prospectus.

COMPANY SECRETARY & COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Vidhi Joshi

Artedz Fabs Limited

206, Gambhir Industrial Estate,

Opp. Paramount Print, Off Aarey Road,

Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 400063, Maharashtra, India
Tel: 022 29276278

Fax: NA

Email: cs@artedzfabs.com

Website: www.artedzfabs.com

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Amit Kalekar

Artedz Fabs Limited

206, Gambhir Industrial Estate,

Opp. Paramount Print, Off Aarey Road,

Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 400063, Maharashtra, India
Tel: 022 29276278

Fax: NA

Email: cfo@artedzfabs.com

Website: www.artedzfabs.com

Investors can contact the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, the BRLM or the Registrar
to the Issue in case of any pre-Issue or post-Issue related problems, such as non-receipt of letters of
Allotment, non-credit of Allotted Equity Shares in the respective beneficiary account, non-receipt
of refund orders and non-receipt of funds by electronic mode.
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All grievances may be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue with a copy to the relevant Designated
Intermediary with whom the Bid cum Application Form was submitted. The Bidder should give full
details such as name of the sole or First Bidder, Bid cum Application Form number, Bidder’s DP ID,
Client ID, PAN, date of submission of the Bid cum Application Form, address of the Bidder, number of
the Equity Shares applied for, the name and address of the Designated Intermediary where the Bid cum
Application Form was submitted by the Bidder and ASBA Account number (for Bidders other than RIBs
bidding through the UP1 Mechanism) in which the amount equivalent to the Bid Amount was blocked or
UPI ID in case of RIBs bidding through the UPI Mechanism. Further, the investor shall also enclose the
Acknowledgment Slip from the Designated Intermediaries in addition to the documents/information
mentioned hereinabove.

For all issue related queries and for redressal of complaints, Applicant may also write to the Book Running
Lead Manager. All complaints, queries or comments received by Stock Exchange/ SEBI shall be
forwarded to the Book Running Lead Manager, who shall respond to the same.

STATUTORY AUDITOR

M/s. Keyur Shah & Co.,
Chartered Accountants

303, Shitiratna, B/s. Radisson Blu Hotel,
Near Panchvati Circle, Ambawadi,
Ahmedabad-380006, Gujarat, India.
Tel: 079 48999595

Fax: NA

E-mail: keyur@keyurshahca.com
Contact Person: Keyur Shah

Firm Registration No: 141173W
Membership No: 153774

PEER REVIEWED AUDITOR

N. K. Aswani & Co.

Chartered Accountants

701/A, Wall Street-11, Opp. Orient Club,
Nr. Gujarat College Crossing, Ellis Bridge,
Ahmedabad — 380006, Gujarat, India
Tel No.: 079-26402552

Fax No.: 079-26402553

Email: narainkaswani@yahoo.co.in
Contact Person: Narian Aswani

Firm Registration No.: 100738W
Membership No.: 033278

M/s N.K. Aswani & Co., Chartered Accountant holds a peer reviewed certificate dated January 19, 2018
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

BOOK RUNNING LEAD MANAGER

Pantomath Capital Advisors Private Limited
406-408, Keshava Premises, Behind Family Court,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East)

Mumbai- 400051, Maharashtra, India

Tel: 491 22 6194 6700

Fax: + 91 22 2659 8690

Email: ipo@pantomathgroup.com
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Website: www.pantomathgroup.com
Contact Person: Hardik Bhuta/ Unmesh Zagade
SEBI Registration No: INM000012110

REGISTRAR TO THE ISSUE

Bigshare Services Private Limited

1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building,

Opp.Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road, Marol,

Andheri (East), Mumbai — 400059, Maharashtra, India.
Tel: 022 62638200

Fax: 022 62638299

Email: ipo@bigshareonline.com

Website: www.bigshareonline.com

Contact Person: Srinivas Dornala

SEBI Registration Number: INR000001385

LEGAL ADVISOR TO THE ISSUE

M V Kini, Law Firm

Kini House, Near Citi Bank,

D.N. Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001
Tel: +91 22 22612527/28/29

Fax: +91 22 22612530

E-mail: vidisha@mvkini.com
Contact Person: Vidisha Krishan
Website: www.mvkini.com

BANKER TO THE COMPANY

Bank of Baroda, Mumbai

S.B. Marg, New Era House,

Matunga West Branch, Mumbai — 400 016
Tel: 491 22 2437 7423

Fax: NA

E-mail: mulbom@bankofbaroda.co.in
Contact Person: Paresh N Sheth
Website: www.bankofbaroda.com

PUBLIC ISSUE BANK /BANKER TO THE ISSUE/ REFUND BANKER

ICICI Bank Limited

Capital Market Division, 1% Floor,

122, Mistry Bhavan, Dinshaw Vachha Road
Backbay Reclamation, Churchgate, Mumbai-
400020

Tel: 022-66818932

Fax: 022- 22611138

Email: shweta.surana@icicibank.com
Contact Person: Shweta Surana

Website: www.icicibank.com

SEBI Registration Number: INBIO0000004

SYNDICATE MEMBER

Pantomath Stock Brokers Private Limited
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406-408, Keshava Premises, Behind Family Court,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051,
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 61946700

Fax: +91 22 26598690

E-mail: broking@pantomathgroup.com

Contact Person: Mahavir Toshniwal

Website: www.pantomathbroking.com

SEBI Registration Number: INZ000068338

SPONSOR BANK

ICICI Bank Limited

Capital Market Division, 1st Floor,

122, Mistry Bhavan, Dinshaw Vachha Road
Backbay Reclamation, Churchgate, Mumbai-400020
Tel: 022-66818933/23/24

Fax: 022- 22611138

Email: meghana.avala@icicibank.com

Contact Person: Meghana Avala

Website: www.icicibank.com

SEBI Registration Number: INBIO0000004

SELF CERTIFIED SYNDICATE BANKS

The lists of banks that have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSB for the Applications Supported by
Blocked Amount (ASBA) Process are provided on
http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/home/detail/32931/yes/L ist-of-Self-Certified-Syndicate-Banks-
SCSBsfor- Syndicate-ASBA. For details on Designated Branches of SCSBs collecting the Application
Form, please refer to the above-mentioned SEBI link.

REGISTERED BROKERS

Bidders can submit Bid cum Application Forms in the Issue using the stock brokers network of the Stock
Exchanges, i.e., through the Registered Brokers at the Broker Centres. The list of the Registered Brokers,
including details such as postal address, telephone number and e-mail address, is provided on the websites
of the National Stock Exchange of India, as updated from time to time. In relation to ASBA Bids
submitted to the Registered Brokers at the Broker Centres, the list of branches of the SCSBs at the Broker
Centres named by the respective SCSBs to receive deposits of the Bid cum Application Forms from the
Registered Brokers will be available on the website of the SEBI (www.sebi.gov.in ) and updated from
time to time.

INVESTORS BANKS OR ISSUER BANKS FOR UPI

The list of Self Certified Syndicate Banks that have been notified by SEBI to act as Investors Bank or
Issuer Bank for UPI  mechanism are provide on the website of SEBI on
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/Other Action.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=40. For details
on Designated Branches of SCSBs collecting the Bid Cum Application Forms, please refer to the above
mentioned SEBI link.

REGISTRAR TO ISSUE AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENTS

The list of the RTAs eligible to accept Bid cum Applications forms at the Designated RTA Locations,
including details such as address, telephone number and e-mail address, are provided on the website of
Stock Exchange at National Stock Exchange India Limited, as updated from time to time.
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COLLECTING DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANTS

The list of the CDPs eligible to accept Bid cum Application Forms at the Designated CDP Locations,
including details such as name and contact details, are provided on the website of Stock Exchange at
National Stock Exchange India Limited, as updated from time to time. The list of branches of the SCSBs
named by the respective SCSBs to receive deposits of the Bid cum Application Forms from the
Designated Intermediaries will be available on the website of the SEBI (www.sebi.gov.in ) and updated
from time to time.

CREDIT RATING
This being an issue of Equity Shares, credit rating is not required.

IPO GRADING

Since the Issue has been made in terms of Chapter XB of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, there is no
requirement of appointing an IPO Grading agency.

APPRAISAL AND MONITORING AGENCY

As per regulation 16(1) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the requirement of Monitoring Agency is not
mandatory if the Issue size is below Rs. 10,000 Lakhs. Since the Issue size is only of Rs. 831.60 lakhs,
our Company has not appointed any monitoring agency for this Issue. However, as per Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Audit Committee of our Company, would be monitoring the utilization of the
proceeds of the Issue.

EXPERT OPINION

Except the report of the Peer Reviewed Auditor on statement of tax benefits and report on restated
financials for the period ended September 30, 2018 and for the financial year ended March 31, 2018,
2017, 2016, 2015 and 2014 included in this Prospectus, our Company has not obtained any other expert
opinion.

BOOK BUILDING PROCESS

Book building, with reference to the Issue, refers to the process of collection of Bids on the basis of the
Prospectus within the Price Band. The Price Band had been determined by our Company in consultation
with the BRLM in accordance with the Book Building Process, and advertised in all editions of a widely
circulated English Newspaper, all editions of a widely circulated Hindi Newspaper and a widely circulated
Marathi Newspaper, Marathi being the regional language of Maharashtra, where our registered office is
situated at least five working days prior to the Bid/ Issue Opening date, after the Bid/Issue Closing Date.
The Issue Price has been determined by our Company, in consultation with the BRLM in accordance with
the Book Building Process. Principal parties involved in the Book Building Process are:

*  Our Company;

» The Book Running Lead Manager in this case being Pantomath Capital Advisors Private Limited, the
Syndicate Member(s) appointed by the BRLM and in this case being Pantomath Stock Brokers Private
Limited who is an intermediary registered with SEBI/ registered as brokers with National Stock
Exchange of India Limited and eligible to act as Underwriters.;

» The Registrar to the Issue and,;

» The Designated Intermediaries

This Issue has been made through the 100 per cent Book Building Process wherein 50 per cent of the
Issue shall be available for allocation to Retail Individual Bidders and the balance shall be offered to QIBs
and Non-Institutional Investors. Subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price, allocation
to all categories in the Net Issue, shall be made on a proportionate basis, except for Retail Portion where
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allotment to each Retail Individual Bidders shall not be less than the minimum bid lot, subject to
availability of Equity Shares in Retail Portion, and the remaining available Equity Shares, if any, shall be
allotted on a proportionate basis. Under-subscription, if any, in any category, would be allowed to be met
with spill-over from any other category or a combination of categories at the discretion of our Company
in consultation with the BRLMs and the Stock Exchange.

All Bidders (excluding Anchor Investors) can participate in the Issue only through the ASBA process.
Anchor Investors are not permitted to participate through the ASBA process. In accordance with the SEBI
Regulations, QIBs and Non-Institutional Bidders are not allowed to withdraw or lower the size of their
Bids (in terms of the quantity of the Equity Shares or the Bid Amount) at any stage. Retail Individual
Bidders and Eligible Employees can revise or withdraw their Bids prior to the Bid/Issue Closing Date.
The allocation in net Issue to the public category shall be made as follows:

a) Minimum fifty percent to retail individual investors; and
b) Remaining to
i. Individual applicants other than retail individual investors; and

ii. Other investors including corporate bodies or institutions, irrespective of the number of specified
securities applied for;

c¢) The unsubscribed portion in either of the categories specified in (a) or (b) above may be allocated to
the applicants in the other category.

If the retail individual investor category is entitled to more than fifty per cent on proportionate basis,
accordingly the retail individual investors shall be allocated that higher percentage

In terms of SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated November 10, 2015 and the SEBI
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009, all the investors (except Anchor
Investors) applying in a public Offer shall use only Application Supported by Blocked Amount (ASBA)
process for application providing details of the bank account which will be blocked by the Self Certified
Syndicate Banks (SCSBs) for the same. Further, pursuant to SEBI Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/138 dated November 01, 2018, Retail Individual Investors applying in
public offer may use either Application Supported by Blocked Amount (ASBA) facility for making
application or also can use UPI as a payment mechanism with Application Supported by Blocked Amount
for making application. For details in this regards, specific attention are invited to the chapter titled “Issue
Procedure” beginning on page 267 of this Prospectus.

The process of Book Building under the SEBI ICDR Regulations is subject to change from time to time
and the investors are advised to make their own judgment about investment through this process prior to
making a Bid or application in the Issue.

For further details on the method and procedure for Bidding, please see section entitled “Issue Procedure”
on page 267 of this Prospectus

Ilustration of Book Building and Price Discovery Process (Investors should note that this example is
solely for illustrative purposes and is not specific to the Issue) Bidders can bid at any price within the
price band. For instance, assume a price band of Rs. 20 to Rs. 24 per equity share, Issue size of 3,000
equity shares and receipt of five bids from bidders, details of which are shown in the table below. A
graphical representation of the consolidated demand and price would be made available at the bidding
centers during the bidding period. The illustrative book below shows the demand for the equity shares of
the issuer company at various prices and is collated from bids received from various investors.

Bid Quantity Bid Price (Rs.) Cumulative Bid Quantity Subscription
500 24 500 16.67%
1,000 23 1,500 50.00%
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Bid Quantity Bid Price (Rs.) Cumulative Bid Quantity Subscription
1,500 22 3,000 100.00%
2,000 21 5,000 166.67%
2,500 20 7,500 250.00%

The price discovery is a function of demand at various prices. The highest price at which the issuer is able
to Issue the desired number of shares is the price at which the book cuts off, i.e., Rs. 22 in the above
example. The issuer, in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager will finalize the Issue price at
or below such cut-off price, i.e., at or below Rs. 22/-. All bids at or above this Issue price and cut-off bids
are valid bids and are considered for allocation in the respective categories.

Steps to be taken by the Bidders for Bidding:

1. Check eligibility for making a Bid (see section titled “Issue Procedure” on page 267 of this
Prospectus);

2. Ensure that you have a demat account and the demat account details are correctly mentioned in the
Bid cum Application Form;

3. Ensure correctness of your PAN, DP ID, Client ID and UPI ID mentioned in the Bid cum Application
Form. Based on these parameters, the Registrar to the Issue will obtain the Demographic Details of
the Bidders from the Depositories.

4. Except for Bids on behalf of the Central or State Government officials, residents of Sikkim and the
officials appointed by the courts, who may be exempt from specifying their PAN for transacting in
the securities market, for Bids of all values ensure that you have mentioned your PAN allotted under
the Income Tax Act in the Bid cum Application Form. The exemption for Central or State
Governments and officials appointed by the courts and for investors residing in Sikkim is subject to
the Depositary Participant’s verification of the veracity of such claims of the investors by collecting
sufficient documentary evidence in support of their claims

5. Ensure that the Bid cum Application Form is duly completed as per instructions given in this
Prospectus and in the Bid cum Application Form;

BID / ISSUE PROGRAMME
An indicative timetable in respect of the Issue is set out below:

Event Indicative Date
Bid/lssue Opening Date Monday, March 18, 2019
Bid/lssue Closing Date Wednesday, March 20, 2019
Finalization of Basis of Allotment with the Desighated Stock

Tuesday, March 26, 2019

on or before Wednesday, March

Exchange

Initiation of Refunds

27,2019
Credit of Equity Shares to Demat Accounts of Allottees onor befor;STgl(J)rlsg ay, March
Commencement of trading of the Equity Shares on the Stock | on or before Friday, March 29,
Exchange 2019

The above timetable is indicative and does not constitute any obligation on our Company or the Book
Running Lead Manager. Whilst our Company shall ensure that all steps for the completion of the
necessary formalities for the listing and the commencement of trading of the Equity Shares on the Stock
Exchange are taken within 6 Working Days of the Issue Closing Date, the timetable may change due to
various factors, such as extension of the Issue Period by our Company, or any delays in receiving the final
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listing and trading approval from the Stock Exchange. The Commencement of trading of the Equity Shares
will be entirely at the discretion of the Stock Exchange and in accordance with the applicable laws.

Bids and any revision to the same were allowed to be accepted only between 10.00 a.m. and 5.00 p.m.
(IST) during the Issue Period. On the Issue Closing Date, the Bids and any revision to the same was
allowed to be accepted between 10.00 a.m. and 5.00 p.m. (IST) or such extended time as permitted by the
Stock Exchanges, in case of Bids by Retail Individual Bidders after taking into account the total number
of bids received up to the closure of timings and reported by the Book Running Lead Manager to the
Stock Exchanges. It is clarified that Bids not uploaded on the electronic system would be rejected. Bids
were allowed to be accepted only on Working Days. Neither our Company nor the Book Running Lead
Manager is liable for any failure in uploading the Bids due to faults in any software/hardware system or
otherwise.

Non Retail Bidders shall not be allowed to either withdraw or lower the size of their Bid at any stage. Non
Retail Bidders may revise their Bids upwards (in terms of quantity of Equity Shares) during the Issue
Period. Such upward revision must be made using the Revision Form.

In case of discrepancy in the data entered in the electronic book vis-a-vis the data contained in the physical
or electronic Bid cum Application Form, for a particular Bidder, the Registrar to the Issue shall ask the
relevant SCSBs / RTAs / DPs / Stock Brokers, as the case may be, for rectified data.

UNDERWRITER

Our Company and Book Running Lead Manager to the Issue hereby confirm that the Issue is 100%
Underwritten. The underwriting agreement is dated April 23, 2018 and pursuant to the terms of the
underwriting agreement; obligations of the underwriter are subject to certain conditions specified therein.
The underwriter has indicated their intention to underwrite following number of specified securities being
offered through this Issue

o Amount % of the
eEEhge N 5er Underwritten | Total Issue
Name and Address of the Underwriters | of Equity shares to Si
be Underwritten (RgEEs [ 126
Lakhs) Underwritten

Pantomath Capital Advisors Private
Limited

406-408, Keshava Premises, Behind
Family Court, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra East, Mumbai - 400051,
Mabharashtra, India

Tel: 491 22 42577000 23,10,000* 831.60 | 100%
Fax: +91 22 26598690

Email: ipo@pantomathgroup.com
Contact Person: Hardik Bhuta/ Unmesh

Zagade

SEBI Registration Number:

INM000012110

Total 23,10,000 831.60 100%

*Includes 1,20,000 Equity shares of the Market Maker Reservation Portion which are to be subscribed
by the Market Maker in order to claim compliance with the requirements of Regulation 106 V(4) of the
SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2009, as amended.
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In the opinion of the Board of Directors of our Company, the resources of the above mentioned
Underwriter are sufficient to enable them to discharge their respective obligations in full.

DETAILS OF THE MARKET MAKING ARRANGEMENT

Our Company and the Book Running Lead Manager have entered into an agreement dated April 23, 2018
with the following Market Maker, duly registered with National Stock Exchange of India Limited to fulfill
the obligations of Market Making:-

Pantomath Stock Brokers Private Limited
406-408, Keshava Premises, Behind Family Court
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),

Mumbai — 400 051, Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 61946700

Fax: +91 22 26598690

E-mail: broking@pantomathgroup.com

Website: www.pantomathbroking.com

Contact Person: Mahavir Toshniwal

SEBI Registration No.: INZ000068338

Pantomath Stock Brokers Private Limited registered with National Stock Exchange of India Limited
will act as the Market Maker and has agreed to receive or deliver of the specified securities in the market
making process for a period of three years from the date of listing of our Equity Shares or for a period as
may be notified by any amendment to SEBI (ICDR) Regulations.

The Market Maker shall fulfill the applicable obligations and conditions as specified in the SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations, as amended from time to time and the circulars issued by National Stock Exchange of India
Limited and SEBI in this matter from time to time.

Following is a summary of the key details pertaining to the Market Making arrangement:

1.

The Market Maker(s) (individually or jointly) shall be required to provide a 2-way quote for 75% of
the time in a day. The same shall be monitored by the Stock Exchange. Further, the Market Maker(s)
shall inform the Exchange in advance for each and every black out period when the quotes are not
being offered by the Market Maker(s)

The minimum depth of the quote shall be Rs. 1,00,000/-. However, the investors with holdings of
value less than Rs. 1,00,000/- shall be allowed to Issue their holding to the Market Maker(s)
(individually or jointly) in that scrip provided that he sells his entire holding in that scrip in one lot
along with a declaration to the effect to the selling broker. Based on the IPO price of 36/- the minimum
lot size is 3000 Equity Shares thus minimum depth of the quote shall be Rs. 1,08,000/- until the same,
would be revised by National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

After a period of three (3) months from the market making period, the Market Maker would be
exempted to provide quote if the Shares of Market Maker in our Company reaches to 25% of Issue
Size (including the 1,20,000 Equity Shares out to be allotted under this Issue). Any Equity Shares
allotted to Market Maker under this issue over and above 25% Equity Shares would not be taken in
to consideration of computing the threshold of 25% of Issue Size. As soon as the Shares of Market
Maker in our Company reduce to 24% of Issue Size, the Market Maker will resume providing 2-way
quotes.

There shall be no exemption / threshold on downside. However, in the event the Market Maker
exhausts his inventory through market making process, National Stock Exchange of India Limited
may intimate the same to SEBI after due verification.

Execution of the order at the quoted price and quantity must be guaranteed by the Market Maker(s),
for the quotes given by him.
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6.

There would not be more than five Market Makers for the Company’s Equity Shares at any point of
time and the Market Makers may compete with other Market Makers for better quotes to the investors.
At this stage, Pantomath Stock Brokers Private Limited is acting as the sole Market Maker.

The Market Maker(s) (individually or jointly) shall be required to provide a 2-way quote for 75%of
the time in a day. The same shall be monitored by the Stock Exchange. Further, the Market Maker(s)
shall inform the exchange in advance for each and every black out period when the quotes are not
being issued by the Market Maker(s).The price band shall be 20% and the Market Maker Spread
(difference between the sell and the buy quote) shall be within 10% or as intimated by Exchange from
time to time and the same shall be updated in Prospectus. Further, the Market Maker(s) shall inform
the Exchange in advance for each and every black out period when the quotes are not being offered
by the Market Maker(s). The prices quoted by Market Maker shall be in compliance with the Market
Maker Spread Requirements and other particulars as specified or as per the requirements of EMERGE
Platform of National Stock Exchange of India Limited and SEBI from time to time.

On the first day of listing, there will be pre-equity market hours. The circuits will apply from the first
day of listing on the discovered price during the pre-open call auction.

Price Band and Spreads: SEBI Circular bearing reference no: CIR/MRD/DP/ 02/2012 dated January
20, 2012, has laid down that for issue size up to Rs. 250 crores, the applicable price bands for the first
day shall be:

1. In case equilibrium price is discovered in the Call Auction, the price band in the normal
trading session shall be 5% of the equilibrium price.

2. In case equilibrium price is not discovered in the Call Auction, the price band in the
normal trading session shall be 5% of the issue price.

3. Additionally, the trading shall take place in TFT segment for first 10 days from
commencement of trading. The following spread will be applicable on the SME
Exchange Platform.

S.No. Market Price Slab (in Rs.) Proposed spread (in % to slae price)

Up to 50 9

50to 75 8

75 to 100 6

el RN L

Above 100 5

11.

12.

13.

. The shares of the company will be traded in continuous trading session from the time and day the
company gets listed on Emerge Platform of National Stock Exchange of India Limited and market
maker will remain present as per the guidelines mentioned under National Stock Exchange of India
Limited and SEBI circulars.

There will be special circumstances under which the Market Maker may be allowed to withdraw
temporarily / fully from the market — for instance due to system problems, any other problems. All
controllable reasons require prior approval from the Exchange, while force-majeure will be applicable
for non-controllable reasons. The decision of the Exchange for deciding controllable and non-
controllable reasons would be final.

The Market Maker shall have the right to terminate said arrangement by giving one month notice or
on mutually acceptable terms to the Book Running Lead Manager, who shall then be responsible to
appoint a replacement Market Maker(s).

In case of termination of the above mentioned Market Making agreement prior to the completion of
the compulsory Market Making period, it shall be the responsibility of the Book Running Lead
Manager to arrange for another Market Maker(s) in replacement during the term of the notice period
being served by the Market Maker but prior to the date of releasing the existing Market Maker from
its duties in order to ensure compliance with the requirements of regulation 106V of the SEBI (ICDR)
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14.

15.

16.

Regulations. Further the Company and the Book Running Lead Manager reserve the right to appoint
other Market Maker(s) either as a replacement of the current Market Maker or as an additional Market
Maker subject to the total number of Designated Market Makers does not exceed 5 (five) or as
specified by the relevant laws and regulations applicable at that particulars point of time. The Market
Making Agreement is available for inspection at our Registered Office from 11.00 a.m. to 5.00 p.m.
on working days.

EMERGE Platform of National Stock Exchange of India Limited will have all margins which are
applicable on the NSE Main Board viz., Mark-to-Market, Value-At-Risk (VAR) Margin, Extreme
Loss Margin, Special Margins and Base Minimum Capital etc. NSE can impose any other margins as
deemed necessary from time-to-time.

EMERGE Platform of National Stock Exchange of India Limited will monitor the obligations on a
real time basis and punitive action will be initiated for any exceptions and / or non-compliances.
Penalties / fines may be imposed by the Exchange on the Market Maker, in case he is not able to
provide the desired liquidity in a particular security as per the specified guidelines. These penalties /
fines will be set by the Exchange from time to time. The Exchange will impose a penalty on the
Market Maker in case he is not present in the market (offering two way quotes) for at least 75% of
the time. The nature of the penalty will be monetary as well as suspension in market making activities
/ trading membership.

The Department of Surveillance and Supervision of the Exchange would decide and publish the
penalties / fines / suspension for any type of misconduct / manipulation / other irregularities by the
Market Maker from time to time.

Pursuant to SEBI Circular number CIRIMRD/DSA/31/2012 dated November 27, 2012, limits on the
upper side for Market Makers during market making process has been made applicable, based on the
issue size and as follows:

Buy quote exemption threshold Re-Entry threshold for buy

Issue size (including mandatory initial quote _(including mandatory

inventory of 5% of the Issue initial inventory of 5% of the

Size) Issue Size)

Up to Rs. 20 Crore 25% 24%
Rs. 20 crore to Rs. 50 crore 20% 19%
Rs. 50 to Rs. 80 crore 15% 14%
Above Rs. 80 crore 12% 11%

The Market Making arrangement, trading and other related aspects including all those specified above
shall be subject to the applicable provisions of law and / or norms issued by SEBI / NSE from time to
time.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Equity Share capital of our Company, as on the date of this Prospectus and after giving effect to the
Issue is set forth below:

Amount (Rs.in lakhs except share data)

No.

Particulars

Aggregate
nominal
value

Aggregate
value at
Issue Price

Authorised Share Capital

1,25,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each

1,250.00

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Share Capital before the
Issue

62,50,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each

625.00

Present Issue in terms of this Prospectus

Issue of 23,10,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs.10 each
at a price of Rs. 36/- per Equity Share

231.00

831.60

Consisting:

Reservation for Market Maker —1,20,000 Equity Shares of
face value of Rs. 10/- each reserved as Market Maker portion
at a price of Rs. 36/- per Equity Share

12.00

43.20

Net Issue to the Public —21,90,000 Equity Shares of face
value of Rs. 10/- each at a price of Rs. 36/- per Equity Share

219.00

788.40

Of the net issue to Public:

Allocation to Retail Individual Investors — 10,95,000
Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10 at a Issue Price of Rs.
36 per Equity Shares shall be available for allocation for
investors applying for a value of Rs. 2.00 Lakhs.

109.50

394.20

Allocation to Other than Retail Individual Investors —
10,95,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each at a
price of Rs. 36 per Equity Share shall be available for
allocation for Investors applying for a value of above Rs. 2.00
lakhs

109.50

394.20

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Share Capital after the
Issue

85,60,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each

856.00

Securities Premium Account

Before the Issue

NIL

After the Issue

600.60

The Issue has been authorised by the Board of Directors of our Company vide a resolution passed at its
meeting held on April 06, 2018, and by the shareholders of our company vide a Special Resolution passed
pursuant to Section 62 (1) (c) of Companies Act, 2013 at the Extra — Ordinary General Meeting held on
May 02, 2018

The Company has only one class of share capital i.e. Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each only.
All Equity Shares issued are fully paid-up. Our Company has no outstanding convertible instruments as
on the date of this Prospectus.
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NOTES TO THE CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Details of changes in authorised Share Capital:

Since the Incorporation of our Company, the authorised share capital of our Company has been altered

in the manner set forth below:

Particulars of Change Date of AGM
Shareholders’ /
Increased From Increased To Meeting EGM
The authorised share capital of our Company on incorporation comprised On i
of Rs.1,00,000 divided into 10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each Incorporation
. Rs. 1,00,00,000 consisting of
Rs. _1,00,000 consisting of 10,000 10,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 January 20, EGM
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each. each 2007
Rs. 1,00,00,000 consisting of | Rs. 2,00,00,000 consisting of March 16
10,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 | 20,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 2009 ’ EGM
each each
Rs. 2,00,00,000 consisting of | Rs. 3,00,00,000 consisting of Auqust 01
20,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 | 30,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 8011 ’ EGM
each each
Rs. 3,00,00,000 consisting of | Rs. 6,00,00,000 consisting of Eebruary 05
30,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 | 60,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 201%/ " | EGM
each each
Rs. 6,00,00,000 consisting of | Rs. 6,50,00,000 consisting of Eebruary 18
60,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 | 65,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 201%’ " | EGM
each each
Rs. 6,50,00,000 consisting of | Rs.12,50,00,000  consisting  of September 05
65,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 | 1,25,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 P 2017 " | EGM
each each
History of Equity Share Capital of our Company
No. of | Face S5 Cumulati | Cumulative
Date of . e Nature of .
Equity | valu . . . Nature of ve no. of Paid -up
Allotment/ h Pric | considerati I . ital
Fully Paid up Shares e o on Allotment Equity Capita
allotted | (Rs.) (Rs.) Shares (Rs.)
On 10,000 10| 10| Cash Subscription 10,000 1,00,000
Incorporation ’ to MOA(1) ’ e
February 01, Other Than | Further
2007 8,29,630 10 10 Cash* Allotment (2) 8,39,630 83,96,300
March 15, Further
2008 1,60,370 10 10 | Cash Allotment (3) 10,00,000 | 1,00,00,000
September 01, Further
2009 5,00,000 10 10 | Cash Allotment (4) 15,00,000 | 1,50,00,000
September 20, Other Than | Bonus Issue
2010 2,50,000 10| NA Cash (5) 17,50,000 | 1,75,00,000
March 28, Further
2011 2,50,000 10 10 | Cash Allotment (6) 20,00,000 | 2,00,00,000
October 07, Further
2011 7,50,000 10 10 | Cash Allotment (7) 27,50,000 | 2,75,00,000
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Issu . .
No. of | Face Cumulati | Cumulative
Altl)citrig;t/ Equity | valu P?ic Clc\)lg:? dr:rgzi Nature of ve no. of Paid -up
Eully Paid u Shares e e on Allotment Equity Capital
y Pl allotted (Rs.) (Rs.) Shares (Rs.)
August 23, | 25,00,00 Further
2013 0 10 10 | Cash Allotment (8) 52,50,000 | 5,25,00,000
Private
uly 06, 2015 | %9001 10| 10 | cash Placement | 62,50,000 | 6,25,00,000
9)

*Equity shares allotted pursuant to consideration for expenditure incurred by Kashyap Gambhir and
Deepika Gambhir on behalf of the Company towards development of factory premises and acquisition of
power supply.

1. Initial subscribers to the Memorandum of Association subscribed 10,000 Equity Shares of face value
of Rs. 10/- each fully paid at par as per the details given below:

Sr. No. Name of Subscribers No. of shares subscribed
1. Kashyap Gambhir 4,500
2. Deepika Gambhir 4,500
3. Satbinder Singh Gill 500
4, Rashmin Shah 500
Total 10,000

2. Further Allotment of 8,29,630* Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid at par on
February 01, 2007 as per the details given below:

Sr. No Name of Allottees No. of Shares Allotted
1. Kashyap Gambhir 7,29,630

2. Deepika Gambhir 1,00,000
Total 8,29,630

*As per form — 2 filed with Registrar of Companies, 8,79,630 Equity shares were allotted out of which
8,29,630 Equity shares were allotted for consideration other than cash and 50,000 Equity shares were
allotted for Cash consideration. However, allotment of 50,000 Equity shares were not given effect as
management considered it as erroneous filing of form and same is not reflecting on RoC Record.

3. Further allotment of 1,60,370 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid at par on March 15, 2008 as
per the details given below :

Sr. No. Name of Allottees No. of shares Allotted

1. Deepika Gambhir 99,500

2. Kashyap Gambhir 60,860
Amolik Singh Chawala jointly with Hardeep Singh Chawala

3. and Jagdeep Singh Chawala 1

Avanish Bhabutmal Jain jointly with Manjula Mulchand Jain
and Neeta V Jain

Shilpa Jain jointly with Umesh Jain

Narendra Kumar Shah jointly with Shantilal Shah
Navinchandra Mukeshkumar Textile Private Limited
Kushiram Kewlani

R Rakesh Kumar & Co. Jointly with Pravin Kumar Jain

0. Parthvi Creation Jointly with Riya Tex

B2|©|0o| N o~
S
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Sr. No. Name of Allottees No. of shares Allotted
11. Sagar Creation jointly with Mihir Fabs 1

12. Toron Fabs Private Limited 1
Total 1,60,370

4. Further allotment of 5,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid at par on September 01, 2009
as per the details given below :

Sr. No. Name of Allottee No. of shares Allotted
1. Toron Fabs Private Limited 5,00,000
Total 5,00,000

5. Bonus Issue of 2,50,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each in the ratio of 1 Equity Shares for every 6
Equity shares held allotted on September 20, 2010 as per the details given below :

Sr. No. Name of Allottees No. of shares Allotted
1. Kashyap Gambhir 1,32,500
2. Toron Fabs Private Limited 83,334
3. Deepika Gambhir 34,000
4. Satbinder Singh Gill 83
5. Rashmin R Shah 83
Total 2,50,000

6. Further allotment of 2,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid at par on March 28, 2011 as
per the details given below:

Sr. No. Name of Allottees No. of shares Allotted
1. Deepika Gambhir 2,00,000
2. Kashyap Gambhir 50,000
Total 2,50,000

7. Further allotment of 7,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid at par on October 07, 2011 as
per the details given below :

Sr. No. Name of Allottees No. of shares Allotted
1. Kashyap Gambhir 5,00,000
2. Deepika Gambhir 2,50,000
Total 7,50,000

8. Further allotment of 25,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid at par on August 23, 2013
as per the details given below :

Sr. No. Name of Allottees No. of shares Allotted

1. Snehlata Pansari 6,50,000
2. Sheetal Poddar 3,50,000
3. Rakhi Pansari 3,00,000
4, Kashyap Gambhir 2,50,000
5. Deepika Gambhir 2,50,000
6. Sanwarmal Pansari HUF 2,50,000
7. Alok Pansari 1,50,000
8. Omprakash Chudiwala 1,00,000
9. Navin Pansari (HUF) 75,000
10. Alok Pansari (HUF) 75,000
11. Navin Pansari 50,000

Total 25,00,000
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9. Private Placement of 10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid at par on July 06, 2015 as
per the details given below :

Sr. No. Name of Allottee No. of shares Allotted
1. Vinay Chudiwala 2,35,000
2. Renu Chudiwala 1,95,000
3. Megha Chudiwala 1,70,000
4. Sujata Arwari 1,50,000
5. Kamlakar Arwari 1,50,000
6. Arun Arwari 52,500
7. Deepika Gambhir 47,500
Total 10,00,000
3. We have not issued any Equity Shares for consideration other than cash except as follows:
Date of No. of Issue Benefits
Allotment | Equity \'/:::zi Pric | Reasons for | accrued to Allottees é\lh%rzfs
/ Fully Shares (Rs.) e allotment our allotted
paid-up | allotted | (Rs.) Company
Expenditure Kashyap
incurred on Gambhir 7,29,630
behalf of
Compan .
February | 8,29,63 towa?ds Y Busmes_s
10 10 Convenien .

01, 2007 0 development ce Deepika 1.00.000
of factory Gambhir Y
premises and
acquisition of
power supply

Kashyap 1,32,500
Bonus Issue Gambhir —
in Ratio of 1 | Deepika 34,000
S . Capitalisati | Gambhir
eptember | 2,50,00 Equity Shares f Satbinder

20,2010 |0 10 NA for every 6 %n © Sinah Gill 83
Equity Share Eserves g -
held Rashmin Shah 83

Toron Fabs
Private Limited 83,334

4. No Equity Shares have been allotted pursuant to any scheme approved under Sections 391 - 394 of the
Companies Act, 1956 or under Sections 230-240 of the Companies Act, 2013.

5. Our Company has not revalued its assets since inception and has not issued any Equity Shares (including
bonus shares) by capitalizing any revaluation reserves.

6. Noshares have been issued at price below Issue Price within last one year from the date of this Prospectus.
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7. Build-up of Promoters’ shareholding, Promoters’ contribution and lock-in
i.  Build Up of Promoter’s shareholdings

As on the date of this Prospectus, our Promoters, Kashyap Gambhir and Satbinder Singh Gill together holds 23,86,165 Equity Shares of our Company. None
of the Equity shares held by our Promoters are subject to any pledge.

a. Kashyap Gambhir

Date of Allotment / No. of Face value Acc:ZsilsJiii/o y Pre-issue Post- issue
Transfer / w_hen made Equity per Share Transfer price Nature of Transactions | shareholding shareholding % Pledge
fully paid up Shares (Rs.) (Rs.)* %
Subscription to MOA 4,500 10 10 | Subscription to MOA 0.07% 0.05% No
Transfer from Rashmin 0.01% No
January 31, 2007 500 10 10 Shah 0.01%
February 01, 2007 7,29,630 10 10 Further Allotment 11.67% 8.52% No
March 15, 2008 60,860 10 10 Further Allotment 0.97% 0.71% No
Transferred to Rashmin (0.01%) No
August 25, 2008 (500) 10 10 Shah (0.01%)
Transfer from Amolik No
Singh Chawala jointly
10 10 with Hardeep Singh Negligible Negligible
Chawala and Jagdeep
June 05, 2010 01 Singh Chawala
Transfer from Sagar No
10 10 | Creation jointly with Negligible Negligible
June 07, 2010 01 Mihir Fabs
Transfer from No
10 10 Muk'g'sah‘{('ﬂﬁ:‘;r”ggi les Negligible Negligible
June 08, 2010 01 Pvt. Ltd.
Transfer from Avanish No
10 10 va?ﬁ?\;l’;“r?ﬂéal'\;‘ oty 1 Negligible Negligible
June 09, 2010 01 Jain and Neeta V Jain
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Issue /

Date of Allotment / No. of Face value Acquisition / Pre-issue Post- issue
Transfer / when made Equity per Share Tra?msfer rice Nature of Transactions | shareholding shareholding % Pledge
fully paid up Shares (Rs.) Re ),E’ % g0
Transfer from Shilpa No
10 10 | Jain jointly with Umesh Negligible Negligible
June 10, 2010 01 Jain
Transfer from i - No
June 11, 2010 01 10 10 Narendrakumar Shah Negligible Negligible
Transfer from Parthvi No
10 10 | Creations jointly with Negligible Negligible
June 12, 2010 01 Riya Tex
Transfer from Kushiram - - No
June 14, 2010 01 10 10 Kewlani Negligible Negligible
Transfer from R Rakesh No
10 10 | Kumar & Co. Jointly Negligible Negligible
June 17, 2010 01 with Pravin Kumar Jain
September 20, 2010 1,32,500 10 NA Bonus Issue 2.12% 1.55% No
10 10 Transferred to Nealigible Negligible No
D Vipulkumar Jain 9hg
@ 10 10 | Transferred to Sushila . - No
Kothari Negligible Negligible
@ 10 10 | Transferred to Shweta . - No
Kothari Negligible Negligible
@ 10 10 | Transferred to Mukund . - No
March 25. 2011 Ramniklal Desai HUF Negligible Negligible
’ @ 10 10 Transferred to Neglidible Nealigible No
Bharatkumar Jain ghg gig
@ 10 10 | Transferred to Ashish - - No
Textiles Negligible Negligible
@ 10 10 Transferred to Arju - . No
Kothari Negligible Negligible
@ 10 10 Transferred to R. - - No
Rakeshkumar & Co. Negligible Negligible
March 28, 2011 50,000 10 10 Further Allotment 0.80% 0.58% No
October 07, 2011 5,00,000 10 10 Further Allotment 8.00% 5.84% No
August 23, 2013 2,50,000 10 10 Further Allotment 4.00% 2.92% No
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Issue /

Date of Allotment / No. of Face value Acquisition / Pre-issue Post- issue
Transfer / when made Equity per Share Tra?msfer rice Nature of Transactions | shareholding shareholding % Pledge
fully paid up Shares (Rs.) Re ),E’ % g0
Transferred to Girish _ . No
1) 10 10 Sheth Negligible Negligible
Transferred to Gulabben . - No
(1) 10 10 Ramniklal Pooj Negligible Negligible
Transferred to Kamal . - No
September 12, 2013 ) 10 101" Suresh Doshi HUF Negligible Negligible
Transferred to - - No
October 15, 2013 ) 10 101" Radhaballabh Kejriwal Negligible Negligible
Transfer from Sujata - - No
March 02, 2017 01 10 10 Arwari Negligible Negligible
Transfer from Gyankaur - . No
March 06, 2017 01 10 10 Singh Thanvi Negligible Negligible
Transfer from Arun . - No
March 07, 2017 01 10 10 Arwari Negligible Negligible
Transfe from Sejal - - No
March 09, 2017 01 10 10 Sachdevr Negligible Negligible
10 10| Transfer from Aarti Negligible Negligible | N°
01 Sachdev
March 14, 2017
10 10| _ [ransfer fromR. Negligible Negligible | N°
01 Rakesh Kumar & Co.
Transfer from Girish . - No
March 17, 2017 01 10 10 Sheth Negligible Negligible
Transfer from Kamlakar - . No
March 20, 2017 01 10 10 Arwari Negligible Negligible
Transfer from Mukund - . No
March 21, 2017 01 10 101" Ramniklal Desai HUF Negligible Negligible
Transfer from - .. No
March 25, 2017 01 10 10 Radhaballabh Kejriwal Negligible Negligible
Transfer from Kamal - - No
March 29, 2017 01 10 101" "Syresh Doshi HUF Negligible Negligible
Transfer from Kamaljeet - - No
01 10 10 Kaur Gill Negligible Negligible
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Issue /

Date of Allotment / No. of Face value |\ . icition / Pre-issue Post- issue
Transfer / when made Equity per Share Tra?]sfer rice Nature of Transactions | shareholding shareholding % Pledge
fully paid up Shares (Rs.) Re )E % g0
Transferred to Ajay 0 (1.17%) No
(1,00,000) 10 25 Shah (1.60%)
Transferred to Pankaj 0 (0.35%) No
January 10, 2018 (30,000) 10 25 Modi (0.48%)
Transfer from 0 2.28% No
February 20, 2018 1,95,000 10 1583 | Radhashyam Panigrahy 3.12%
Transfer from Arun 0 0.61% No
52.500 10 15.83 Arwari 0.84%
i 0
February 28, 2018 10 15.83 Transfer from Rashmin 0.01% 0.01% NO
583 Shah
Transferred to Subhash 0 (0.12%) No
(10,000) 10 25 Parulekar (0.16%)
Total 18,35,582 29.37% 21.44% No
*Cost of acquisition excludes Stamp Duty and the shares were made fully paid on the date of allotment
b. Satbinder Singh Gill
Issue / .
Date of Allotment / No. of Face value L . Pre-issue .
. Acquisition / Nature of - Post- issue
Transfer / when made Equity per Share . . shareholding : Pledge
. Transfer price Transactions shareholding %
fully paid up Shares (Rs.) (Rs.)* %
Subscription to MOA 500 10 10 | Subscription to MOA 0.01% 0.01% No
September 20, 2010 83 10 NA | Bonus Issue Negligible Negligible No
0,
10 15.83 Transfer from Pranav 4.00% 2.92% No
2,50,000 Shah
February 20, 2018
10 15.83 Transfer from 4.80% 3.50% No
3,00,000 *©° | Rashmin Shah 070
Total 5,50,583 8.81% 6.43%

*Cost of acquisition excludes Stamp Duty and the shares were made fully paid on the date of allotment
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Details of Promoter’s Contribution locked in for three years:

Pursuant to Regulation 32 and 36 of SEBI ICDR Regulations, an aggregate of 20% of the post-Issue
capital held by our Promoters shall be considered as Promoter’s Contribution (“Promoters
Contribution”) and locked-in for a period of three years from the date of Allotment. The lock-in of the
Promoters’ Contribution would be created as per applicable law and procedure and details of the same
shall also be provided to the Stock Exchange before listing of the Equity Shares.

Our Promoters have given written consent to include such number of Equity Shares held by them and
subscribed by them as a part of Promoters’ Contribution constituting 20.19% of the post issue Equity
Shares of our Company and have agreed not to sell or transfer or pledge or otherwise dispose of in any
manner, the Promoters Contribution, for a period of three years from the date of allotment in the Issue.

Date of No. of o
Allotment/ Shares Face | Issue Nature of /olzzuPeost Lock in
made fully Allotted/ | Value | Price Allotment . Period
: shareholding
paid up Transferred
Kashyap Gambhir
On 4,500 10 10 Subscription to 0.05% | 3 years
Incorporation Memorandum
February 01, 7,29,630 10 10 Further Allotment 8.52% | 3 Years
2007
March 15, 60,860 10 10 Further Allotment 0.71% | 3 years
2008
September 20, | 1,32,500 10 NA Bonus Issue 1.55% | 3 years
2010
March 28, 50,000 10 10 Further Allotment 0.58% | 3 years
2011
07 October 5,00,000 10 10 Further Allotment 5.84% | 3 years
2011
23 August 1,20,000 10 10 Further Allotment 1.40% | 3 Years
2013
February 20, 1,00,000 10 15.83 | Transfer from 1.17% | 3 Years
2018 Radhashyam
Panigrahy
Satbinder Singh Gill
July 06, 2006 | 500 10 10 Subscription to 0.01% | 3 years
Memorandum
September 20, | 83 10 NA Bonus Issue Negligible | 3 years
2010
February 20, 30,000 10 15.83 | Transfer from 0.35% | 3 Years
2018 Pranav Shah
Total 17,28,073 20.19%

The minimum Promoters’ contribution has been brought in to the extent of not less than the specified
minimum lot and from the persons defined as ‘promoter’ under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations. The
Equity Shares that are being locked in are not ineligible for computation of Promoters’ contribution in
terms of Regulation 33 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. In connection, we confirm the following:
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a. The Equity Shares offered for minimum 20% Promoter’s contribution have not been acquired in
the three years preceding the date of this Prospectus for consideration other than cash and
revaluation of assets or capitalization of intangible assets nor resulted from a bonus issue out of the
revaluation reserves or unrealized profits of the Company or against Equity Shares which are
otherwise ineligible for computation of Promoters’ contribution;

b. The minimum Promoters’ contribution does not include Equity Shares acquired during the one year
preceding the date of this Prospectus at a price lower than the Issue Price;

c. No equity shares have been issued to our promoter upon conversion of a partnership firm during
the preceding one year at a price less than the issue price.

d. The Equity Shares held by the Promoter and offered for minimum Promoters’ contribution are not
subject to any pledge;

e. All the Equity Shares of our Company held by the Promoter are in the dematerialized form; and

f. The Equity Shares offered for Promoter’s contribution do not consist of Equity Shares for which
specific written consent has not been obtained from the Promoter for inclusion of its subscription
in the Promoter’s contribution subject to lock-in.

Details of Share Capital locked in for one year

Other than the above Equity Shares that are locked in for three years, the entire pre-Issue Equity
Share capital of our Company shall be locked-in for a period of one year from the date of allotment
in the Public Issue.

Other requirements in respect of lock-in:

Pursuant to Regulation 39 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the locked-in Equity Shares held by the
Promoters, as specified above, can be pledged only with scheduled commercial banks or public
financial institutions as collateral security for loans granted by such scheduled commercial banks or
public financial institution, provided that the pledge of the Equity Shares is one of the terms of the
sanction of the loan.

Provided that securities locked in as Promoters’ Contribution for 3 years under Regulation 36(a) of the
SEBI ICDR Regulations may be pledged only if, in addition to fulfilling the above requirement, the
loan has been granted by such scheduled commercial bank or public financial institution for the purpose
of financing one or more of the objects of the Issue.

Further, pursuant to Regulation 40 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, the Equity Shares held by persons
other than the Promoters prior to the Issue may be transferred to any other person holding the Equity
Shares which are locked-in as per Regulation 37 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, along with the Equity
Shares proposed to be transferred, provided that lock-in on such Equity Shares will continue for the
remaining period with the transferee and such transferee shall not be eligible to transfer such Equity
Shares till the lock-in period stipulated under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations has ended, subject to
compliance with the Takeover Code, as applicable.

We further confirm that our Promoters’ Contribution of 20.19% of the post Issue Equity Share capital
does not include any contribution from Alternative Investment Fund.

There were no shares purchased / sold by the Promoter and Promoter Group, directors and their
immediate relatives during last six months.
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9. Our Shareholding Pattern
The table below presents the shareholding pattern of our Company as per Regulation 31, of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015

Summary of Shareholding Pattern as on the date of this Prospectus:-

Sharehold Number of
Number of Voting :;g s Number of S:L%re:d i
Rights held in each | No. of agsumin Locked in gthe?wise
No. class of securities* | Shares g shares**
of _Sharehold Underlyi full ; encumbere
Part No. of ing as a % ng conversion d N e
c Nos. No. of ly shares of total no. Outstandi of ) equity
a of fully paid underl | Total of shares ng convertibl shares held
teg | Category of shar paid up U ying nos. (calculate convertibl | € A A in
or | Shareholder equity P Deposi | shares d as per securities Sa Sa -
ehol - equi- | or held SCRR Total € (asa % of % of | demateriali
y ders held ty Regei 1957) ' No of asa% | securities ercenta No.( total | No | total | zed
shar ts P As 2% of Voting of (includin gof g 3) : Shar | . Shar | form***
es (A+B+C2) Rights (A+tB+ | g diluted es (@ | es
held C) Warrants held held
) share (b) (b)
capital)
As a % of
(A+B+C2)
| 1 1l v \% VI YI\I/:\I/\I/ VIl IX X §I:V“+ Xl X111 XV
A | Promoter and 43,05,0 43,05,0 43,05,0 | 68.88
Promoter Group 7 00 - - 00 68.88% | 00 % - - - - - - 43,05,000
B | Public 19,45,0 19,45,0 19,45,0 | 31.12
12 00 - - 00 31.12% 00 % - - - - - - 19,45,000
C | Non Promoter- - - - - - - - - - - - - - |- -
Non Public
1 | Shares underlying | - - - - - - - - - - - - - |- -
DRs
2 | Shares held by - - - - - - - - - - - - - |- -
Employee Trusts
Total 62,50,0 62,50,0 62,50,0 | 100.0
19 00 - - 00 100.00% | 00 0% - - - - - - 62,50,000

*As on the date of this Prospectus 1 Equity Shares holds 1 vote.
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**All Pre-1IPO Equity Shares of our Company will be locked in as mentioned above prior to Listing of Shares on EMERGE Platform of National Stock Exchange
of India Limited.

*** As of the latest Benificiary Position Statement, as of March 15, 2019.
Note: PAN of shareholders will be provided to the Stock Exchange by our Company prior to listing of its Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange.

Our Company will file the shareholding pattern of our Company, in the form prescribed under Regulation 31 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, one day prior
to the listing of the Equity shares. The Shareholding pattern will be uploaded on the website of National Stock Exchange of India before commencement of
trading of such Equity Shares.
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10. The details of the holding of securities (including shares, warrants, convertible securities) of persons
belonging to the category Promoters and Promoter Group are as under:

Pre — Issue Post — Issue
ilr. Name of the Shareholder | No. of Equity % of Pre- No. of Equity Yo B Es
0. ; Issue
Shares Issue Capital Shares -
Capital
() [ (an (1)) (v) %) (Vi)
Promoter
1. | Kashyap Gambhir 18,35,582 29.37% 18,35,582 21.44%
2. | Satbinder Singh Gill 5,50,583 8.81% 5,50,583 6.43%
Sub Total (A) 23,86,165 38.18% 23,86,165 27.88%
Promoter Group
3. Deepika Gambhir 9,85,500 15.77% 9,85,500 11.51%
4, Toron Fabs Private Limited 5,83,335 9.33% 5,83,335 6.81%
5. Kamlakar Arwari 1,50,000 2.40% 1,50,000 1.75%
6. | Sujata Arwari 1,50,000 2.40% 1,50,000 1.75%
7. | Sonika Gambhir 50,000 0.80% 50,000 0.58%
Sub Total (B) 19,18,835 30.70% 19,18,835 22.42%
Total (A+B) 43,05,000 68.88% 43,05,000 50.29%

11. The average cost of acquisition of or subscription to Equity Shares by our Promoter is set forth in the
table below:

Name of the Promoter No. of Shares held Average cost of Acquisition (in Rs.)
Kashyap Gambhir 18,35,582 8.92
Satbinder Singh Gill 5,50,583 15.82

12. Except as mentioned below, no persons belonging to the category “Public” who hold securities
(including shares, warrants, convertible securities) of more than 1% of the total number of shares.

Sr Pre — Issue Post — Issue
No | Name of the Shareholder | No. of Equity | % of Pre- No. of %6 of Post-
Shares Issue Capital =iy Issge
Shares Capital
U] (1) (1 (v) (V) (V1)
1. | Hitesh Patel 5,25,000 8.40% 5,25,000 8.40%
2. | Tejal Mathur 2,60,000 4.16% 2,60,000 4.16%
3. | Miten Furia 2,50,000 4.00% 2,50,000 4.00%
4. | Kiran Aroskar 2,10,000 3.36% 2,10,000 3.36%
5. | Sanjeev Mathur 1,60,000 2.56% 1,60,000 2.56%
6. | Rajiv Mathur 1,60,000 2.56% 1,60,000 2.56%
7. | Vikas Bhandari 1,50,000 2.40% 1,50,000 2.40%
8. | Ajay Shah 1,00,000 1.60% 1,00,000 1.60%
9. | Nikhil Garg 75,000 1.20% 75,000 1.20%
Total 18,90,000 30.24% 18,90,000 30.24%

The lists of top 10 shareholders of our Company and the number of Equity Shares held by them as on
the date of filing, ten days before the date of filing and two years before the date of filing of this
Prospectus are set forth below:

a) Particulars of the top ten shareholders as on the date of filing this Prospectus:

: 5 =
Sr. Name of Shareholders Number of Equity % of Tota! Paid-Up
No. Shares Capital

1. Kashyap Gambhir 18,35,582 29.37%

2. Deepika Gambhir 9,85,500 15.77%
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13.

14.

15.

Sr. Name of Shareholders Number of Equity % of Total_ Paid-Up
No. Shares Capital
3. Toron Fabs Private Limited 5,83,335 9.33%
4. Satbinder Singh Gill 5,50,583 8.81%
5. Hitesh Patel 5,25,000 8.40%
6. Tejal Mathur 2,60,000 4.16%
7. Miten Furia 2,50,000 4.00%
8. Kiran Aroskar 2,10,000 3.36%
9. Rajiv Mathur 1,60,000 2.56%
10. Sanjiv Mathur 1,60,000 2.56%
Total 55,20,000 88.32%
b) Particulars of the top ten shareholders as at ten days prior to the date of filing of this Prospectus:
Eg'. Name of Shareholders Numb;;::;qwty kel ?;glitZ?'d'Up
1. Kashyap Gambhir 18,35,582 29.37%
2. Deepika Gambhir 9,85,500 15.77%
3. Toron Fabs Private Limited 5,83,335 9.33%
4. Satbinder Singh Gill 5,50,583 8.81%
5. Hitesh Patel 5,25,000 8.40%
6. Tejal Mathur 2,60,000 4.16%
7. Miten Furia 2,50,000 4.00%
8. Kiran Aroskar 2,10,000 3.36%
9. Rajiv Mathur 1,60,000 2.56%
10. Sanjiv Mathur 1,60,000 2.56%
Total 55,20,000 88.32%
c) Particulars of the top ten shareholders two years prior to the date of filing of this Prospectus:
Sr. Name of Shareholders Number of Equity % of Total_ Paid-Up
No. Shares Capital
1. | Kashyap Gambhir 17,27,496 27.64%
2. | Deepika Gambhir 9,85,500 15.77%
3. | Snehlata Pansari 6,50,000 10.40%
4. | Toron Fabs Private Limited 5,83,335 9.33%
5. | Sheetal Poddar 3,50,000 5.60%
6. | Rakhi Pansari 3,00,000 4.80%
7. | Sanwarmal Pansari (HUF) 2,50,000 4.00%
8. | Vinay Chudiwala 2,35,000 3.76%
9. | Renu Chudiwala 1,95,000 3.12%
10. | Megha Chudiwala 1,70,000 2.72%
Total 54,46,331 87.14%

Our Company does not have any Employee Stock Option Scheme / Employee Stock Purchase Plan for
our employees and we do not intend to allot any shares to our employees under Employee Stock Option
Scheme / Employee Stock Purchase Plan from the proposed issue. As and when, options are granted to
our employees under the Employee Stock Option Scheme, our Company shall comply with the SEBI
(Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014.

Neither the Book Running Lead Manager viz. Pantomath Capital Advisors Private Limited, nor their
associates hold any Equity Shares of our Company as on the date of this Prospectus.

Under-subscription in the net issue, if any, in any category, would be allowed to be met with spill over
from any other category or a combination of categories at the discretion of our Company in consultation
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16.

17.
18.
19.

20.

21.

22.
23.

24.

25.

26.

27.
28.
29.

30.

31.

with the Book Running Lead Manager and the EMERGE Platform of National Stock Exchange of India
Limited.

The unsubscribed portion in any reserved category (if any) may be added to any other reserved category.
The unsubscribed portion after such inter se adjustments among the reserved categories shall be added
back to the net Issue to the public portion.

There are no Equity Shares against which depository receipts have been issued.
Other than the Equity Shares, there is no other class of securities issued by our Company.

There will be no further issue of capital, whether by way of issue of bonus shares, preferential allotment,
right issue or in any other manner during the period commencing from the date of the Prospectus until
the Equity Shares have been listed. Further, our Company does not intend to alter its capital structure
within six months from the date of opening of the Issue, by way of split / consolidation of the
denomination of Equity Shares. However our Company may further issue Equity Shares (including
issue of securities convertible into Equity Shares) whether preferential or otherwise after the date of the
listing of equity shares to finance an acquisition, merger or joint venture or for regulatory compliance
or such other scheme of arrangement or any other purpose as the Board may deem fit, if an opportunity
of such nature is determined by its Board of Directors to be in the interest of our Company.

None of the persons/entities comprising our Promoter Group, or our Directors or their relatives have
financed the purchase by any other person of securities of our Company other than in the normal course
of the business of any such entity/individual or otherwise during the period of six months immediately
preceding the date of filing of this Prospectus.

Our Company, our Promoters, our Directors and the Book Running Lead Manager have not entered
into any buy back or standby or similar arrangements for the purchase of Equity Shares being offered
through the Issue from any person.

There are no safety net arrangements for this public issue.

An over-subscription to the extent of 10% of the Issue can be retained for the purpose of rounding off
to the nearest multiple of minimum allotment lot, while finalizing the Basis of Allotment. Consequently,
the actual Allotment may go up by a maximum of 10% of the Issue, as a result of which, the post-Issue
paid up capital after the Issue would also increase by the excess amount of Allotment so made. In such
an event, the Equity Shares held by our Promoters and subject to lock- in shall be suitably increased; so
as to ensure that a minimum of 20% of the post Issue paid-up capital is locked in.

In the event of over-subscription, Allotment shall be made on a proportionate basis, subject to valid
Bids received at or above the Issue Price

As on date of this Prospectus there are no outstanding warrants, options or rights to convert debentures
loans or other financial instruments into our Equity Shares.

All the Equity Shares of our Company are fully paid up as on the date of the Prospectus. Further, since
the entire issue price in respect of the Issue is payable on application, all the successful applicants will
be issued fully paid-up equity shares and thus all shares offered through this issue shall be fully paid-

up.
As per RBI regulations, OCBs are not allowed to participate in this Issue.
Our Company has not raised any bridge loans against the proceeds of the Issue.

Our Company undertakes that at any given time, there shall be only one denomination for our Equity
Shares, unless otherwise permitted by law.

Our Company shall comply with such accounting and disclosure norms as specified by SEBI from time
to time.

An Applicant cannot make an application for more than the number of Equity Shares being issued
through this Issue, subject to the maximum limit of investment prescribed under relevant laws
applicable to each category of investors.
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32.

33.
34.
35.
36.

37.

38.

No payment, direct or indirect in the nature of discount, commission, and allowance or otherwise shall
be made either by us or our Promoters to the persons who receive allotments, if any, in this Issue.

Our Company has 19 shareholders as on the date of filing of this Prospectus.
Our Promoters and the members of our Promoter Group will not participate in this Issue.
Our Company has not made any public issue since its incorporation.

Our Company shall ensure that transactions in the Equity Shares by the Promoters and the Promoter
Group between the date of filing the Prospectus and the Issue Closing Date shall be reported to the
Stock Exchange within twenty-four hours of such transaction.

For the details of transactions by our Company with our Promoter Group, Group Companies during the
period ended September 30, 2018 and financial years ended March 31, 2018, 2017, 2016, 2015, and
2014, please refer to paragraph titled “Details of Related Parties Transactions as Restated” in the chapter
titled “Financial Statements as restated” on page 209 of this Prospectus.

Except as stated in the chapter titled “Our Management” beginning on page 185 of this Prospectus,
none of our Directors or Key Managerial Personnel hold Equity Shares in our Company
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OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE
Requirement of Funds:

The proceeds of the Issue, after deducting Issue related expenses, are estimated to be Rs. 100.25 lakhs
(the “Net Proceeds”).

We intend to utilize the Net Proceeds from Issue towards the following objects:
1. Funding the Working Capital requirements of our Company; and
2. General Corporate Purposes
(Collectively referred to as “Objects”)

Also, we believe that the listing of Equity Shares will enhance our Company’s corporate image, brand
name and create a public market for our Equity Shares in India.

The main objects clause of our Memorandum of Association and the objects incidental and ancillary to
the main objects enables us to undertake the activities for which funds are being raised in the Issue. The
existing activities of our Company are within the objects clause of our Memorandum of Association.

ISSUE PROCEEDS

Particulars Amount (Rs. in lakhs)
Gross Proceeds from the Issue 831.60
Less- Issue related expenses 100.25
Net Proceeds 731.35

UTILIZATION OF NET PROCEEDS

The net proceeds are proposed to be used in manner as set out below:

Sr. Particulars Amount to be financed | Percentage | Percentage
No. from Net Proceeds of Gross of Net
(Rs. in lakhs) Proceeds Proceeds
1. Fundl_ng the Working Capital 725.00 87 18% 99.13%
Requirements of our Company
2. General Corporate Purposes* 6.35 0.76% 0.87%

*To be finalized on determination of the Issue Price and updated in the Prospectus prior to filing with
the ROC.

SCHEDULE OF IMPLEMENTATION & DEPLOYMENT OF FUNDS:

We propose to deploy the Net Proceeds for the aforesaid purposes in accordance with the estimated
schedule of implementation and deployment of funds set forth in the table below. As on the date of this
Prospectus, our Company has not deployed any funds towards the objects of the Issue.

(Rs. in lakhs)
Amount to be Estimated Estimated
Sr _ funded from Utilization of Net Utilization of Net
NO‘ Particulars the Net Proceeds Proceeds
Proceeds(In (Financial Year (Financial Year
Lakhs) 2019) 2020)
1. Funding the Working 725.00 725.00 -
Capital Requirements
of our Company
2. General Corporate 6.35 - 6.35
Purposes*

*To be finalized on determination of the Issue Price and updated in the Prospectus prior to filing with
the ROC.
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To the extent our Company is unable to utilise any portion of the Net Proceeds towards the Objects, as
per the estimated schedule of deployment specified above, our Company shall deploy the Net Proceeds
in the subsequent Financial Years towards the Objects.

MEANS OF FINANCE

The working capital requirements will be met through the Net Proceeds to the extent of Rs. 725.00
lakhs and balance through internal accruals/ net worth/ unsecured loans and short term bank finance.
Further details of funding of the Objects is given below:

(Rs in lakhs)
Internal Accruals/ Short Term
Objects of the Issue Amo_u nt 1RO Net worth/ Cash Credit
Required | Proceeds o
Unsecured Loans Facility
Funding the Working Capital 3,563.91 725.00 1,788.91 1,050.00
Requirements of our
Company
General Corporate Purposes* 6.35 6.35 - -

*To be finalized on determination of the Issue Price and updated in the Prospectus prior to filing with
the ROC.

Accordingly, we confirm that we are in compliance with the requirement to make firm arrangements of
finance under Regulation 4(2) (g) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations through verifiable means towards at
least 75% of the stated means of finance, excluding the amount to be raised through the Net Proceeds
and existing identifiable internal accruals.

The fund requirements mentioned above are based on the internal management estimates of our
Company and have not been verified by the Book Running Lead Manager or appraised by any bank,
financial institution or any other external agency. The fund requirements are based on current
circumstances of our business and our Company may have to revise its estimates from time to time on
account of various factors beyond its control, such as market conditions, competitive environment, costs
of commaodities and interest or exchange rate fluctuations. Consequently, the fund requirements of our
Company are subject to revisions in the future at the discretion of the management. In the event of any
shortfall of funds for the activities proposed to be financed out of the Net Proceeds as stated above, our
Company may re-allocate the Net Proceeds to the activities where such shortfall has arisen, subject to
compliance with applicable laws. Further, in case of a shortfall in the Net Proceeds or cost overruns,
our management may explore a range of options including utilising our internal accruals or seeking debt
financing.

Details of the Objects
Funding the working capital requirements of our Company:

We fund the majority of our working capital requirements in the ordinary course of our business from
our internal accruals, net worth, unsecured loans and financing from bank. As on March 31, 2017 and
March 31, 2018, the amount outstanding on our Company’s fund based working capital facility was Rs.
1,045.93 lakhs and Rs. 1,046.89 lakhs respectively as per the restated financial statements. As on March
31, 2018, our sanctioned working capital facilities comprised of fund based limit of Rs. 1,050.00 lakhs.
For further details, please refer to the chapter titled “Financial Indebtedness” beginning on page 229
of this Prospectus.

Our Company’s existing working capital requirement and funding on the basis of Restated Financial
Information as of March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 are as stated below:

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Current Assets
Inventories
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Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Raw materials 715.35 478.63
Work in Progress 878.84 522.79
Finished goods 488.21 711.22
Trade Receivables 3,370.22 1,874.32
Cash and Bank Balances 2.38 5.06
Other Current Assets -Loans and Advances 39.99 47.75
Total (A) 5,495.00 3,639.77
Current Liabilities
Trade Payables 2,096.17 1,165.52
Other Current Liabilities & Short Term Provisions 628.54 330.08
Total (B) 2,724.71 1,495.60
Total Working Capital (A)-(B) 2,770.29 2,144.17
Existing Funding Pattern
Working Capital funding from Banks 1,046.89 1,045.93
Internal accruals/Net Worth/Unsecured Loans 1,723.40 1,098.24

Basis of estimation of working capital requirement

On the basis of our existing working capital requirements and the projected working capital
requirements, our Board pursuant to its resolution dated March 01, 2019 has approved the business plan
for the Fiscals 2019 and for the Fiscal 2020. The projected working capital requirements for Fiscal 2019
is stated below:

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Marcr_l G e
(Estimated)

Current Assets (A)
Inventories

Raw materials 664.18

Work in Progress 478.46

Finished goods 360.06
Trade Receivables 3,387.19
Cash and Bank Balances 21.60
Short term Loans & Advances and Other Current Assets 81.91
Total (A) 4,993.40
Current Liabilities (B)
Trade Payables 1,274.98
Other Current Liabilities & Short term Provision 154,51
Total (B) 1,429.49
Total Working Capital (A)-(B) 3,563.91
Funding Pattern
IPO Proceeds 725.00
Working capital loan from bank 1,050.00
Internal Accruals/Net worth/Unsecured Loans 1,788.91
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Assumption for working capital requirements

(In months)
Particulars Holding Level for Holding Level for Holding Level for
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019
(Estimated)
Current Assets
Inventories
Raw materials 4.36 5.10 5.00
Work in Progress 1.44 1.96 0.98
Finished goods 1.87 1.12 0.74
Trade Receivables 4.24 6.29 5.50
Current Liabilities
Trade Payables 3.41 5.32 3.40

Justification for “Holding Period” levels

The justifications for the holding levels mentioned in the table above are provided below:

Assets- Current Assets

Inventories

Raw Materials- We have assumed raw material inventory levels of 5.00
months for the FY 2018-19, as against 5.10 months and 4.36 months for
the FY 2017-18 and 2016-17 as we aim to increase our production and
hence intend to maintain slightly low level of raw materials.
Work-in-Progress- We have assumed WIP holding levels of 0.98 month
for the FY 2018-19, as against 1.96 months and 1.44 months for the FY
2017-18 and 2016-17 as we intend to hold less inventory in WIP as our
business operations grow and our volume increases.

Finished Goods- Since our entire production activity is order based, we
have historically maintained finished goods inventory at a decent level.
Therefore, in future as well, we intend to maintain finished good
inventory of 0.74 month for the FY 2018-19 as we believe that increase
in our order book will help us in quick clearance of finished goods
inventory.

Trade receivables

We have assumed trade receivable period of 5.50 months for the FY
2018-19 as against 6.29 months for FY 2017-18 as we intend to quick
realize from our debtors to fund our increased estimated working capital
requirements.

Liabilities—Current
Liabilities

Trade Payables

In FY 2018-19, the credit period is expected to be 3.40, as, against 5.32
months and 3.41 months for FY 2017-18 and 2016-17 respectively as
going forward we expect to prune our creditors days by infusing funds
towards working capital from the net issue proceeds.

Our Company proposes to utilize Rs. 725.00 lakhs of the Net Proceeds in FY 2018-19 towards our
working capital requirements and the balance portion of our working capital requirement will be
arranged from existing Bank loans and Internal Accruals/ Net Worth/ Unsecured Loans.

General Corporate Purposes:

The Net Proceeds will be first utilized towards the Objects as mentioned above. The balance is proposed
to be utilized for general corporate purposes, subject to such utilization not exceeding 25% of the Net
Proceeds, in compliance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Our Company intends to deploy the balance
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Net Proceeds, if any, for general corporate purposes, subject to above mentioned limit, as may be
approved by our management, including but not restricted to, the following:

0] strategic initiatives
(i) brand building and strengthening of marketing activities; and

(ili)  On-going general corporate exigencies or any other purposes as approved by the Board subject
to compliance with the necessary regulatory provisions.

The quantum of utilization of funds towards each of the above purposes will be determined by our
Board of Directors based on the permissible amount actually available under the head “General
Corporate Purposes” and the business requirements of our Company, from time to time. We, in
accordance with the policies of our Board, will have flexibility in utilizing the Net Proceeds for general
corporate purposes, as mentioned above.

ISSUE RELATED EXPENSES

The expenses for this Issue include issue management fees, underwriting fees, registrar fees, legal
advisor fees, printing and distribution expenses, advertisement expenses, depository charges and listing
fees to the Stock Exchange, among others. The total expenses for this Issue are estimated not to exceed
Rs. 100.25 Lakhs.

Expenses Expenses Expenses
E . (% of total | (% of Gross
Xpenses (Rs. in
Lakhs)* Issue Issue
exXpenses) Proceeds)
Payment to Merchant Banker including expenses 90.25 90.02% 10.85%
towards printing, advertising, and payment to other
intermediaries such as Registrars, Bankers etc.
Regulatory fees 4.00 3.99% 0.48%
Marketing and Other Expenses 6.00 5.99% 0.72%
Total estimated Issue expenses 100.25 100.00% 12.06%

*As on the date of the Prospectus, our Company has incurred Rs. 26.88 Lakhs towards Issue
Expenses out of internal accruals.

Selling commission payable to the members of the Syndicate, registered brokers, CDPs, RTA and
SCSBs, on the portion for Rlls and NIls would be as follows:

Portion for Rlls- 0.25%" (exclusive of GST)
Portion for NlIs- 0.15%" (exclusive of GST)

~percentage of the amounts received against the Equity Shares allotted (i.e. the product of the number
of Equity Shares allotted and the Issue Price)

**SCSBs will be entitled to a processing fee of Rs. 10/- per valid Application Form for processing of
the Application Forms procured by other Application Collecting Intermediary and submitted to them.

Issuer Banks for UPI mechanism as registered with SEBI would be entitled to a processing fee of Rs.
10 (plus GST) for processing the Bid cum Application Forms procured by the members of the Syndicate,
registered brokers, RTAs or the CDPs and submitted to them.

The commissions and processing fees shall be payable within 30 working days post the date of receipt
of final invoices of the respective intermediaries.

#Amount Allotted is the product of the number of Equity Shares Allotted and the Issue Price.
BRIDGE FINANCING

We have not entered into any bridge finance arrangements that will be repaid from the Net Issue
Proceeds. However, we may draw down such amounts, as may be required, from an overdraft
arrangement / cash credit facility with our lenders, to finance project requirements until the completion
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of the Issue. Any amount that is drawn down from the overdraft arrangement / cash credit facility during
this period to finance project requirements will be repaid from the Net Proceeds of the Issue.

APPRAISAL BY APPRAISING AGENCY

The fund requirement and deployment is based on internal management estimates and has not been
appraised by any bank or financial institution.

INTERIM USE OF FUNDS

Pending utilization of the Issue Proceeds for the Objects of the Issue described above, our Company
shall deposit the funds only in Scheduled Commercial Banks included in the Second Schedule of
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

In accordance with Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013, our Company confirms that, pending
utilization of the proceeds of the Issue as described above, it shall not use the funds from the Issue
Proceeds for any investment in equity and/or real estate products and/or equity linked and/or real estate
linked products.

MONITORING UTILIZATION OF FUNDS

As the size of the Issue does not exceed Rs 10,000 lakhs in terms of Regulation 16 of the SEBI
Regulations, our Company is not required to appoint a monitoring agency for the purposes of this Issue.
Our Board and Audit Committee shall monitor the utilization of the Net Proceeds.

Pursuant to Regulation 32 of the Listing Regulations, our Company shall on a half yearly basis disclose
to the Audit Committee the uses and application of the Issue Proceeds. Until such time as any part of
the Issue Proceeds remains unutilized, our Company will disclose the utilization of the Issue Proceeds
under separate heads in our Company’s balance sheet(s) clearly specifying the amount of and purpose
for which Issue Proceeds have been utilized so far, and details of amounts out of the Issue Proceeds that
have not been utilized so far, also indicating interim investments, if any, of such unutilized Issue
Proceeds. In the event that our Company is unable to utilize the entire amount that we have currently
estimated for use out of the Issue Proceeds in a Fiscal Year, we will utilize such unutilized amount in
the next financial year. Further, in accordance with Regulation 32(1) (a) of the Listing Regulations our
Company shall furnish to the Stock Exchanges on a half yearly basis, a statement indicating material
deviations, if any, in the utilization of the Issue Proceeds for the objects stated in this Prospectus.

VARIATION IN OBJECTS

In accordance with Section 13(8) and Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable rules, our
Company shall not vary the objects of the Issue without our Company being authorized to do so by the
Shareholders by way of a special resolution through postal ballot. In addition, the notice issued to the
Shareholders in relation to the passing of such special resolution (the “Postal Ballot Notice”) shall
specify the prescribed details as required under the Companies Act and applicable rules. The Postal
Ballot Notice shall simultaneously be published in the newspapers, one in English and one in the
vernacular language of the jurisdiction where the Registered Office is situated. Our Promoters or
controlling Shareholders will be required to provide an exit opportunity to such Shareholders who do
not agree to the proposal to vary the objects, at such price, and in such manner, as may be prescribed
by SEBI, in this regard.

OTHER CONFIRMATIONS

No part of the Net Proceeds will be paid by us to the Promoters and Promoter Group, the Directors,
associates or Key Management Personnel or Group Companies, except in the normal course of business
and in compliance with applicable law.
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BASIS FOR ISSUE PRICE

The Issue Price has been determined by our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead
Manager, on the basis of an assessment of market demand for the Equity Shares issued through the
Book Building Process and on the basis of quantitative and qualitative factors as described below. The
face value of the Equity Shares is Rs. 10 each and the Issue Price is 3.4 times the face value at the lower
end of the Price Band and 3.6 times the face value at the higher end of the Price Band.

Investors should also refer to the sections titled “Risk Factors” and “Financial Statements” beginning
on pages 21, 209 respectively and chapter titled “Our Business”, beginning on page 153 of this
Prospectus, to have an informed view before making an investment decision. The trading price of the
Equity Shares of our Company could decline due to these risk factors and you may lose all or part of
your investments.

QUALITATIVE FACTORS
Some of the qualitative factors, which form the basis for computing the price, are:

Experienced Promoters;

On time delivery of the products;

In-house Designing of the fabric; and

Strong long maintained relationship with the customer.

For further details, refer to heading “Our Competitive Strengths” under chapter titled “Our Business”
beginning on page 153 of this Prospectus.

QUANTITATIVE FACTORS

The information presented below is based on the restated financial statements of the Company for the
Financial Years ended March 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 and for the period ended September 30, 2018,
prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP, The Companies Act and Restated in accordance with SEBI
(ICDR) Regulations. For details refer chapter “ Financials Statements as Restated “ beginning on page
209 of this Prospectus Some of the quantitative factors, which form the basis for computing the price,
are as follows:

1. Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share (EPS) as per Accounting Standard 20 as adjusted for
changes in capital:

Year/ Period Ended EPS(Rs.) Weight
March 31, 2018 5.63 3
March 31, 2017 2.86 2
March 31, 2016 (0.59) 1
Weighted Average 3.67
For the period ended September 30, 2018* 4.07

*Not Annualised

Notes:

o Weighted average number of Equity Shares are the number of Equity Shares outstanding at the
beginning of the period/ year adjusted by the number of Equity Shares issued during year multiplied
by the time weighing factor. The time weighing factor is the number of days for which the specific
shares are outstanding as a proportion of total number of days during the period/ year. The figures
disclosed above are based on the Restated Summary Financial Information of our Company.

o The face value of each Equity Share is 3 10.

e Basic EPS and Diluted EPS calculations are in accordance with Accounting Standard 20 (AS-20)
‘Earnings per Share', notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 read together along with
paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e Basic Earnings per share = Net profit/ (loss) after tax, as restated attributable to equity
shareholders /Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year/period.
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equity shares outstanding during the year/period.

Diluted Earnings per share = Net profit after tax, as restated / Weighted average number of diluted

Weighted average Earnings per share = Aggregate of year-wise weighted EPS divided by the

aggregate of weights i.e. [(EPS x Weight) for each fiscal] / [Total of weights].

2.
Share of Rs. 10 each fully paid up:

Price to Earnings (P/E) ratio in relation to Issue Price Band of Rs. 34 to Rs. 36 per Equity

Particulars P/E Ratio on Cap Price | P/E on Floor Price (no.
(no. of times) of times)
P/E ratio based on Basic and Diluted EPS for 6.39 6.04
FY 2017-18
P/E ratio based on Weighted Average Basic 9.81 9.26
and Diluted EPS
*Industry P/E
Highest 14.23
Lowest 13.38
Average 13.81
*Industry Composite comprises of VTM Limited and Donear Industries Limited.
3. Return on Net worth (RoNW)
Return on Net Worth (“RoNW?”) as per restated financial statements:
Year/ Period Ended RoNW (%) Weight
March 31, 2018 42.38% 3
March 31, 2017 37.40% 2
March 31, 2016 (11.87%) 1
Weighted Average (%) 31.68%
For the period ended September 30, 2018(%0)* 23.45%

*Not Annualised

Notes:

1. The RONW has been computed by dividing net profit after tax (excluding exceptional income, if
any) as restated by net worth (excluding exceptional income, if any) as restated as at year end.

2. Weighted average = Aggregate of year-wise weighted Return on Networth divided by the aggregate
of weights i.e. [(RoONW x Weight) for each fiscal] / [Total of weights].

4,
year ended March 31, 2018

To maintain pre-issue basic & diluted EPS
a. At the floor price —29.83%
b. At the cap price —29.00%

Minimum Return on Total Net Worth post Issue needed to maintain Pre-lIssue EPS for the

5. Net Asset Value (NAV) per share:
Particulars Amount (in Rs.)
Net Asset Value per Equity Share as of March 31, 2018 13.28
Net Asset Value per Equity Share as of September 30, 2018 17.35
Net Asset Value per Equity Share after the Issue- At Cap Price 22.38
Net Asset Value per Equity Share after the Issue- At Floor Price 21.84
Issue Price per equity share 36

Notes:

1. Net Asset Value per Equity Share is traced from the Restated Financial Information of the

Company.
2.
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6. Comparison with other listed companies:

Companies CMP* | Basic PE RONW | NAV Face Total
and Ratio (%) (per | Value Income
Diluted share) | (per (Rs. in

EPS share) Lakhs)

Avrtedz Fabs Limited 36 5.63 6.39 | 42.38% | 13.28 | 10.00 6,433.90

Peer Group**

VTM Limited 25.95 1.94| 13.38 4.19% | 46.23 1.00 16,982.34

Donear Industries 36.15 254 | 1423 | 13.38% | 18.97 2.00 51,689.40

Limited

* CMP for our Company is considered as Issue Price
**Source: www.bseindia.com

Notes:

Considering the nature, range of services, turnover and size of business of the Company the
peers are not strictly comparable. However same have been included for broad comparison.

The figures for Artedz Fabs Limited are based on the restated results for the year ended March
31, 2018.

The figures for the peers group are based on the standalone audited results for the year ended
March 31, 2018.

Current Market Price (CMP) is the closing price of Peer Group as on February 22, 2019.
However, CMP for our Company is the Final Price that has been determined on completion of
the Book Building Process.

NAYV is computed as the closing net worth divided by the closing outstanding number of paid
up equity shares. Net worth has been computed as the aggregate of share capital and reserves
and surplus (excluding Revaluation Reserve and miscellaneous expenditure).

P/E Ratio has been computed based on the closing market price of Peer Group’s equity shares
on February 22, 2019 sourced from website of Bombay stock Exchange as divided by the Basic
EPS provided.

RoNW is computed as net profit after tax divided by closing net worth. Net worth has been
computed as the aggregate of share capital and reserves and surplus (excluding Revaluation
Reserve and miscellaneous expenditure).

Artedz Fabs Limited is a Book Built issue and price band for the same has been published 2 (as
per SEBI ICDR Regulation, 2018)working days before opening of the issue in English and
Hindi National newspapers and one regional newspaper with wide circulation.

For further details see section titled “Risk Factors” beginning on page 21 of this Prospectus and the
financials of the Company including profitability and return ratios, as set out in the section titled
“Financial Statements” beginning on page 209 of this Prospectus for a more informed view.
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STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE TAX BENEFITS

To,

The Board of Directors

Artedz Fabs Limited

206, Gambhir Industrial Estate, Off Aarey Road,
Opp. Paramount Print, Goregaon (East),
Mumbai 400063, Maharashtra, India

Dear Sir,

Sub: Statement of possible special tax benefits (“the Statement”) available to Artedz Fabs Limited
(“the Company”) and its shareholders prepared in accordance with the requirements in Schedule
VIII-Clause (VII) (L) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2009, as amended (“the Regulations™)

We hereby report that the enclosed annexure, prepared by the Management of the Company, states the
possible special tax benefits available to the Company and the shareholders of the Company under the
Income - Tax Act, 1961 (“Act”) as amended by the Finance Act, 2018 (i.e. applicable to Financial Year
2018-19 relevant to Assessment Year 2019-20), presently in force in India. Several of these benefits are
dependent on the Company or its shareholders fulfilling the conditions prescribed under the Act. Hence,
the ability of the Company or its shareholders to derive the special tax benefits is dependent upon
fulfilling such conditions which, based on business imperatives which the Company may face in the
future, the Company may or may not choose to fulfil.

The benefits discussed in the enclosed annexure cover only special tax benefits available to the
Company and its Shareholders and do not cover any general tax benefits available to the Company or
its Shareholders. This statement is only intended to provide general information to the investors and is
neither designed nor intended to be a substitute for professional tax advice. A shareholder is advised to
consult his/ her/ its own tax consultant with respect to the tax implications arising out of his/her/its
participation in the proposed issue, particularly in view of ever changing tax laws in India.

We do not express any opinion or provide any assurance as to whether:

o the Company or its shareholders will continue to obtain these benefits in future; or

o the conditions prescribed for availing the benefits have been/would be met.

The contents of this annexure are based on information, explanations and representations obtained from
the Company and on the basis of our understanding of the business activities and operations of the
Company and the provisions of the tax laws.

*No assurance is given that the revenue authorities / courts will concur with the views expressed herein.

The views are based on the existing provisions of law and its interpretation, which are subject to change
from time to time. We would not assume responsibility to update the view, consequence to such change.
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We shall not be liable to Company for any claims, liabilities or expenses relating to this assignment
except to the extent of fees relating to this assignment, as finally judicially determined to have resulted
primarily from bad faith of intentional misconduct.

The enclosed annexure is intended for your information and for inclusion in the Red Herring Prospectus
/Prospectus in connection with the proposed issue of equity shares and is not to be used, referred to or
distributed for any other purpose without our written consent.

For, N. K. Aswani & Co..
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registeration No.: 100738W

Sd/-

N. K. Aswani

Proprietor

Membership No.: 033278
Date:March 1, 2019
Place: Ahmedabad
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ANNEXURE TO THE STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE
TO THE COMPANY AND ITS SHAREHOLDERS

Outlined below are the possible benefits available to the Company and its shareholders under the current
direct tax laws in India for the Financial Year 2018-19

A. SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS TO THE COMPANY UNDER THE INCOME TAX ACT, 1961
(THE “ACT”)

The company is not entitled to any special tax benefits under the Act.

B. SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS TO THE SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE INCOME TAX ACT,
1961 (THE “ACT”)

The Shareholders of the Company are not entitled to any special tax benefits under the Act
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SECTION IV - ABOUT THE COMPANY
OUR INDUSTRY

The information in this section includes extracts from publicly available information, data and statistics
and has been derived from various government publications and industry sources. Neither we nor any
other person connected with the Issue have verified this information. The data may have been re-
classified by us for the purposes of presentation. Industry sources and publications generally state that
the information contained therein has been obtained from sources generally believed to be reliable, but
that their accuracy, completeness and underlying assumptions are not guaranteed and their reliability
cannot be assured and, accordingly, investment decisions should not be based on such information. You
should read the entire Prospectus, including the information contained in the sections titled “Risk
Factors” and “Financial Statements” and related notes beginning on page 21 and 209 respectively of
this Prospectus before deciding to invest in our Equity Shares.

INTRODUCTION TO THE INDIAN TEXTILE INDUSTRY

India’s textiles sector is one of the oldest industries in Indian economy dating back several centuries.
India's overall textile exports during FY 2017-18 stood at US$ 39.2 billion.

The Indian textiles industry is extremely varied, with the hand-spun and hand-woven textiles sectors at
one end of the spectrum, while the capital intensive sophisticated mills sector at the other end of the
spectrum. The decentralised power looms/ hosiery and knitting sector form the largest component of
the textiles sector. The close linkage of the textile industry to agriculture (for raw materials such as
cotton) and the ancient culture and traditions of the country in terms of textiles make the Indian textiles
sector unique in comparison to the industries of other countries. The Indian textile industry has the
capacity to produce a wide variety of products suitable to different market segments, both within India
and across the world.

(Source: Textile Industry & Market Growth in India - India Brand Equity Foundation - www.ibef.org)
STATISTICAL OVERVIEW OF THE INDIAN TEXTILE INDUSTRY

i CAGR 13.58% india’s textile trade (US$ biltion)

45
40

250

200

150

100

=
o
) i
o =

2009 2010 2011 2014 2015 2016 2017 2019F FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FYi5 FY18
BExports MImports

&

(=]
<
4]

(=]
o™~
<

FY17 FY18 FY1g*

(Source: Textile Industry & Market Growth in India - India Brand Equity Foundation - www.ibef.org)
APPROACH TO TEXTILE INDUSTRY ANALYSIS

Analysis of Textiles Industry needs to be approached at both macro and micro levels, whether for
domestic or global markets. Textiles Industry forms part of Manufacturing Sector at a macro level.
Hence, broad picture of manufacturing Sector should be at preface while analysing the Textiles
Industry.

Manufacturing sector comprises various industries, which in turn, have numerous sub-classes or
products. One such major industry in the overall Manufacturing sector is Textiles Industry, which in
turn encompasses various components such as Textiles Ginning, Textiles Spinning, Textiles
Weaving/Knitting, Textiles Processing etc.
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Thus, Textiles Processing Industry should be analysed in the light of Textiles Industry at large. An
appropriate view on Textiles Processing Industry, then, calls for the overall economy outlook,
performance and expectations of manufacturing Sector, position and outlook of overall Textiles
Industry and segment wise micro analysis.

| Approach to Textiles Processing Industry |
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This Approach Note is developed by Pantomath Capital Advisors (P) Ltd (‘Pantomath’) and any
unauthorized reference or use of this Note, whether in the context of Textile Industry and / or any other
industry, may entail legal consequences.

GLOBAL ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

According to the International Monetary Fund (IMF), the global economy is experiencing a near-
synchronous recovery, the most broad-based since 2010. In 2017, roughly three-quarters of countries
experienced improvements in their growth rates, the highest share since 2010. The latest World
Economic Outlook (WEQ) of the IMF shows global GDP growth accelerated to around 3.6 percent in
2017 from 3.2 percent in 2016, and the forecast for 2018 has been upgraded by 0.2 percentage points
to 3.9 percent. Although rebounding, global growth is still well below levels reached in the 2000s.

One reason why the recovery has spread around the globe is that world trade in goods and services has
finally emerged from its torpor, registering 4.7 percent real volume growth in 2017 compared with 2.5
percent in 2016. Another reason is that commaodity producers such as Russia, Brazil, and Saudi Arabia,
which for the past few years been suffering from depressed prices, have benefitted from the upswing in
demand. Commodity prices increased smartly in 2017, led by petroleum, whose price rose by 16 percent
to reach $61 per barrel by the end of the year.

Even as global growth and commodity prices have surged, inflation has remained remarkably quiescent,
remaining below 2 percent in the main advanced regions. Consequently, monetary policies in the US,
Eurozone and Japan have remained highly accommodative despite a strong recovery. These unusual
settings—rapid growth, ultra-low interest rates—at a late stage in the economic cycle have produced
the rarest of combinations: record-high high bond prices and stock market valuations, both at the same
time. The consensus forecast calls for these conditions to be sustained in 2018, as companies respond
to buoyant demand conditions by stepping up investment, some governments (such as the US) embark
on expansionary fiscal policies, while advanced country monetary policies remain stimulative and
world trade continues to grow briskly.

What are the risks? Of course, there are the usual geo-political and geo-economic risks: war in the
Korean peninsula; political upheaval in the Middle East; aggressive output cuts by Saudi Arabia (and
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Russia) in advance of the planned listing of the Saudi Arabian oil company, Aramco, which could force
oil prices even higher; a final reckoning from China’s unprecedented credit surge in the form of capital
controls, slowdown in growth, and a sharply depreciating currency with consequences for the global
economy (Economic Survey, 2016-17, Chapter 1); and trade tensions that could lead to skirmishes, and
then spiral out of control. But perhaps the main risks lie on the macro-finance front in advanced
economies. These stem from three, inter-related, sources:

o Asset valuations (price-equity ratios) tend to revert to their mean. And the faster and higher they
climb, especially so late in the economic cycle, the greater the risk of sharp corrections.

o Simultaneously high valuations of both bonds and equities tend to be briefly lived because they
suffer from an acute tension: if future earnings and economic growth are so bright, justifying high
equity prices, interest rates cannot be forever so low.

e And if interest rates rise—or if markets even sense that central banks will need to shift their stance—
both bond and equity prices could correct sharply. A plausible scenario would be the following. The
IMF is now forecasting that advanced country output gaps will close in 2018 for the first time since
the Global Financial Crisis. As this occurs, wages would start rising, eating into profits (which would
prick equity valuations); and as inflation rises in tandem, policy makers would be forced into raising
rates, deflating bond valuations and further undermining share prices.

What would happen to growth if asset prices correct? Surely, the impact would be far smaller than it
was in 2007-09, because advanced countries are far less vulnerable than they were a decade ago. In
particular, the leverage tied to these assets is much lower, which would minimize contagious
propagation; while banks are much better buffered, with higher levels of capital and core deposits, and
lower levels of risky assets.

Even so, there would be some consequences. For one, a large decline in wealth would force advanced
country consumers to cut back on their spending, which in turn would lead firms to curtail their
investments. And if this happens, monetary and fiscal policies would have much less room for
expansionary manoeuvre since interest rates are already low while government debts are high. And the
political implications of yet another decline in asset prices, the second in a decade, could also be
significant, with effects that are difficult to imagine.

In sum, assessing future risks hinges on two calls: interest rate policy and asset valuations. On policy,
extraordinarily low rates have, to paraphrase Paul Krugman, become “an obsession in search of a
justification.” Initially justified by the dislocations caused by the Global Financial Crisis, then by large
output gaps, they are now defended on the grounds that inflation remains weak, even as the slack in
product and labour markets is disappearing rapidly. Will the gathering new evidence on closing output
gaps and rising employment dispel that obsession?

On valuations, the prognosticator must navigate a narrow strait: steering clear of the “Cry of Wolf” trap
(bond prices will finally, finally correct, having defied the prediction of correction in each of the last
several years), without succumbing to the siren call of “This Time is Different” (stock valuations are
sustainable this time because interest rates will remain at historic lows).

(Source: Economic Survey 2017-18 Volume 1 www.indiabudget.nic.in)
OVERVIEW OF INDIA’S ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE IN 2017-18

Economic activity

The key question going forward is whether the economy has troughed, and if so at what pace it will
recover toward its medium term trend. High frequency indicators do suggest that a robust recovery is
taking hold as reflected in a variety of indicators, including overall GVA, manufacturing GVA, the 1IP,
gross capital formation (Figure 17) and exports.
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Similarly, real non-food credit growth has rebounded to 4 percent in November 2017 on a year-on-year
basis, while the squeeze on real credit to industry is abating (Figure 18). Moreover, the flow of nonbank
resources to the corporate sector, such as bond market borrowing and lending by NBFCs, has increased
by 43 percent (April-December 2017 compared to the same period a year ago), substituting in part for
weak bank credit. Rural demand, proxied by motor cycle sales, and auto sales, while not yet back to its
pre-demonetization trend, are recovering (Figures 19 and 20).

Figure 19. Sale of Motoreyeles Figure 20. Sale of Passenger Cars
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Source: Society for Indian Automobile Manufacturers, Survey calculations.

Perhaps most significantly, the behaviour of manufacturing exports and imports in the second and third
quarters of this fiscal year has started to reverse. The re-acceleration of export growth to 13.6 percent
in the third quarter of FY2018 and deceleration of import growth to 13.1 percent, in line with global
trends, suggest that the demonetization and GST effects are receding. Services export and private
remittances are also rebounding (Figure 21).

On demonetization specifically, the cash-to-GDP ratio has stabilized, suggesting a return to equilibrium.
The evidence is that since about June 2017 the trend in currency is identical to that pre-demonetization
(Figure 22). The stabilization also permits estimation of the impact of demonetization: about Rs. 2.8
lakh Crores less cash (1.8 percent of GDP) and about Rs. 3.8 lakh Crores less high denomination notes
(2.5 percent of GDP).

Figure 21. Services Expurt Growth (percent) Figure 22. Currency in Circulation (CIC) and

and Net Private Remittances (in US$ billion) High Denominarion Notes (HDN)
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A final, important factor explaining the growth recovery is fiscal, which is providing a boost to
aggregate demand. For reasons related to smoothening the transition, GST revenues will only be
collected for 11 months, which is akin to a tax cut for consumers. Meanwhile, overall revenue
expenditure growth by the central and state governments at remains strong at 11.7 percent (April to
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November). Cyclical conditions may also lead to lower tax and non-tax revenues, which act as an
automatic stabilizer.

All this said, while the direction of the indicators is positive, their level remains below potential. 11P
growth (April-November 2017 over same period in the previous year) is 3.2 percent, real credit growth
to industry is still in negative territory, and the growth in world trade remains less than half its level of
a decade ago. Moreover, even though the cost of equity has fallen to low levels, corporates have not
raised commensurate amounts of capital, suggesting that their investment plans remain modest (Box 6).
In other words, the twin engines that propelled the economy’s take-off in the mid-2000s — exports and
investment — are continuing to run below take-off speed.

Meanwhile, developments in the agriculture sector bear monitoring. The trend acceleration in rural
wages (agriculture and non-agriculture), which had occurred through much of 2016 because of
increased activity on the back of a strong monsoon, seems to have decelerated beginning just before the
kharif season of 2017-18 (Figure 23) but it is still greater than much of the last three years. Three crop-
specific developments are evident. Sowing has been lower in both kharif and rabi, reducing the demand
for labour. The acreage for kharif and rabi for 2017-18 is estimated to have declined by 6.1 percent and
0.5 percent, respectively. Pulses and oilseeds have seen an increase in sowing, but this has translated
into unusually low farmgate prices (below their minimum support price, MSP), again affecting farm
revenues. The so-called TOP perishables (tomatoes, onions, and potatoes) have meanwhile fluctuated
between high and low prices, engendering income uncertainty for farmers.

The CSO has forecast real GDP growth for 2017-18 at 6.5 percent. However, this estimate has not fully
factored in the latest developments in the third quarter, especially the greater-than-CSO-forecast exports
and government contributions to demand. Accordingly, real GDP growth for 2017-18 as a whole is
expected to be close to 6 3/4 percent. Given real GDP growth of 6 percent in the first half, this implies
that growth in the second half would rebound to 7.5 percent, aided by favourable base effects, especially
in the fourth quarter.

Figure 23. Real and Nominal Rural Wages Growth Figure 24. Inflation: CPT and Variants*
(percent, 3 month moving average) (percent, year-on-year)

) Source: MoSPL Survey caleulations.
Source: Labour Burean, Survey calculations *CPI Befined Cete is obtained by stripping out the volatle food and fiel components.

Average CPI inflation for the first nine months has averaged 3.2 percent and is projected to reach 3.7
percent for the year as a whole. Thisimplies average CPI inflation in the last quarter of 5 percent, in
line with the RBI’s forecast. Therefore, the GDP deflator is expected to grow by 3.6 percent for 2017-
18, somewhat higher than the CSO’s forecast of 2.8 percent. Consequentially, nominal GDP growth is
estimated at 10.5 percent, compared with the CSO’s 9.5 percent estimate.

Macroeconomic indicators

After 13 months of continuously under-shooting the inflation target by an average of 130 basis points,
headline inflation for the first time crossed the RBI’s 4 percent target in November, posting a rate of
5.2 percent in December 2017 (Figure 24). The recent upswing in inflation stems from rising global oil
prices (not all of which has been passed on to consumers), unseasonal increases in the prices of fruits
and vegetables, and the 7th Pay Commission housing rent allowances, which mechanically increase
inflation. Stripped of all these factors, underlying inflation has been increasing at a more modest pace,
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reaching 4.3 percent at end-December—in part because firms are passing the incidence of GST on to
final consumers only gradually.

The current account deficit has also widened in 2017-18 and is expected to average about 1.5-2 percent
of GDP for the year as a whole. The current account deficit can be split into a manufacturing trade
deficit, an oil and gold deficit, a services deficit, and a remittances deficit (Figure 25). In the first half
of 2017-18, the oil and gold balance has improved (smaller deficit of $47 billion) but this has been
offset by a higher trade deficit ($18 billion) and a reduced services surplus ($37 billion), the latter two
reflecting a deterioration in the economy’s competitiveness.

Despite these developments, the overall external position remains solid. The current account deficit is
well below the 3 percent of GDP threshold beyond which vulnerability emerges. Meanwhile, foreign
exchange reserves have reached a record level of about $432 billion (spot and forward) at end-December
2017, well above prudent norms.

Fiscal developments

Bond yields have increased sharply (Figure 26) since August 2017, reflecting a variety of factors,
including concerns that the fiscal deficit might be greater-than-budgeted, expectations of higher
inflation, a rebound in activity that would narrow the output gap, and expectations of rate increases in
the US. As a result, the yield curve has become unusually steep (Figure 27).

The fiscal deficit for the first eight months of 2017-18 reached 112 percent of the total for the year, far
above the 89 percent norm (average of last 5 years), largely because of a shortfall in non-tax revenue,
reflecting reduced dividends from government agencies and enterprises. Expenditure also progressed
at a fast pace, reflecting the advancing of the budget cycle by a month which gave considerable leeway
to the spending agencies to plan in advance and start implementation early in the financial year. Partially
offsetting these trends will be disinvestment receipts which are likely to exceed budget targets.

Figure 27. Yield Curve
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GST revenue collections are surprisingly robust given that these are early days of such a disruptive
change (See Box 7). Government measures to curb black money and encourage tax formalization,
including demonetization and the GST, have increased personal income tax collections substantially
(excluding the securities transactions tax). From about 2 percent of GDP between 2013-14 and 2015-
16, they are likely to rise to 2.3 percent of GDP in 2017-18, a historic high. Precise estimates of the
government’s contribution to this improvement vary depending on the methodology used. An
econometric exercise yields an estimate of Rs. 40,000 Crores over the two fiscal years of 2016-17 and
2017-18.3 Another based on comparing the difference in actual tax buoyancy in 2016-17 and 2017-18
over the previous seven-years’ average buoyancy, yields an estimate of about Rs. 65,000 Crores (both
exclude the 25,000 Crores collected under the Income Disclosure Scheme and Pradhan Mantri Garib
Kalyan Yojana). Thus, the sum of all government efforts increased income tax collections, thus far,
between Rs. 65,000 and Rs. 90,000 Crores. These numbers imply a substantial increase in reported
incomes (and hence in formalization) of about 1.5 percent to 2.3 percent of GDP.
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As aresult of the budget overruns, the central government’s fiscal deficit until November 2017 was Rs.
6.1 lakh crore compared to the budgeted Rs. 5.5 lakh crore. In contrast, state governments seem to be
hewing closely to their targeted fiscal consolidation — in part because the centre has guaranteed them a
large increase in their indirect tax take, as part of the GST agreement.

Reflecting largely fiscal developments at the centre, a pause in general government fiscal consolidation
relative to 2016-17 cannot be ruled out. In addition, the measured deficit for 2017-18 will include Rs.
80,000 crore (0.5 percent of GDP) in capital provided to public sector banks. But this will not affect
aggregate demand, as reflected in international accounting practice which deems such operations as
financing (“below-the-line”) rather than expenditure.

In the case of borrowing by the states, markets have perhaps inadequately taken into account the fact
that higher market borrowings by them does not reflect higher deficits; rather about Rs. 50,000 crore or
0.3 percent of GDP of market borrowings is due to changes in the composition of financing, away from
higher cost NSSF borrowings toward lower cost market borrowings. This lack of strict correspondence
between the deficit and borrowings at the central and state levels (Figure 28) is discussed in greater
detail in Box 8. For general government, ab